
 

1 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Regular Board Meeting, Board of Trustees 

District Office, 1000 Yulupa Avenue 
October 19, 2017 

(Rescheduled from October 10, 2017) 
 

AGENDA 
 

The Rincon Valley Union School District complies with ADA requirements and upon request, 
will attempt to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making meeting 
material available in appropriate alternative formats (pursuant to Government Code Section 
54953.2).  Anyone requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in the meeting should 
contact the Rincon Valley Union School District at 542-7375, 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
1. OPEN SESSION              5:00 p.m. 
. 
2. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON CLOSED 
 SESSION ITEMS 
 This time is reserved for citizens, employees, and representatives of school groups 
 to address the Board on items that are on the closed session agenda. Persons 
 addressing the Board are requested to state their names and whether or not they are a 
 resident of the district. The Board President reserves the right to limit comments from 
 the public as well as limit the total number of minutes used on any one topic.   
 
3. CLOSED SESSION:  Items discussed in closed session are confidential in nature 

and may not be discussed by participants outside of this session.  Any action 
taken by the Board during closed session shall be reported upon in open 
session.          

 
3.1 Conference with the Board’s labor negotiator, Tony Roehrick, regarding 

Gov. Code 54957.6): 
  

- Negotiations with Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ Association (represented 
certificated employees) 

 

- Negotiations with California School Employees Association (CSEA) 
Chapter #284 

  
3.2 Personnel issues, Gov. Code 54957  
 
3.3 Conference with Legal Counsel –Anticipated Litigation, Gov. Code 54956.9 

  -One potential case 
 
The purpose of this Board Meeting is to hear, discuss, or deliberate on matters that are on the 
approved agenda.  This agenda has been carefully planned to reflect the goals and vision of 
our district.  The agenda is available on line 72 hours before the Board Meeting and posted at 
each school site, as required by law 
 



 

2 

 
4. OPEN SESSION:  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,    6:00 p.m. 
 CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
5. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION DECISIONS 
 
6. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS/ADDITIONS 
 
7. AGENDA AND CONSENT ITEM APPROVAL 
 (Consent Items a Board Member wishes to discuss will be  
 moved to the Action Item section) 
 

7.1 Minutes of September 12, 2017 Regular Board Meeting 
   

7.2 Williams Settlement Act 
Quarterly Uniform Complaint Report Summary, July 1 – September 30, 2017. 

 
7.3 MOU Between Alliant International University, Inc. A California Benefit 

Corporation and Rincon Valley Union School District 
This is an agreement to place Interns who are or will be enrolled in the Teacher 
Credential Program, the MA/PPS:  School Psychology Program or School 
Counseling Program through the California School of Education at Alliant 
International University and will be serving their Practicum or Internship in the 
District. 

 
7.4 Agreement between Rincon Valley Union School District and 360 Degree 

Customer, Inc. for a Speech Therapist Professional Services 
 
7.5 Agreement between Rincon Valley Union School District and 360 Degree 

Customer, Inc. for a Registered Nurse Professional Services 
  
7.6 Approval of Purchase Orders 

  These are purchase orders dated September 5, 2017 - October 1, 2017. 
 

7.7 Approval of Warrants: 
 9/8/17  - 1588723 – 1588789 
 9/15/17 - 1590260 – 1590356 
 9/20/17 - 1591002 – 1591071 
 9/27/17 - 1593263 – 1593318 
 10/04/17 - 1594275 – 1594340 
  

8.  ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CALENDAR 
 

October 21 Helping Hands Resource Fair 
 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 noon, Matanzas 

 
October 25 and 26 IBB Training, District Office 
 8:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. 



 

3 

 
October 24, 26, 27 RVCS Student Led Conferences 
 
October 27 - 28 RVCS Bandwagon Music Festival-Analy 
  
October 31 Halloween Festivities 
 
November 2 Agenda Setting, 8:00 a.m., District Office 
 Site Visits – 9:00 a.m. – 12 noon 
 End of 1st Trimester 
 
November 3 Teacher Workday /Non-student day 
 
November 10 Veterans Day Holiday 
 
November 13 Rincon Valley Education Foundation Meeting 
 7:00 p.m., District Office   
 
November 14  Regular Board Meeting  
 District Office, 6:00 p.m. 

 
9. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

This time is reserved for citizens, employees, and representatives of school groups 
 to address the Board on items that are not on the agenda.  By law, the Board 
 cannot take action upon or discuss items that are not on the approved agenda, but 
 welcomes your comments.  Persons addressing the Board are requested to state 
 their names and whether or not they are a resident of the district. The Board President 
 reserves the right to limit comments from the public as well as limit the total number of 
 minutes used on any one topic.  

  
If you wish to address the Board on any item on the agenda, please make your request 
at the time the item is being discussed.  Persons wanting to address the Board will be 
recognized and requested to state their name and whether or not they are a resident of 
the district.  The Board President will also reserve the right to limit comments as well as 
limit the total number of minutes used on any agenda item.   

 
10.      SUPERINTENDENT’S COMMENTS, LEGISLATIVE UPDATE, CORRESPONDENCE 
 

11. INFORMATION 
  
 Program Reports 
 

11.1 School Closure and Fire Update 
 Dr. Roehrick will report on school closures and fire update. 
 --Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
 
     



 

4 

11.2 Transportation Report 
  Dr. Pandolfo will introduce Mrs. Sandi Pettey, Transportation Supervisor, who will 
  report on the District’s transportation services. 
  --Dr. Joe Pandolfo/Mrs. Sandi Pettey 
 
 11.3 Rincon Valley Education Foundation Report 

Mrs. Katie Ruppe, Director, will report on the Rincon Valley Education 
Foundation goals for 2017-18. 
--Mrs. Katie Ruppe 

 
 Instruction 
 

11.4 Curriculum and Instruction Update 
 Dr. Metzger will report on the following: 

a. Middle School Programs  
--Dr. Terry Metzger 

 
 11.5 Student Services Update 
  Mrs. Myhers will give an update on the following: 

a. Rincon Valley Partnership 
b. Parent University 

--Mrs. Cathy Myhers 
 

Fiscal 
 
11.6 Bond Rating Agency Reports- Moody’s and S & P Global 
 Board of Trustees will review the bond rating report from Moody’s and S & P 

Global. 
 --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 
Human Resources 
 
11.7 Highly Qualified Teachers 

Dr. Roehrick will report on the following: 
a. Teacher Evaluation System 
b. Personnel  

--Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 

11.8 Strategic Plan Update for Operations Departments 
 Board of Trustees will review and discuss the strategic plans to support the 

District Operations Departments’ purpose statements.  
 --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

5 

Governance 
 
11.9 Progress on 2016-17 Single Plan for Student Achievement Goals and 2017-

18 Goals 
Dr. Roehrick will report on the progress made toward meeting the 2016-17 Single 
Plan for Student Achievement goals  
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
11.10 Rincon Valley Charter School Renewal – Application Review 
 Board of Trustees will review the application to be submitted for the Rincon 

Valley Charter School renewal. 
 --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
  
11.11 Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ Association Initial “Sunshine” Collective 

Bargaining Agreement Proposal with the Rincon Valley Union School 
District 2017-2018 

 Board of Trustees will receive any public comments regarding RVUTA’s 
“Sunshine” proposal with RVUSD for 2017-2018. 

 --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 

11.12 Rincon Valley Union School District’s Initial “Sunshine” Collective 
Bargaining Agreement Proposal with the Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ 
Association 2017-2018 

 Board of Trustees will receive any public comments regarding RVUSD’s 
“Sunshine” proposal with RVUTA for 2017-2018. 

 --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 
12. ACTION           
  

 Fiscal 
 

12.1   Resolution #10-17-07, Declaring an Emergency Under Public Contract Code 
Section 22035 and 22050 
Board of Trustees will consider approving Resolution #10-17-07, Declaring 
an Emergency Under Public Contract Code Section 22035 and 22050 for the  
Rincon Valley Union School District. 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
12.2    Prequalification resolutions for Prime Contractors and Mechanical, 

Electrical and Plumbing Contractors (MEPs) 
 Board of Trustees will consider approving the following prequalification 

resolutions: 
 12.2a Resolution #10-17-05, Prime Contractors 
 12.2b Resolution #10-17-06, Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing Contractors 

--Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 
 
 



 

6 

Human Resources 
 
12.3 Certificated Job Description – Home Study Coordinator 
 Board of Trustees will consider approving a certificated job description for the 

position of Home Study Coordinator. 
 --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 
12.4 Certificated Salary Schedule – Home Study Coordinator 
 Board of Trustees will consider approving the certificated salary schedule for the 

position of Home Study Coordinator. 
 --Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
13. PERSONNEL 
         

13.1 Certificated Management – Leave of Absence Request 
 Kelly Lister, Principal, Binkley, effective January 8 – March 16, 2018 

 
13.2 Certificated – Leave of Absence Request 

 Larkin O’Leary, Teacher, RVCS – Sequoia, effective November 3, 2017 – 
June 1, 2018 

 Lea Yap, Teacher, Binkley, January 16 – March 16, 2018 
 Chris Lister, Teacher, RVCS – Sequoia, effective April 30 – June 1, 2018 

 

13.3 Classified – New Hires 
 Roseanne Doyle, Day Care Assistant, Village, effective September 13, 2017 
 Josephine Hoover, Day Care Assistant, Madrone, effective September 14, 

2017 
 John O’Neill, Noon Duty I, Austin Creek, effective September 18, 2017 
 Maggie Ng, Instructional Assistant, Austin Creek, effective September 19, 

2017 
 Alapaki Peniata, Campus Supervisor, RVCS – Sequoia, effective September 

25, 2017 
 Araceli Arroyo, Noon Duty I, Whited, effective October 3, 2017 
 Maithe Carrillo, Day Care Assistant, Madrone, effective October 5, 2017 
 Elaine Enos, Day Care Assistant, Sequoia, effective October 5, 2017 
 Abbey Rodgers, Sp. Ed. Instr. Assistant II, District, effective October 5, 2017 
 Stephanie Kiernan, Noon Duty I, Whited, effective October 6, 2017 

 

13.4 Classified – Resignations 
 Jaime Pimental, Student Services Office Manager, District Office, effective 

September 29, 2017 
 Ed Hootstein, Sp. Ed. Inst. Assistant II, Sequoia, effective October 13, 2017 
 Kelsey Poore, Bus Driver, District, effective October 13, 2017 

 
14. CSEA / RVUTA COMMENTS        



 

7 

 
15. BOARD OF TRUSTEE COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR 

INFORMATION 
 

 15.1 Board/Superintendent Site Visits 
 
16. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 Annual Accounting Developer Fees -Resolution  

 Professional Development Update 

 Approval of Single School Plans 

 CAASP Follow-up 

 GATE Identification 

 ELA/Math 

 RVCS Renewal 

 Facility Plan 2018 

 School-Connected Organization Authorizations 

 Board Policies 
 

17. ADJOURN 



 

1 
 

 
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  

Regular Board Meeting, Board of Trustees 
1687 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa 

      September 12, 2017 
 

 

MINUTES 
 
Present:              Mrs. Carol Lynn Wood 
         Mrs. Cynthia Evers 
         Mr. Chris Rafanelli  
         Mr. Mike Cook  
         Mr. Jeff Gospe 
 
Administrators:       Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 

      Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent of Business  
      Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum 

         Mrs. Cathy Myhers. Assistant Superintendent of Student Services 
          
Others:        Interested Staff and Community Members 
 
 
   
1. OPEN SESSION                  5:00 p.m. 
 
2. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON CLOSED 
 SESSION ITEMS 
 This time is reserved for citizens, employees, and representatives of school groups 
 to address the Board on items that are on the closed session agenda. Persons 
 addressing the Board are requested to state their names and whether or not they are a 
 resident of the district. The Board President reserves the right to limit comments from 
 the public as well as limit the total number of minutes used on any one topic.   
 
3. CLOSED SESSION:   
 Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Cook seconded to recess to closed session to discuss the 

following:  Unanimous. 
 

3.1 Conference with the Board’s labor negotiator, Tony Roehrick, regarding 
Gov. Code 54957.6: 

  
3.1 a Negotiations with Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ Association (represented 

certificated employees) 
 
3.1 b Negotiations with California School Employees Association (CSEA) 

Chapter #284 
 



 

2 
 

 3.2 Personnel Issues. Gov. Code 54957.6 
 
 3.3 Public Employee Performance Evaluation Gov. Code 54957 

 -Superintendent 
 
4. OPEN SESSION:  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,     
 CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to adjourn closed session and return to 
open session at 6:06 p.m.:  Unanimous. 
 

5. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION DECISIONS 
 Mrs. Wood announced that no action was taken in closed session.   
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING          
 Assurance of Pupil Textbooks and Instructional Materials 
 Williams Settlement Legislation 2017-2018 

Dr. Roehrick explained that under the William’s Act Settlement, Governing Boards are 
required to annually certify that all students have access to core Board adopted 
instructional materials before the eighth week of school.  The district ensures each 
student has been issued Board adopted core instructional materials through a process 
to have every teacher complete a form verifying that they have the materials needed for 
each of their students.   
 
Mrs. Wood opened the public hearing for comments at 6:12 p.m.  There were no 
comments or questions so the public hearing was closed at 6:13 p.m. 

  
7. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS/ADDITIONS\ 

Mrs. Wood requested to amend the August 8 closed session minutes to reflect the 
correct Trustee who made a motion to open and close closed session from Mr. Gospe 
to Mr. Cook.   

 
8. AGENDA AND CONSENT ITEM APPROVAL 

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to approve the agenda and following 
consent items as amended:  Unanimous. 

 
8.1 Minutes of August 8, 2017   Regular Board Meeting 
 Minutes of August 10, 2017 Special Board Study Session 
 Minutes of August 15, 2017 Special Board Meeting-Closed Session 
   

 8.2 Schools of Hope Sonoma County Tutoring Program Memorandum of   
  Understanding 
  Agreement for Services between Rincon Valley Union School District and   
  United Way of the Wine County for the 2017-2018 academic year. 
 

8.3 Approval of District Organizational Chart 2017-18 
 
 



 

3 
 

8.4 Board Policy Updates – CSBA July 2017 
The Board will approve the CSBA July 2017 Board Policy updates as follows: 
 
Adopt Revisions: 
BP/AR 0000, Vision 
BP 0100, Philosophy 
E 0420.41, Charter School Oversight 
BP 2140, Evaluation of the Superintendent 
AR 4112.2, Certification 
AR 4112.61/4212.61/4312.61, Employment References 
BP E 6161.1, Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials 
BB 9121, President 
BB 9220, Governing Board Elections 
BB 9230, Orientation 
BB 9400, Board Self-Evaluation 
 
Adopt New 
BP 7212, Mello-Roos Districts 
 

   Delete 
  AR 0000, Vision 

BP 4112.61/4212.61/4312.61, Employment References 
  
 8.5 Approval of Purchase Orders 
  This represents purchase orders dated August 1, 2017 – September 4, 2017. 
 

8.6 Approval of Warrants: 
8/9/17  - 1582472 – 1582536 
8/16/17 - 1583551 – 1583604 
8/23/17 - 1584961 – 1584981 
8/30/17 - 1586895 – 1586956 

 
9.       ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CALENDAR 

Mrs. Wood announced the following calendared items: 
 
September 22   Buyback Day #2 
 
September 25-Oct. 6  Fall Conferences 
 
September 28   Agenda Setting 
     8:00 a.m. – Superintendent’s office 

      School Site Visits 
     9:00 – 12:00   

 
 October 5    Binkley Dedication Ceremony 
      5:00 – 7:00 p.m. 
 



 

4 
 

October 9    Rincon Valley Education Foundation 
     7:00 – 8:00 p.m., District Office 
 
October 10    Regular Board Meeting   

      6:00 p.m., District Office 
 
 October 11    Madrone Dedication Ceremony 
      5:00 – 7:00 p.m. 
 
10. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
 
 Name: Lisa Brown, resident 

Topic: Classroom Air-conditioning promised for 2017--What is the district’s plan 
for installing air-conditioning in the classrooms?  Is the lack of air-
conditioning a violation of the William’s Act? 

 
11.      SUPERINTENDENT’S COMMENTS, LEGISLATIVE UPDATE, CORRESPONDENCE 
 Dr. Roehrick commented on the following: 
 

 Refuse RFP:  In collaboration with legal counsel, Dr. Pandolfo has developed a 
Request for Proposals for refuse services to begin January 1, 2018.  This is in 
response to a new vendor taking over refuse service for Santa Rosa.  School 
districts were not included as a service entity in the City’s new contract.  Dr. 
Pandolfo is working with other Santa Rosa area districts to hopefully result in 
reduced costs.  We have enjoyed this service at no cost.  We projected the cost 
based on current rates to be about $60,000 per year.  Based on the City’s new 
contract, costs will very likely far exceed that projection. 

 

 RVCS:  Our renewal committee has sent the 1st draft of the renewal application 
to our attorney for her initial review.  We will provide the Governing Board an 
opportunity to review the renewal application at our October meeting and then 
schedule for approval at our November meeting.  In addition, we are using a 
web-based application process this year through SchoolMint.  We have moved 
the application window up to October 23 – December 1. 

 
 Classroom Air-conditioning:   As reported at previous board meetings during 

construction updates, the Board approved staff to accelerate the installation of 
HVAC at all sites instead of waiting until the site’s construction timeline.   The 
district engaged the architect to begin the process for DSA approval, which takes 
4-6 months.   Due to complicated delays in this process, the goal of installing air-
conditioning this past summer was not met.  The district is on track for installation 
to take place summer of 2018.    
 

 
 
 
 



 

5 
 

12. AWARDS          
 
12.1 Classified Employee of the Month  

Mr. Cook moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to approve the Resolution for 
Roldolfo Castro, Classified Employee of the Month of September, 2017:  
Unanimous. 
 
Mr. Cook read the resolution.  Mr. Herfurth, Binkley principal, read his letter 
commending Rodolfo for his outstanding work ethic.  As Madrone custodian, he 
keeps the school looking nice and is willing to help with anything that is needed.  
The staff, students, and parents appreciate Rodolfo’s hard work, especially this 
summer when 10 teachers moved to new classrooms and Rodolfo was able to 
move tons of furniture, clean every classroom, and work around construction 
workers to make sure teachers and students returned to rooms that were ready 
for instruction. 

 
12.2 Certificated Employee of the Month 

Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mr. Cook seconded to approve the Resolution for 
Danya Dranow, Certificated Employee of the Month of September, 2017. 
 
Mr. Rafanelli read the resolution.  Mrs. Boyce, Spring Creek principal, read her 
letter commending Danya for her seven years of teaching at Spring Creek and 
the impact she has on her students.  She develops strong relationships with 
students and is warm, accessible, enthusiastic, and caring.  She is a skilled 
teacher and takes leadership roles at Spring Creek.  Students are engaged, and 
not a moment of instructional time is spared. 

 
13. INFORMATION 
 
 Fiscal 
 
 13.1 Lease-Leaseback 

Board of Trustees received an update on the Lease-Leaseback process for 
contractor selection.  Village Phase II is scheduled to begin this June and is a 
good candidate for a lease- leaseback contract.   We are assessing other 
projects to determine the benefits of a lease-leaseback contract as compared to 
other delivery methods. 

   
Instruction 

 
13.2 Summer Intervention Program Report 

Mrs. Noone, Summer School Principal, reported on the 2017 summer school 
intervention programs summarizing the highlights, challenges, analysis, and next 
steps.    
 
 
 



 

6 
 

13.3 Curriculum & Instruction Update 
 Dr. Terry Metzger reported on the following: 

a. Home Study Enrollment 
Enrollment as of Sept 6, 2017 was 32 students. In addition to Mrs. 
Davis, three part-time teachers provide support for parents/families 
and instruction for students. This program is fiscally self-sustaining. 
Enrollment changes regularly with some predictable patterns: late fall, 
after winter break, and spring. Surveys indicate that participating 
parents are very satisfied with the program. 

 
b. New Teacher Training 

The three major focus areas of the New Teacher series are: 

 to provide our new teachers with “catch-up” and “just-in-time” 
information 

 to provide customized, job-embedded professional learning 
 to build community among our new teachers and help them 

become part of their school communities 

c. CAASPP Results 
The Board received and Dr. Metzger summarized a district chart and 
reflection sheet, followed by a school chart and reflection sheet for 
each school in the district. The reflection sheets discuss highlights, 
challenges, and next steps for the district and each school. 
 

d. PE Testing Results 
Physical Fitness Testing (PFT) is part of the California Assessment of 
Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) system. We are 
required to test all students in grades 5 and 7 each year. Parents 
receive individual student reports with the end-of-year report cards 
each June, and we report the district summary results each 
September for the previous year. The primary goal of the Physical 
Fitness test is to “assist students in establishing lifetime habits of 
regular physical activity.” (CDE, 2015) 
 

13.4 Student Services Update 
 Mrs. Myhers reported on the following: 
 

a. Student Support Model  
Dr. Metzger and Mrs. Myhers have collaborated for the past 4 years 
on the creation of a student support model.  This model focuses on 
three key areas: Academics, Attendance, and Attitude.  The focus has 
been on supporting student learning through improvements and 
changes in these areas.  There have been many changes to the 
model over the past few years including the addition of an EL 
coordinator and counselors.   Students and staff are beginning to 



 

7 
 

share a common language around social emotional skills, 
interventions, and systems of support. 
  

b. AED status update 
School sites have used online trainings to train school staff on how to 
use the AEDs that have been placed at each school and district office.  
Mrs. Myhers checks in with office clerks each month to make sure the 
devices all have working batteries.  This keeps us compliant with the 
monthly monitoring requirement.  The goal is to provide annual 
training to staff in the use of the AEDs as well as scheduling CPR and 
First Aid for staff. 
  

c. Parent University  
The Rincon Valley School District has set a priority to increase our 
parent and community engagement.  The Rincon Valley Union School 
District Parent University and Resource Fair is a way to accomplish 
this.  The event is scheduled for Saturday October 21st at Matanzas 
Elementary.  There will be parent workshops and a resource fair from 
9-12 and an optional picnic lunch from 12-1.  This event is open to all 
of the families in our district.  Some of the parent workshops are:  
Cyber-Safety, Overview of Restorative Practices, Supporting your 
Child’s Transition to Middle School and Helping your Child with Math 
Homework.  Some of the Resource Fair Participants are: Redwood 
Empire Food Bank, Rincon Valley Education Foundation, Santa Rosa 
Parks and Recreation, Safe Routes to School and the Sonoma County 
Libraries.  Limited child care is offered on a pre-registration basis only. 
 

 Human Resources 
 

13.5 Professional Development Plan for Site Administrators  
Dr. Roehrick reported on the Site Administrator Professional Development 
Plan for 2017-18. The focus this year is to build a coherent, district-wide 
definition of effective instructional practice in our core subjects among our site 
and district administrative team.   Therefore, the professional development focus 
for our administrative team this year is to build that level of coherence utilizing a 
framework of instruction developed by the University of Washington Center for 
Educational Leadership (CEL). Our next steps are to begin this work with CEL 
and then work closely with teachers to familiarize their understanding of CEL 
instructional framework and how it compliments our own Four Pillars of High 
Quality Instruction.  
 

14. ACTION 
  
 Instruction 
 

14.1 Declaring that Each Pupil in the District has Sufficient Textbooks and/or 
Instructional Materials, 2017-2018, Resolution #09-17-02 



 

8 
 

 Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to declare that Rincon Valley Union 
School District has provided each student with sufficient textbooks and/or 
instructional materials for 2017-18, Resolution #09-17-02:  Unanimous. 

 
 Fiscal 
 
 14.2 2016-2017 Unaudited Actual Report, Rincon Valley Union School District 

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to approve the district’s financial 
transactions for FY2016-2017:  Unanimous. 
Dr. Joe Pandolfo summarized the report and answered questions from the 
Board. 

 
14.3 Resolution #09-17-03, GANN Limit 

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to approve the annual GANN 
Limit, Resolution #09-17-03:  Unanimous. 

   
14.4 Resolution #09-17-04, a resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Rincon 

Valley Union School District, Sonoma County, California, authorizing the 
issuance of Rincon Valley Union School District (Sonoma County, 
California) election of 2014 general obligation bonds, Series B, and actions 
related thereto 

 Mr. Gospe moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to approve Resolution #09-17-04, 
which approves the issuance of $17 million of current interest general 
obligations, which are authorized to be sold at a negotiated sale to Piper Jaffrey 
as well as approve the form of the Purchase Contract and the form of the 
Preliminary Official Statement, which is pending current information:  Unanimous. 

   
Bond Counsel, Mr. Andrew Clark, was present to review the documents with the 
Board and answer their questions. 

 
 Human Resources 
 

14.5 Revised Employee Salary Schedule / Confidential and Classified 
Supervisory 

 Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve the revised salary 
schedules to include longevity for nonrepresented classified confidential and 
supervisory employees:   Unanimous. 
 

 14.6 Job Description – Assistant Superintendent for Student Services 
Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve the job description for 
the position of Assistant Superintendent for Student Services:  Unanimous. 

 
14.7 Assistant Superintendent for Student Services Contract 
 Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mrs. Evers seconded to 

approve the contract for, Mrs. Cathy Myhers, Assistant Superintendent for 
Student Services:  Unanimous. 

   



 

9 
 

14.8 Behavioral Contracts 
Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to ratify the contract with “Gateway” 
for behavioral services:   Unanimous.  

   
 Governance 
 
 14.9 RVUSD Governance Handbook 2017-18 

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Cook seconded to approve the Rincon Valley Union 
School District Governance Handbook, 2017-18:  Unanimous. 

  
 14.10 Board/District Goals 2017-18 Cover Sheet and Governance Calendar 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mr. Cook seconded to approve the 2017-18 Board/District 
Goals cover sheet and revised Governance Calendar:  Unanimous. 

   
15. PERSONNEL 

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr.Gospe seconded to approve the following personnel items:  
Unanimous. 
 
15.1 Certificated – New Hires 

 Amy Bertalovitz, Long Term Sub, Matanzas, effective August 10, 2017 
 Rebecca Young, Sub Teacher, Binkley, effective August 10, 2017 

 
15.2 Classified – New Hires 

 Adiam Asgedom, Food Service Cook, Binkley, effective August 10, 2017 
 Rosa Reyes Diaz, Noon Duty I, Spring Creek, effective August 10, 2017 
 Christopher Barclay, Noon Duty I & Instructional Assistant, Binkley, effective 

August 14, 2017 
 Alaina Mitchell, Counseling Intern, District, effective August 14, 2017 
 Loree Wilson, Counseling Intern, District, effective August 14, 2017 
 Terrence Young, Sp. Ed. Instr. Assistant, RVP, effective August 21, 2017 
 Medy Lansangan, Substitute Food Service, District, effective August 24, 2017 
 Leticia Campos Ceja, Day Care Assistant, Madrone, effective August 30, 

2017 
 Alicia Graves, Library Clerk, Binkley, effective August 31, 2017 
 Lakshmi “Kiran” Acharya, Noon Duty I, Austin Creek, effective September 1, 

2017 
 Debra Winkelman, Instructional Assistant, Austin Creek, effective September 

5, 2017 
 Martha Chavez, SDC Sp. Ed. Instr. Assistant, RVP, effective September 6, 

2017 
 Miriam Maceda Arenas, Noon Duty I, Madrone, effective September 6, 2017 

 
15.3 Classified – Retirement 

Mrs. Evers commented on how she has enjoyed working with Barbara—very 
surprised to hear of her retirement.  Barbara Ziesche will be missed! 



 

10 
 

 Barbara Ziesche, Account Technician, District Office, effective November 30, 
2017:  Unanimous. 

 
15.4 Classified – Resignations 

 Olga Paz Zamora, Food Service Cashier, Spring Creek, effective August 8, 
2017 

 Carol Watson, SDC Sp. Ed. Instr. Assistant, Matanzas, effective September 
5, 2017 

 Debra Baldaramos, Instructional Assistant, Madrone, effective September 
8, 2017 

 
16. CSEA / RVUTA COMMENTS 
 RVUTA: Off to a positive year! 
 
17. BOARD OF TRUSTEE COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR 

INFORMATION 
 

Mr. Gospe:  Would like district to reach out to local high schools to recruit potential 
teachers. 
Mrs. Wood:   
-The annual reorganization meeting of the Board is coming up in December.  Board 
members need to be thinking about the President and Clerk positions. 
-Board members were reminded to complete the mandated reporter training on Child 
Abuse by September 29.   
-Board summary reports have been reformatted to assist with transparency to the Board 
and public. 
Mr. Cook: As site rep, Binkley is having a movie night on September 15 and some 
Madrone staff will possibly attend the “Museum of Tolerance” sponsored by SCOE  in 
November.  

 
18. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 Transportation Report 
 Single School Plans Progress on Goals 
 Middle School Programs 
 RVCS Charter Renewal 
 Facility Plan 2018 
 Teacher Evaluation Report 
 Parent Club Reports (School-Connected Organization Authorization) 
 Site Visits Report 
 William Settlement Complaint-Quarterly Report 
 Sunshine Proposals 
 Strategic Plans – Operations Departments 

 
19. ADJOURN 
 Mr. Gospe moved and Mrs. Evers seconded to adjourn the meeting at 8:55 p.m.: 
 Unanimous. 
 



 

11 
 

 
Tony Roehrick, Ed.D. 
Secretary to the Board of Trustees 



4/08 
 

 

Rincon Valley Union School District 
Williams Settlement 

Quarterly Uniform Complaint Report Summary 
 

Education Code §35186(d): A school district shall report summarized data on the nature and 
resolution of all complaints on a quarterly basis to the county superintendent of schools and the 
governing board of the school district.  The summaries shall be publicly reported on a quarterly 
basis at a regularly scheduled meeting of the governing board of the school district.  The report 
shall include the number of complaints by general subject area with the number of resolved and 
unresolved complaints.  The complaints and written responses shall be available as public 
records. 
 
Reporting Period: 
 

  January 1 – March 31, 2016  April 1 – June 30, 2016 
  July 1 – September 30, 2017  October 1 – December 31, 2017  

 
No complaints were received during the above time period.  
 
If you received any complaints during the above time period, please complete the 

following table. Enter “0” in any cell that does not apply. 
 

General Subject Area Complaints 
Received 

 

Complaints 
Resolved 

Unresolved 
Complaints 

Instructional Materials 
 

0 0 0 

Facilities 
 

0 0 0 

Teacher Vacancy and/or 
Mis-assignment 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

CAHSEE Intensive 
Instruction and Services 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
Total 

 
0   

 
0 

 
0 

 
 
 
Board meeting date: 10/10/17 
Date sent to County Superintendent of Schools: 10/11/17  
Sonoma County Office of Education 
5340 Skylane Blvd.  
Santa Rosa, CA 95403  
 











1 of 5

No. ______________

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

By this agreement made and entered into on the Tuesday, September 26, 2017, between the Rincon Valley
Union School District(hereinafter referred to as RVUSD) located 1000 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa, California
95405 and 360 Degree Customer Inc (hereinafter referred to as Consultant) located at 473 Sapena Ct, Ste # 7
Santa Clara, CA 95054, in consideration of their mutual covenants, the parties hereto agree as follows:

A. DUTIES OF CONSULTANT The Consultant shall provide the following Professional services, studies
and/or reports.

Provide direct therapy service; recommend equipment to carry out therapy program in consultation with
director, principals, teacher/school staff and parents. Continuous service unless contractor gives 45 day
notice or superintendent gives 45 day notice to terminate or amend.

B. CONTRACT PERIOD: The Consultant's work as specified in this agreement shall commence on Date as
specified in Addendum A

C. COMPENSATION For the full performance of this agreement, the RVUSD shall pay the Consultant as
follows: Consultant’s Fee:

a. For Consultant : Name of the Consultant and Rate as Specified in Addendum A
b. Consultant(s) will work for 5 FTE days (40 Hours per week) as per school year calendar

Payment to be made as follows: Payments to be made every month within 30 days of receipt of invoice.

D. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. INDEMNIFICATION:

a.) Except with regard to professional negligence, as provided in paragraph (b) below, the
Consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the (RVUSD ) and each of its, officers,
officials, employees, volunteers and agents from any and all loss, liability, fines, penalties,
forfeitures, costs and damages (whether in contract, tort or strict liability, including but not
limited to personal injury, death at any time and property damage) incurred by RVUSD , the
Consultant or any other person and from any and all claims, demands and actions in law or
equity (including reasonable attorney’s fees and litigation expense), arising or alleged to have
arisen directly or indirectly out of the active or passive negligence of the Consultant or any of its
employees or agents in the performance of this contract. The Consultant’s obligations under the
preceding sentence shall apply regardless of whether the RVUSD or any of its, officers, officials,
employees, volunteers or agents are actively or passively negligent, but shall not apply to any
loss, liability, fines, penalties, forfeitures, costs or damages caused solely by the active
negligence or by the willful misconduct of the RVUSD .

b.) Specifically regarding professional negligent errors or omissions, the Consultant shall indemnify,
hold harmless, and defend the RVUSD , its officers, officials, employees, volunteers or agents,
from any and all loss, liability, costs and damages (whether in contract, tort or strict liability,
including but not limited to personal injury, death at any time and property damage) incurred by
the RVUSD , the Consultant or any other person, and from any and all claims, demands and



2 of 5

actions in law or equity (including reasonable attorney’s fees and litigation expenses) incurred by
RVUSD , the Consultant, or any other person, to the proportionate extent that it arises out of or
in connection with the professional negligent errors or omissions of the Consultant in the
performance of this contract.

c.) If the Consultant should subcontract all or any portion of the work to be performed under this
agreement, the Consultant shall require each Sub-Consultant to indemnify, hold harmless and
defend the RVUSD, its officers, officials, employees and agents in accordance with the terms of
the preceding paragraphs.

2. NON-DISCRIMINATION No discrimination shall be made in the employment of persons under this
agreement because of the race, religion, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, political affiliations,
disability, medical condition, marital status, or sexual orientation.

3. CONFLICT OF INTEREST Before executing this agreement, the Consultant shall disclose to the
RVUSD the identities of any board member, officer, or employee of the RVUSD, or relatives thereof,
who the Consultant knows of should know will have any financial interest resulting from this agreement.

4. LICENSE AND AUTHORITY The Consultant will maintain all necessary licenses during the term of
this agreement. If other than a natural person, Consultant is duly authorized to enter into this
agreement by its governing or controlling body. Evidence or copies of all necessary licenses must
accompany this agreement.

5. EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES RVUSD and The Consultant will agree on all necessary equipment
and facilities to render services pursuant to this agreement.

6. ASSIGNMENT Without the written consent of the RVUSD, this agreement is not assignable by the
Consultant.

7. NON-SOLICITATION OF EMPLOYEES: RVUSD agrees to not solicit for hire employees of Contractor
for a period of not less than 3 (three) Year following the first date of that employee’s services to RVUSD.
After completion of 2 full billable year, RVUSD may hire the said employee after paying a referral fee to
contractor. This fee will be agreed between RVUSD and the contractor.

8. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. This agreement shall be binding on the heirs, executors, administrators,
successors, and assigns of the respective parties.

9. TIME. Time is the essence of this agreement.

10. GOVERNING LAW. The validity of this agreement and any of its terms or provisions as well as the
rights and duties of the parties hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the state of California.

11. WITHHOLDING. The RVUSD shall not withhold or set aside any money on behalf of the Consultant for
Federal Income Tax, State Income Tax, Social Security Tax, Unemployment Insurance, Disability
Insurance, or any other federal or state fund whatsoever.

12. CHANGES OR ALTERATIONS. No changes, alterations, or variations of any kind to this agreement
are authorized without the written consent of the RVUSD.

13. HEADINGS. All section headings contained herein are for clarification and convenience of reference
only and are not intended to limit the scope of any provision of the agreement.



3 of 5

14. TERMINATION. The RVUSD may terminate this agreement and be relieved of the payment of any
consideration to the Consultant should the Consultant fail to perform under this agreement. Either party
may also terminate this agreement upon 45 days written notice to other party with or without cause. In
the event of elective termination (without cause), RVUSD agrees to pay Consultant for work completed
to date of termination.

15. AMBIGUITY. The language herein shall be construed as jointly proposed and jointly accepted, and in
the event of any subsequent determination of ambiguity, all parties shall be treated as equally
responsible for such ambiguity.

16. COPYRIGHT. Any written or electronic media product produced as a result of this contract shall be a
work for hire and shall be the property of the RVUSD.

E. VENDOR IS A CONSULTANT AND NOT AN EMPLOYEE

This agreement is not a contract of employment. At all times the Consultant shall be deemed to be an
independent Consultant and is not authorized to bind the RVUSD to any contracts or other obligations, or to
state or imply that he or she is an employee or authorized representative of the RVUSD, or to utilize the
RVUSD’s letterhead or logo without the prior consent of the RVUSD. Each of the following factors, in
addition to other provisions of this Agreement, confirms the Consultant’s status as an independent Consultant
and not an employee. Except as otherwise set forth herein or agreed to by the parties in writing, the Consultant
and RVUSD agree to comply with each of the following factors as is necessary to maintain independent
Consultant status, each of which shall form a part of this Agreement:

INSTRUCTIONS The RVUSD shall provide job specifications and
instructions.

TRAINING The RVUSD shall provide training for workers.

RIGHT TO HIRE OTHERS The Consultant has the right to hire others to do
the actual work with approval of RVUSD.

WORK NOT ESSENTIAL TO RVUSD The RVUSD’s success or continuation does not
depend on the services of the Consultant.

TIME TO PURSUE OTHER WORK The Consultant may pursue other work during
term of agreement.

JOB LOCATION RVUSD controls the job location.

BASIS OF PAYMENT Payment shall be by the time expended.

WORK FOR MULTIPLE FIRMS The Consultant may work for multiple firms
simultaneously.

TOOLS & EQUIPMENT Tools and equipment for the job shall be provided
by RVUSD.

SERVICES AVAILABLE TO PUBLIC The Consultant’s services are available to the
general public.

RIGHT TO TERMINATE The Consultant may not be terminated except as
allowed for under the agreement.

PROGRESS REPORTS The Consultant will require making progress
report.

UNDERSTANDING AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE PARTIES: This Agreement constitutes the entire
understanding of the parties. The Contract Initiator’s and Consultant’s signatures below signify both an
understanding and acceptance of the contract provisions.



4 of 5

G. CONTRACT INITIATOR (RVUSD Representative) CONSULTANT
Signature:_____________________________ Signature:_________________________________
Date Signed:___________________________ Date Signed:_______________________________
Branch / Dept.:_________________________ Title: VP
Address (or Mail Code): _________________ Company Name & Address: 360 Degree Customer Inc
_____________________________________ 4423 Fortran Dr., Ste #114, San Jose, CA 95014
Phone / Fax:Ph:________________________ Phone: 408-689-2780
E-Mail Address:________________________ E-Mail Address: alex2@360customer.com



5 of 5

ADDENDUM – A

Name of the Personnel: Heather Way

Title: Speech Therapist

Rate : $92/hr

Contract Term: 2017-18 school year.

Start Date: Oct 10, 2017

Hours per Week: 40



1 of 5

No. ______________

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

By this agreement made and entered into on the Thursday, September 28, 2017, between the Rincon Valley
Union School District(hereinafter referred to as RVUSD) located 1000 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa, California
95405 and 360 Degree Customer Inc (hereinafter referred to as Consultant) located at 473 Sapena Ct, Ste # 7
Santa Clara, CA 95054, in consideration of their mutual covenants, the parties hereto agree as follows:

A. DUTIES OF CONSULTANT The Consultant shall provide the following Professional services, studies
and/or reports.

Provide direct therapy service; recommend equipment to carry out therapy program in consultation with
director, principals, teacher/school staff and parents. Continuous service unless contractor gives 45 day
notice or superintendent gives 45 day notice to terminate or amend.

B. CONTRACT PERIOD: The Consultant's work as specified in this agreement shall commence on Date as
specified in Addendum A

C. COMPENSATION For the full performance of this agreement, the RVUSD shall pay the Consultant as
follows: Consultant’s Fee:

a. For Consultant : Name of the Consultant and Rate as Specified in Addendum A
b. Consultant(s) will work for 5 FTE days (40 Hours per week) as per school year calendar

Payment to be made as follows: Payments to be made every month within 30 days of receipt of invoice.

D. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. INDEMNIFICATION:

a.) Except with regard to professional negligence, as provided in paragraph (b) below, the
Consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the (RVUSD ) and each of its, officers,
officials, employees, volunteers and agents from any and all loss, liability, fines, penalties,
forfeitures, costs and damages (whether in contract, tort or strict liability, including but not
limited to personal injury, death at any time and property damage) incurred by RVUSD , the
Consultant or any other person and from any and all claims, demands and actions in law or
equity (including reasonable attorney’s fees and litigation expense), arising or alleged to have
arisen directly or indirectly out of the active or passive negligence of the Consultant or any of its
employees or agents in the performance of this contract. The Consultant’s obligations under the
preceding sentence shall apply regardless of whether the RVUSD or any of its, officers, officials,
employees, volunteers or agents are actively or passively negligent, but shall not apply to any
loss, liability, fines, penalties, forfeitures, costs or damages caused solely by the active
negligence or by the willful misconduct of the RVUSD .

b.) Specifically regarding professional negligent errors or omissions, the Consultant shall indemnify,
hold harmless, and defend the RVUSD , its officers, officials, employees, volunteers or agents,
from any and all loss, liability, costs and damages (whether in contract, tort or strict liability,
including but not limited to personal injury, death at any time and property damage) incurred by
the RVUSD , the Consultant or any other person, and from any and all claims, demands and



2 of 5

actions in law or equity (including reasonable attorney’s fees and litigation expenses) incurred by
RVUSD , the Consultant, or any other person, to the proportionate extent that it arises out of or
in connection with the professional negligent errors or omissions of the Consultant in the
performance of this contract.

c.) If the Consultant should subcontract all or any portion of the work to be performed under this
agreement, the Consultant shall require each Sub-Consultant to indemnify, hold harmless and
defend the RVUSD, its officers, officials, employees and agents in accordance with the terms of
the preceding paragraphs.

2. NON-DISCRIMINATION No discrimination shall be made in the employment of persons under this
agreement because of the race, religion, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, political affiliations,
disability, medical condition, marital status, or sexual orientation.

3. CONFLICT OF INTEREST Before executing this agreement, the Consultant shall disclose to the
RVUSD the identities of any board member, officer, or employee of the RVUSD, or relatives thereof,
who the Consultant knows of should know will have any financial interest resulting from this agreement.

4. LICENSE AND AUTHORITY The Consultant will maintain all necessary licenses during the term of
this agreement. If other than a natural person, Consultant is duly authorized to enter into this
agreement by its governing or controlling body. Evidence or copies of all necessary licenses must
accompany this agreement.

5. EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES RVUSD and The Consultant will agree on all necessary equipment
and facilities to render services pursuant to this agreement.

6. ASSIGNMENT Without the written consent of the RVUSD, this agreement is not assignable by the
Consultant.

7. NON-SOLICITATION OF EMPLOYEES: RVUSD agrees to not solicit for hire employees of Contractor
for a period of not less than 3 (three) Year following the first date of that employee’s services to RVUSD.
After completion of 2 full billable year, RVUSD may hire the said employee after paying a referral fee to
contractor. This fee will be agreed between RVUSD and the contractor.

8. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. This agreement shall be binding on the heirs, executors, administrators,
successors, and assigns of the respective parties.

9. TIME. Time is the essence of this agreement.

10. GOVERNING LAW. The validity of this agreement and any of its terms or provisions as well as the
rights and duties of the parties hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the state of California.

11. WITHHOLDING. The RVUSD shall not withhold or set aside any money on behalf of the Consultant for
Federal Income Tax, State Income Tax, Social Security Tax, Unemployment Insurance, Disability
Insurance, or any other federal or state fund whatsoever.

12. CHANGES OR ALTERATIONS. No changes, alterations, or variations of any kind to this agreement
are authorized without the written consent of the RVUSD.

13. HEADINGS. All section headings contained herein are for clarification and convenience of reference
only and are not intended to limit the scope of any provision of the agreement.



3 of 5

14. TERMINATION. The RVUSD may terminate this agreement and be relieved of the payment of any
consideration to the Consultant should the Consultant fail to perform under this agreement. Either party
may also terminate this agreement upon 45 days written notice to other party with or without cause. In
the event of elective termination (without cause), RVUSD agrees to pay Consultant for work completed
to date of termination.

15. AMBIGUITY. The language herein shall be construed as jointly proposed and jointly accepted, and in
the event of any subsequent determination of ambiguity, all parties shall be treated as equally
responsible for such ambiguity.

16. COPYRIGHT. Any written or electronic media product produced as a result of this contract shall be a
work for hire and shall be the property of the RVUSD.

E. VENDOR IS A CONSULTANT AND NOT AN EMPLOYEE

This agreement is not a contract of employment. At all times the Consultant shall be deemed to be an
independent Consultant and is not authorized to bind the RVUSD to any contracts or other obligations, or to
state or imply that he or she is an employee or authorized representative of the RVUSD, or to utilize the
RVUSD’s letterhead or logo without the prior consent of the RVUSD. Each of the following factors, in
addition to other provisions of this Agreement, confirms the Consultant’s status as an independent Consultant
and not an employee. Except as otherwise set forth herein or agreed to by the parties in writing, the Consultant
and RVUSD agree to comply with each of the following factors as is necessary to maintain independent
Consultant status, each of which shall form a part of this Agreement:

INSTRUCTIONS The RVUSD shall provide job specifications and
instructions.

TRAINING The RVUSD shall provide training for workers.

RIGHT TO HIRE OTHERS The Consultant has the right to hire others to do
the actual work with approval of RVUSD.

WORK NOT ESSENTIAL TO RVUSD The RVUSD’s success or continuation does not
depend on the services of the Consultant.

TIME TO PURSUE OTHER WORK The Consultant may pursue other work during
term of agreement.

JOB LOCATION RVUSD controls the job location.

BASIS OF PAYMENT Payment shall be by the time expended.

WORK FOR MULTIPLE FIRMS The Consultant may work for multiple firms
simultaneously.

TOOLS & EQUIPMENT Tools and equipment for the job shall be provided
by RVUSD.

SERVICES AVAILABLE TO PUBLIC The Consultant’s services are available to the
general public.

RIGHT TO TERMINATE The Consultant may not be terminated except as
allowed for under the agreement.

PROGRESS REPORTS The Consultant will require making progress
report.

UNDERSTANDING AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE PARTIES: This Agreement constitutes the entire
understanding of the parties. The Contract Initiator’s and Consultant’s signatures below signify both an
understanding and acceptance of the contract provisions.



4 of 5

G. CONTRACT INITIATOR (RVUSD Representative) CONSULTANT
Signature:_____________________________ Signature:_________________________________
Date Signed:___________________________ Date Signed:_______________________________
Branch / Dept.:_________________________ Title: VP
Address (or Mail Code): _________________ Company Name & Address: 360 Degree Customer Inc
_____________________________________ 4423 Fortran Dr., Ste #114, San Jose, CA 95014
Phone / Fax:Ph:________________________ Phone: 408-689-2780
E-Mail Address:________________________ E-Mail Address: alex2@360customer.com



5 of 5

ADDENDUM – A

Name of the Personnel: Diana

Title: Registered Nurse

Rate : $70/hr

Contract Term: 2017-18 school year.

Start Date: Oct 2, 2017

Hours per Week: 40







































Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.1 

Subject: School Closure and Fire Update 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent    

 
Background: On Monday, October 9, 2017, the greater Santa Rosa community was faced with a 

significant natural disaster as several fires raged through our community.  One 
result is that our RVUSD schools have needed to close since that date. 

Highlights: The purpose of this information item is for each department to provide information 
as to the status of our reopening our schools. 

Dr. Roehrick will report on the reopening of our schools and Human Service 
implications of the disaster, including staff members who have lost their homes.  

Dr. Pandolfo will report on the condition of facilities, including steps being teaken 
to ready them for staff and students, financial implications including state waivers 
and the delay of the selling of bonds. 

Dr. Metzger will report on the impact on curriculum and RVEF efforts to raise 
funds for our Rincon Valley community. 

Mrs. Myhers will report on the impact on our families and our steps to support 
students and staff once they return.  

Challenges: Reopening our schools following this natural disaster present many challenges, not 
the least is the existence of mandatory evacuations that impact three of our 
schools. 

Analysis: N/A  

Next Steps:  To be determined 

Attachments:   None. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Indeterminate  
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.2 

Subject:  Transportation Report 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent of Business 

                 Mrs. Sandi Pettey, Transportation Supervisor 
 
Background: The District’s transportation department operates its own fleet of busses and vans.   

An annual report is provided to the board by the transportation supervisor to 
update the department’s current status providing safe transportation to the 
District’s students. 

  

Highlights: There are several positive changes that are happening in the transportation 
department this year.   The department has collaboratively engaged in strategic 
planning and is excited to begin work on the plan.   The department is also 
finalizing the installation of the Z-Pass, which will track students and allow 
parents, teachers and District staff information regarding the loading and unloading 
of students, which is of great use when a child is reported to the District as lost.  
The system will also provide the location of the bus in route.  Additionally, the 
dispatch position that was added this year has greatly improved safety when 
manager is on break by providing support coverage for the full day. 

Challenges: The District has a shortage of drivers.  Van routes are being expanded to transport 
students who need transportation but can be transported via school van.    This is 
not a local problem, but there is county-wide, state-wide, and national shortage of 
school bus drivers.   

Analysis: Department is functioning well but has concerns about having adequate staff to 
cover all of the routes and field trips.   

Next Steps: Continue to recruit school bus drivers; consider ways to make the position more 
attractive.    

Attachments: List of current routes and fleet information 
 
Fiscal Impact: Information only. 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



2017/18 RVUSD BUS AND VAN ROUTES 10 ROUTES
AVE.

REG. ED DRIVER NAMES VEH. # AVE. HOURS STUDENTS COUNT HRS.
RT. 1 TOM PROSSER 12 5:00
RT.2 KELSEY POORE 14 5:00
RT.3 CRUZ ESCUTIA 17 5:00
SPEC. NEEDS
RT. A TONYA CASAREZ 102 6:32  6+1 W/C STUDENTS
RT.B JACKIE LEDOU 101 6:51 14+3 W/C STUDENTS
RT.C JOSY HAGSTROM 104/105 7:25  6+1 W/C STUDENTS
SPEC. NEEDS BUS AIDS
VAN RT.1 SHERRY CLARK TV‐3 5:55               8 STUDENTS 2 THERAPY'S  0:48
VAN RT.2 DENISE BISHOP TV‐4 5:00             10 STUDENTS
VAN RT.3 GUADALUPE VARGAS TV‐1 3:50               3 STUDENTS
VAN RT. 4 VACANT TV‐3 3:30             10 STUDENTS

STAND BY JUDITH DEHNERT       ALL  5:00
SUB DRIVER DAN THOMPSON    SMALL            ON CALL SPECIAL NEEDS ONLY



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.3 

Subject:  Rincon Valley Education Foundation Report 

Submitter:  Mrs. Katie Ruppe, Director   

 
Background: The Rincon Valley Education Foundation spent last year developing a strategic 

plan and a 2017-2018 work plan.                    
  

Highlights: 1. Changing the way we fund – giving for the following year as opposed to in 
arrears. 

 2.  Focusing on Science and the Arts.  Specifically, Science Facilitators, Site 
Dollars, Fine Arts Days and one hands-on science based assembly. 

 3.  Board being reorganized and moving away from school liaisons.  Creating 
“PTAG” – the Parent Teacher Alliance Group. PTAG will be the liaison between 
schools, parent clubs and teachers, and will be responsible for one school/RVEF 
event on each site. 

 4.  Reorganized the Ask Campaign.  Developed new video and have been 
emphasizing the % of donors per school. 

 5.  Developing a “Multi-Year” donor campaign that will aid us in developing 
sustainability.   

 6.  Identifying and submitting grant request in the hopes of subsidizing some of the 
program areas we want to fund.  

 7.  Coordinating three major events:  Ask Lunch, Wii Bowling Tournament, and 
Dinner/Auction. 

 8.  Continuing with our sporting event nights:  i.e.:  Warriors, Giants and A’s, and 
After School Enrichment. 

  

Challenges: The biggest challenge that RVEF faces is increasing our donor database.  Despite 
enthusiasm, commitment and clear funding priorities, we are still struggling with 
identifying what motivates someone to give.  In addition, there are no patterns that 
have been predictable, which is proving very frustrating.  Also, Rincon Valley 
continues to be perceived as well off compared to other districts.    

Analysis: RVEF is working to identify key stakeholders, as well as community members, 
that are in a position to give consistently over time.  We are also researching and 
pursuing applicable grants, recruiting new board members, while maintaining a 
connection with our schools and parent population.   



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 

Next Steps: RVEF  is in the process of hiring an “assistant”, that will be able to manage some 
of the day-to-day operations that are time consuming with the hope of freeing up 
the Executive Director to focus on the bigger picture.  We are: identifying loyal 
existing donors who have the capacity to make a $1,000 annual gift and are 
selecting 20 prospects to contact to cultivate;  publishing an online directory in lieu 
of the printed one; coordinating fund raising events that will bring in both the 
community and schools; reorganizing our board structure and writing policies.  

Attachments: Rincon Valley Education Foundation Strategic Plan  
 
Fiscal Impact: Donation to the district for use next year 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



 
RVEF 2017-18 Goals and Objectives Reporting Dashboard 
Updated 7.17.17 

1

Rincon Valley Education Foundation 
Strategic Plan: July 1, 2017-June 30, 2022 

 
 

2017-18 Progress Toward Goals and Objectives  
 
 

Color Key 
 On-track to accomplish objective; High certainty objective will be achieved; 

Objective has been accomplished 
 Obstacles to accomplishing objective must be overcome 

 
 In danger of not accomplishing objective; Objective was not accomplished 

 
 Objective is no longer relevant to the Strategic Plan; Objective has  been 

removed 
 
 
FUND DEVELOPMENT: Provide $1.6 million to support science and arts programming in the 
Rincon Valley Unified School District. 
1. Conduct an annual back-to school Giving Campaign targeting families and school staff. 
2.  Establish and implement a multi-year major donor giving program for individual/family donors 

contributing $1,000+. 
3.  Develop and implement a corporate giving program to provide underwriting for all projects, events, 

and fundraisers. 
4.  Obtain funding and volunteer assistance from local service clubs. 
5.   Co-sponsor with each school's Parent Club one annual fundraiser per school, with proceeds going 

to the foundation. 
6.  Conduct an annual signature fundraiser dinner-dance-auction in April.  
7. Conduct an annual fundraising luncheon in October with a science and art theme and speaker; 

Present annual foundation and district goals/activities. 
8. Conduct an annual Wii Bowling Tournament as a fundraiser. 
9. Sell tickets to sporting events. 
10. Sell flowers and music CDs at winter concerts. 
11. Sell beer and wine at one Montgomery Village concert per year. 
12. Participate in an established community fundraising event to raise funds for 6th grade science 

camp. 
13. Cultivate and identify a donor willing to provide the initial major seed gift to start the Endowment. 
14. Raise $270,000 in funds during 2017-18. Allocate $80,000 toward operational costs and $190,000 in 

donations to the RVUSD. 
 
 
PROGRAM MANAGEMENT: Plan and implement programs that support science and arts 
programming and after-school enrichment in the Rincon Valley Unified School District. 
15. Offer 3 sessions per year (fall, winter, and spring) of after-school enrichment programming. 

 
16. Offer 6 weeks of summer camp programming each summer. 

 
17 Manage the implementation of the annual district-wide Art & Science Show--include opportunities 

for families to have their children's art transformed into useable products. 



 
RVEF 2017-18 Goals and Objectives Reporting Dashboard 
Updated 7.17.17 

2

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
18. Each year, select and hire one artist per grade for Fine Arts Day at all 10 schools. 
19. Work with the teachers and principals of the 2 middle schools to develop annual school-specific plans 

for how funding will be allocated to support the middle school science program. 
20. Establish guidelines for how Site Council Funding may be used and then each year work with each 

school site to determine how the school wishes to use its dedicated funding. 
21. Provide on-line school directories for 10 schools. 

 
 
OUTREACH: Engage community members, businesses, and nonprofit organizations to 
support the Rincon Valley Unified School District. 
22.  
 

Establish a Business Advisory Board of 7 members to meet 4 times per year to identify ways that 
RVEF businesses can partner with RVEF to support the educational needs of students.  

23.  
 

Establish formal partnerships between specific interested schools and businesses to support 
the educational needs of the students at the partner schools. 

24. 
 

Ensure that stakeholders know what the foundation is funding by placing RVEF tags on 
purchased equipment and through targeted communication. 

25. Develop and distribute a monthly e-newsletter to 4,000+ community members. 
26. Update the RVEF website to reflect the foundation's future direction and then keep the website 

current. 
 
 
GOVERNANCE: Ensure that the Rincon Valley Education Foundation has effective 
leadership and sound operations to enable the foundation to achieve its goals and fulfill its 
mission. 
27. Hire a part-time administrative assistant to support the work of the Executive Director. 
28. 
 

Eliminate the board requirement to have a representative from each school serve on the board. 
Identify specific competencies needed on the board and then fill board positions to match needs. 

29. 
 

Establish the RVEF Parent-Teacher Advisory Group (PTAG) that will meet 8 times per year to 
serve as a liaison between each school and the foundation.  

30. Review and amend by-laws of the Board of Directors to align with new board structure and 
processes. 

31. 
 

Develop and conduct an annual board orientation program, supplemented by on-going training, as 
needed. 

32. 
 

Ensure the following board committees have appropriate membership, develop annual goals, meet 
regularly, and report regularly on progress: Events, Marketing, Governance, and Fund Development. 

33. Conduct an annual board assessment and use findings to improve governance practices. 
34. 
 

Provide an annual evaluation of the Executive Director and provide opportunities for the 
Executive Director's professional development. 

35. Select and use a donor database to track all donor prospect contacts and donations. 
36. 
 

Work with RVUSD leadership to obtain end-of-year reporting on how all funds donated to the district 
by the foundation are spent and the specific outcomes achieved.  

37. Work with the RVUSD leadership to provide funding to the district in advance, as opposed to in 
arrears. 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.4 

Subject:  Curriculum & Instruction Report – Middle School Programs 

Submitter:  Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum 

      
 
Background:    

The RVUSD Governing Board and District staff began studying and planning for a “refresh” of 
our middle school programs in the 2015-16 school year. After going through a process with EMC 
Research and holding a Board study session on the topic, we convened a committee that included 
middle school administrators and teachers, district administration, and a Board representative. 
The committee met several times during the 2016-17 school year and recommendations from the 
committee were shared with the Board in June 2017. 

Highlights: 

While the committee made many recommendations, we have specifically implemented three 
academic actions this year: 
 
2a. Strengthen Project Based Learning (PBL) and cross-curricular integration throughout 
the instructional program.  
This year RVCS staff is participating in a year-long professional development specifically 
designed for them. Teachers and administrators have input into the design of the PD and the 
learning builds on itself. We are accomplishing this through a custom-service agreement with 
SCOE. 
 
2b. Review and amend the report card and allow for GPA calculation to improve 
articulation with local high schools.  
After getting staff input, the report card was revised over the summer. The revised Family Report 
Card Guide is close to completion and all parents will receive a copy with the Trimester 1 report 
card.  
 
2g. Examine curriculum adoption options to support core instruction. 
Through extensive discussion with the ELA department and administrators, we purchased English 
3D for intervention with Long Term English Learners (LTELs). Both campuses are implementing 
the program. Other curriculum adoptions are not needed this school year. Science will probably 
be the next adoption in 2018-19. 

Challenges: 

2g. Examine curriculum adoption options to support core instruction. 
We are continuing to discuss math instruction.  While we are not sure the EngageNY Math 
program is the right program for our middle school, the concern is primarily pacing on a block 
schedule. If the block schedule were modified or eliminated, this could significantly affect math 
instruction. 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
  

Analysis:  

It is too early to evaluate outcomes of these actions, but anecdotal feedback is positive so far. 

Next Steps:  

We will monitor and measure the outcomes this year: 
 2a: staff surveys to evaluate PBL projects and student outcomes; student feedback 
 2b: parent and teacher surveys to evaluate new report card as a helpful tool 
 2g: monitor student achievement outcomes for our LTEL students. 

 
 
Attachments: Middle School Report Card 
 
Fiscal Impact: None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



 Grade 7  Report Card
Year:

 Student:

Trimester

School:   Rincon Valley Charter School-  ATTENDANCE 1st 2nd 3rd 

Matanzas  Days Enrolled

 Days Absent

 Days Tardy

 Achievement Marks

 A Strong Mastery of Content / Scholarly Attributes  Scholarly Attributes Grade consists of:

 B Mastery of Content / Scholarly Attributes  Completes work on time

 C Making Steady Progress towards Content Mastery / Scholarly Attributes  Produces quality work

 D Making Limited Progress towards Content Mastery / Scholarly Attributes  Comes prepared to class

 F Insufficient Evidence to Demonstrate Content Mastery/Scholarly Attributes  Classroom behavior is conducive to learning

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

page 1 of 2

 Trimester 3

LANGUAGE ARTS

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

 MATHEMATICS

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

 SCIENCE

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

HISTORY

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3



Grade 7 Report Card Student:

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

rev. Aug 2017 page 2 of 2

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

PHYSICAL ED.      

AND HEALTH

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

ELECTIVE

 Trimester 1 

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3  Trimester 3

(If Applicable) BAND 

or ORCHESTRA

 Trimester 1 

 Trimester 2 

 Trimester 3

END-OF-YEAR STUDENT PORTFOLIO                  
(Trimester 3 only)

Learning Supports 
(if services received)

IEP
504 

Plan
GATE EL Grade Point Average (GPA)

 Trimester 1  Trimester 1



 Grade 7  Report Card
Year:

 Student:

Trimester

School:   Rincon Valley Charter School-  ATTENDANCE 1st 2nd 3rd 

Sequoia  Days Enrolled

 Days Absent

 Days Tardy

 Achievement Marks

 A Strong Mastery of Content / Scholarly Attributes  Scholarly Attributes Grade consists of:

 B Mastery of Content / Scholarly Attributes  Completes work on time

 C Making Steady Progress towards Content Mastery / Scholarly Attributes  Produces quality work

 D Making Limited Progress towards Content Mastery / Scholarly Attributes  Comes prepared to class

 F Insufficient Evidence to Demonstrate Content Mastery/Scholarly Attributes  Classroom behavior is conducive to learning

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

page 1 of 2

 Trimester 3

LANGUAGE ARTS

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

 MATHEMATICS

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

 SCIENCE

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

HISTORY

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3



Grade 7 Report Card Student:

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

rev. Aug 2017 page 2 of 2

 Trimester 3

PHYSICAL ED.      

AND HEALTH

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

ELECTIVE

 Trimester 1 

 Trimester 2

(If Applicable) BAND 

or ORCHESTRA

(If Applicable)   

French Studies

 Trimester 1 

 Trimester 2 

 Trimester 3

 Trimester 2  Trimester 2

 Trimester 3  Trimester 3

END-OF-YEAR STUDENT PORTFOLIO                  
(Trimester 3 only)

Learning Supports 
(if services received)

IEP
504 

Plan
GATE EL

 Trimester 1 

 Trimester 2 

 Trimester 3

Grade Point Average (GPA)

 Trimester 1  Trimester 1



 Grade 8  Report Card
Year:

 Student:

Trimester

School:   Rincon Valley Charter School-  ATTENDANCE 1st 2nd 3rd 

Matanzas  Days Enrolled

 Days Absent

 Days Tardy

 Achievement Marks

 A Strong Mastery of Content / Scholarly Attributes  Scholarly Attributes Grade consists of:

 B Mastery of Content / Scholarly Attributes  Completes work on time

 C Making Steady Progress towards Content Mastery / Scholarly Attributes  Produces quality work

 D Making Limited Progress towards Content Mastery / Scholarly Attributes  Comes prepared to class

 F Insufficient Evidence to Demonstrate Content Mastery/Scholarly Attributes  Classroom behavior is conducive to learning

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

page 1 of 2

 Trimester 3

LANGUAGE ARTS

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

 MATHEMATICS

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

 SCIENCE

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

HISTORY

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3



Grade 8 Report Card Student:

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

rev. Aug 2017 page 2 of 2

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

PHYSICAL ED.      

AND HEALTH

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

ELECTIVE

 Trimester 1 

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3  Trimester 3

(If Applicable) BAND 

or ORCHESTRA

 Trimester 1 

 Trimester 2 

 Trimester 3

END-OF-YEAR STUDENT PORTFOLIO                  
(Trimester 3 only)

Learning Supports 
(if services received)

IEP
504 

Plan
GATE EL Grade Point Average (GPA)

 Trimester 1  Trimester 1



 Grade 8  Report Card
Year:

 Student:

Trimester

School:   Rincon Valley Charter School-  ATTENDANCE 1st 2nd 3rd 

Sequoia  Days Enrolled

 Days Absent

 Days Tardy

 Achievement Marks

 A Strong Mastery of Content / Scholarly Attributes  Scholarly Attributes Grade consists of:

 B Mastery of Content / Scholarly Attributes  Completes work on time

 C Making Steady Progress towards Content Mastery / Scholarly Attributes  Produces quality work

 D Making Limited Progress towards Content Mastery / Scholarly Attributes  Comes prepared to class

 F Insufficient Evidence to Demonstrate Content Mastery/Scholarly Attributes  Classroom behavior is conducive to learning

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

page 1 of 2

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

 SCIENCE

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

HISTORY

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

 Trimester 1

LANGUAGE ARTS

 Trimester 1

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

 MATHEMATICS



Grade 8 Report Card Student:

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

  Content  Scholarly Trimester Comments, Goals, and Next Steps:

 Mastery Grade   Attributes Gr    Grade (only if indicated)

rev. Aug 2017 page 2 of 2

 Trimester 3  Trimester 3

 Trimester 2 

 Trimester 3

END-OF-YEAR STUDENT PORTFOLIO                  
(Trimester 3 only)

Learning Supports 
(if services received)

IEP
504 

Plan
GATE EL Grade Point Average (GPA)

 Trimester 1  Trimester 1

 Trimester 2  Trimester 2

 Trimester 1 

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

ELECTIVE

 Trimester 1 

 Trimester 2

 Trimester 3

(If Applicable)   

French Studies

 Trimester 1 

 Trimester 2 

 Trimester 3

(If Applicable) BAND 

or ORCHESTRA

 Trimester 1

PHYSICAL ED.      

AND HEALTH



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.5 a 

Subject:  Rincon Valley Partnership 

Submitter:  Mrs. Cathy Myhers, Assistant Superintendent of Student Services 

     
 
Background: On July 1, 2017, the Rincon Valley Union School District began the day-to-day 

administration of the Rincon Valley Partnership.  Denise Reich was hired as the 
new Program Manager and has quickly become a strong leader for the program.  
The Rincon Valley Partnership (RVP) consists of 2 Preschool Speech Programs, 5 
Preschool Special Day Class Programs and 9 Primary Special Day Class Programs.    

  

Highlights: One of the highlights is the number of students who are participating with their 
general education peers in school activities.  The focus of the new administration is 
to support each student in having the opportunity to interact with his or her typical 
peers.  Students are attending field trips, participating in lessons, playing together 
at recess and having lunch together, on many of our campuses.   

Challenges: Change is the biggest challenge.  Every effort is being made to make changes to 
the existing program in a slow and thoughtful way.  It will take time to get to know 
all of the students and to have a better understanding of the needs of each program.   

Analysis: The current RVP staff have been very collaborative and flexible.  A new program 
was added this year and some classrooms were moved.  These changes enhance 
the ability to support our partnering districts and the students we serve.  Significant 
progress has been made in our collaborating with private preschools to be able to 
offer a continuum of options to our preschool students.   

Next Steps: We are looking into the possibility of opening a district operated preschool 
program this spring.  This will allow the RVP to offer mainstreaming or inclusion 
opportunities to preschool students.  At this time, we must contract with outside 
agencies to offer these levels of educational placement.   

Attachments: None  
 
Fiscal Impact:  No new impacts at this time 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.5 b 

Subject:  Parent University 

Submitter:  Mrs. Cathy Myhers, Assistant Superintendent of Student Services 

     
 
Background: Parent engagement is a priority across all of the District Goals.  One of the ways 

the District is reaching out to parents is through our first annual Parent University 
and Resource Fair.  This event is being held on Saturday, October 21, 2017 at 
Matanzas Charter School.    

  

Highlights: An exciting highlight is that 15minutes after the sign-up was opened, people began 
signing up for workshops.  There are currently 12 workshops being offered and 24 
Resource Fair participants.   

Challenges: The biggest challenge is that this is the first year for this event.  Once we have held 
the event, we will have the ability to make changes to things that did not work for 
future events, and to repeat portions that were successful.   

Analysis: It is exciting to see the event come together and the willingness of people to be 
involved in the planning.  There are strands of workshops to meet the needs of 
ALL parents and a wide variety of community organizations at the Resource Fair.   

Next Steps: The next steps are to hold the event and document what we would like to continue 
or do differently for next year.   

Attachments:  None 
 
Fiscal Impact: Minimal at this time 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.6 

Subject:  Bond Rating Agency Report 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent of Business 

      
 
Background: When a School District sells bonds, it is required to make a presentation to rating 

agencies so that the agencies can determine the credit worthiness of the District 
debt and provide a rating.  A high rating will save taxpayers money by lowering 
the interest rate of the bonds.  The presentations were Made September 18th and 
19th to S&P Global and Moody’s Investor Services, who both provided 
independent ratings.  

Highlights: The District credit worthiness was rated very highly by both rating agencies.  S&P 
Global rated the District as AA and Moody’s assigned a rating of Aa2.   These are, 
realistically as high a rating as a District the size of Rincon Valley USD can obtain 
and is in approximately the top 20th percentile for all school district ratings. 

Challenges: Factors that could lead to an eventual downgrade of this rating were listed as 
material loss of reserves, and reduction in the number of interdistrict transfer 
students. 

Analysis: The board should be commended for providing sound and prudent fiscal policy, 
which is the main reason for the sound financial position of the district.   

Next Steps: The bonds will be sold in the next few weeks with proceeds deposited into Fund 21 
to be spent on the facilities program.   

Attachments:  Rating agency letters issued by S&P Global and Moody’s Investor Services 
 
Fiscal Impact: The lower rating will collectively save taxpayers in the District tens of thousands 

of dollars over the life of the bond 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Summary:

Rincon Valley Union Elementary
School District, California; General
Obligation

Primary Credit Analyst:

David Mares, Centennial (303) 721-4700; david.mares@spglobal.com

Secondary Contact:

Chris Morgan, San Francisco (1) 415-371-5032; chris.morgan@spglobal.com

Table Of Contents

Rationale

Outlook

Related Research

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT SEPTEMBER 29, 2017   1



Summary:

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District,
California; General Obligation

Credit Profile

US$17.0 mil GO bnds (Election Of 2014) ser B due 08/01/2042

Long Term Rating AA/Stable New

Rincon Vy Un Elem Sch Dist GO bnds

Long Term Rating AA/Stable Affirmed

Rincon Vy Un Elem Sch Dist GO

Unenhanced Rating AA(SPUR)/Stable Affirmed

Many issues are enhanced by bond insurance.

Rationale

S&P Global Ratings assigned its 'AA' long-term rating to Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District, Calif.'s

general obligation (GO) election of 2014 series B bonds. At the same time, S&P Global Ratings affirmed its 'AA'

long-term rating and underlying rating (SPUR) on the district's existing GO debt. The outlook is stable.

Unlimited ad valorem taxes levied on taxable property in the district secure the GO bonds. The Sonoma County Board

of Supervisors has the power and obligation to levy these taxes at the district's request for the bonds' repayment. The

series B bonds will be used to finance the modernization and construction at two schools, as well as to upgrade

air-conditioning units throughout the district.

The rating is reflective of our view of the district's:

• Access to San Francisco Bay Area's diverse, growing economy and employment base, coupled with very strong

income indicators and extremely strong wealth indicators;

• Stable average daily attendance (ADA) trend, which will provide stable revenue expectations;

• Trend of very strong available fund balances; and

• Low-to-moderate debt burden.

Partially offsetting these factors, in our opinion, is the district's reliance on the state to support its operations, and our

revised view of the district's financial management assessment (FMA).

Economy

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District is located in Sonoma County, approximately 55 miles north of San

Francisco, encompasses an area of approximately 50 square miles, and serves an estimated population of 41,712. It

provides education to students from kindergarten through sixth grade and operates three elementary schools, five

dependent charter schools, and one dependent seventh- and eighth-grade charter school.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT SEPTEMBER 29, 2017   2



The district and greater region's economy is concentrated in agriculture, financial services, and information

technology, though the district is more residential in nature, with 79% of assessed value (AV) dedicated to housing. AV

grew by a total of 11.4% since 2016 to $6.6 billion in 2018, mainly due to the increasing value of homes within the

district. At $157,544 per capita, the 2018 market value totals $6.6 billion, which we consider extremely strong. The city

of Santa Rosa, which is within the district, is the largest city in the northern Bay Area. In addition, the district's

residents have access to the broad and diverse San Francisco Bay Area MSA for employment opportunities. Median

household and per capita effective buying incomes (EBI) in the district are very strong at 135% and 143% of national

levels, respectively. Roughly 3.7% of AV comes from the 10 largest taxpayers, representing a very diverse tax base in

our opinion.

Finances

General purpose funding for California school districts is determined by a formula based primarily on average daily

attendance (ADA), grade levels served, and share of students served that are English language-learners, low to

moderate income, or foster youth. Most school districts are funded through a combination of state general fund

revenues and local property tax revenues, up to the amount determined by formula. For these districts, increases or

decreases in ADA can lead to increases or decreases, respectively, in general purpose funding under the formula. ADA

increased overall from 2014 to 2017 and totaled in at 3,434 students in 2017, nearing its capacity. The district has been

able to mitigate its capacity by actively managing its waitlist for inter-district transfers. With a well-managed and

predictable ADA, the district is better suited to budget its revenues under the state funding formula.

From fiscal 2011 through 2016, the district has reported general fund surpluses. The most recent audited year, fiscal

2016, resulted in a $2 million surplus and an available fund balance of 29% of expenditures, which is very strong in our

opinion. In 2006, district voters approved a parcel tax that was renewed by voters in 2016. The parcel tax provides the

district with additional budgetary flexibility and provided the district with $1.1 million in 2017, which was 2.7% of its

operating revenues.

The district uses this parcel tax to fund its core programs, which include music, technology, and library. Additionally,

the district receives an additional $3 million in the form of "basic aid supplemental funding" from the state, which the

district receives due to certain qualifications. District officials note that this revenue is moved annually into its special

reserve fund for Capital Outlay Projects (Fund 40) to utilize these funds for one-time facility renovations or

construction.

Unaudited actuals project a nominally small general fund deficit in fiscal 2017, as a textbook adoptions contributed to

slightly larger expenditures. The district has also projected similar small deficits through fiscal 2020, though the district

notes its actual results are typically stronger than budgeted.

Management

We have revised the district's management practices to standard from good under our FMA methodology. The

revision reflects our view of the district's budget to actual reporting practices, and its long-term capital improvement

policy. Highlights include:

• Budget-to-actuals presented to the board on interim basis: first interim, second interim, and estimated/budget

adoption during the year;

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT SEPTEMBER 29, 2017   3

Summary: Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District, California; General Obligation



• Compliance with a state interim financial reporting framework that requires at least two intra-year reports outside of

the budget cycle;

• Master facilities plan developed in 2014, though it is not a rolling plan and does not include project timelines.

District additionally maintains bond projects list;

• The district invests in the county investment pool, as mandated by the state, and reports holdings and earnings

performance to the board annually;

• A formal debt management policy adopted in compliance with Senate Bill (SB) 1029 that provides qualitative

guidelines for issuing debt (for more information, see "California's Passage Of SB-1029's Formal Debt Management

Policy Requirement Could Improve Our View Of Credit Quality," published Nov. 22, 2016); and

• Formal reserve policy requiring a reserve of 15% of expenditures, or for economic uncertainty. The district has

historically maintained reserves well above minimum.

Debt

Overall net debt is 0.8% of market value and $1,310 per capita, which we believe to be low. With 41% of the district's

direct debt scheduled to be retired within 10 years, amortization is slower than average. Debt service carrying charges

were 8.3% of total governmental fund expenditures, excluding capital outlay in fiscal 2016, which we consider

moderate. The series B bonds represent the final issuance from the district's 2014 authorization. The district noted it

does not expect to issue any further debt in the next 12-18 months.

Overall debt includes $2.5 million, which the district issued as variable rate COPS in 2009 and $12.5 million which the

district issued as direct placement in fiscal 2012 to refund certain maturities of the 2004GO bonds. After reviewing the

documents, which do not include terms for principal acceleration, we believe these transactions do not possess any

contingent liquidity risk.

Pension and other postemployment benefit liabilities

The district paid its full required contribution of $2.6 million toward its pension obligations in fiscal 2016, or 5.2% of

total governmental expenditures. Also the district paid $123,000 or 0.2% of total governmental expenditures toward its

other postemployment benefit (OPEB) obligations in fiscal 2016. Combined pension and OPEB carrying charges

totaled 5.5% of total governmental fund expenditures in 2016.

The district participates in defined-benefit pension plans managed by the California State Teachers' Retirement System

(CalSTRS) and the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS). Using updated reporting standards in

accordance with Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) Statement No. 67 and 68, the district's net pension

liability as of June 30, 2016, was $23.3 million for CalSTRS and $8.2 million for CalPERS. CalSTRS, its largest plan,

maintained a funded level of 74%, using its fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability. The

district has incorporated the respective systems' scheduled employer contribution rate increases into its financial

planning.

Outlook

The stable outlook reflects our expectation that the district will be able to maintain its very strong available fund

reserve due to its control of its ADA, as well as additional revenue flexibility due to the parcel tax and basic aide

supplemental funding. We do not expect to change the rating during the outlook's two-year horizon.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT SEPTEMBER 29, 2017   4

Summary: Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District, California; General Obligation



Upside scenario

Should the district improve and maintain a very strong level of reserves, accompanied by a strengthening of its

financial policies and procedures, we could raise the rating.

Downside scenario

We could lower the ratings if the district sustains a structural imbalance that results in fund balances that fall below

levels that we consider very strong such that the ratings are no longer comparable to its peers.

Related Research

Alternative Financing: Disclosure Is Critical To Credit Analysis In Public Finance, Feb. 18, 2014

Certain terms used in this report, particularly certain adjectives used to express our view on rating relevant factors,

have specific meanings ascribed to them in our criteria, and should therefore be read in conjunction with such criteria.

Please see Ratings Criteria at www.standardandpoors.com for further information. Complete ratings information is

available to subscribers of RatingsDirect at www.globalcreditportal.com. All ratings affected by this rating action can

be found on the S&P Global Ratings' public website at www.standardandpoors.com. Use the Ratings search box

located in the left column.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT SEPTEMBER 29, 2017   5

Summary: Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District, California; General Obligation



WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT SEPTEMBER 29, 2017   6

STANDARD & POOR’S, S&P and RATINGSDIRECT are registered trademarks of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC.

S&P may receive compensation for its ratings and certain analyses, normally from issuers or underwriters of securities or from obligors. S&P reserves the right to disseminate
its opinions and analyses. S&P's public ratings and analyses are made available on its Web sites, www.standardandpoors.com (free of charge), and www.ratingsdirect.com
and www.globalcreditportal.com (subscription), and may be distributed through other means, including via S&P publications and third-party redistributors. Additional
information about our ratings fees is available at www.standardandpoors.com/usratingsfees.

S&P keeps certain activities of its business units separate from each other in order to preserve the independence and objectivity of their respective activities. As a result,
certain business units of S&P may have information that is not available to other S&P business units. S&P has established policies and procedures to maintain the
confidentiality of certain non-public information received in connection with each analytical process.

To the extent that regulatory authorities allow a rating agency to acknowledge in one jurisdiction a rating issued in another jurisdiction for certain regulatory purposes, S&P
reserves the right to assign, withdraw or suspend such acknowledgment at any time and in its sole discretion. S&P Parties disclaim any duty whatsoever arising out of the
assignment, withdrawal or suspension of an acknowledgment as well as any liability for any damage alleged to have been suffered on account thereof.

Credit-related and other analyses, including ratings, and statements in the Content are statements of opinion as of the date they are expressed and not statements of fact.
S&P’s opinions, analyses and rating acknowledgment decisions (described below) are not recommendations to purchase, hold, or sell any securities or to make any
investment decisions, and do not address the suitability of any security. S&P assumes no obligation to update the Content following publication in any form or format. The
Content should not be relied on and is not a substitute for the skill, judgment and experience of the user, its management, employees, advisors and/or clients when making
investment and other business decisions. S&P does not act as a fiduciary or an investment advisor except where registered as such. While S&P has obtained information from
sources it believes to be reliable, S&P does not perform an audit and undertakes no duty of due diligence or independent verification of any information it receives.

No content (including ratings, credit-related analyses and data, valuations, model, software or other application or output therefrom) or any part thereof (Content) may be
modified, reverse engineered, reproduced or distributed in any form by any means, or stored in a database or retrieval system, without the prior written permission of
Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC or its affiliates (collectively, S&P). The Content shall not be used for any unlawful or unauthorized purposes. S&P and any third-party
providers, as well as their directors, officers, shareholders, employees or agents (collectively S&P Parties) do not guarantee the accuracy, completeness, timeliness or
availability of the Content. S&P Parties are not responsible for any errors or omissions (negligent or otherwise), regardless of the cause, for the results obtained from the use
of the Content, or for the security or maintenance of any data input by the user. The Content is provided on an “as is” basis. S&P PARTIES DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE, FREEDOM
FROM BUGS, SOFTWARE ERRORS OR DEFECTS, THAT THE CONTENT’S FUNCTIONING WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR THAT THE CONTENT WILL OPERATE WITH ANY
SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE CONFIGURATION. In no event shall S&P Parties be liable to any party for any direct, indirect, incidental, exemplary, compensatory, punitive,
special or consequential damages, costs, expenses, legal fees, or losses (including, without limitation, lost income or lost profits and opportunity costs or losses caused by
negligence) in connection with any use of the Content even if advised of the possibility of such damages.

Copyright © 2017 by Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC. All rights reserved.



U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

CREDIT OPINION
29 September 2017

New Issue

Contacts

Sunny Zhu 415-274-1721
Analyst
sunny.zhu@moodys.com

Helen Cregger 415-274-1720
VP-Sr Credit Officer
helen.cregger@moodys.com

CLIENT SERVICES

Americas 1-212-553-1653

Asia Pacific 852-3551-3077

Japan 81-3-5408-4100

EMEA 44-20-7772-5454

Rincon Valley Union School District, CA
New Issue – Moody's assigns Aa2 to Rincon Valley USD, CA's
Election of 2014 GO Bonds, Series B

Summary Rating Rationale
Moody's Investors Service has assigned an Aa2 rating to Rincon Valley Union School District,
CA's $17.0 million Election of 2014 General Obligation (GO) Bonds, Series B. Concurrently,
we affirmed the Aa2 rating on the district's outstanding GO bonds, affecting $33.9 million.

The Aa2 rating reflects the district's healthy tax base poised for continued moderate growth,
residents' above-average socioeconomic profile, and a solid financial position supported by
formal reserve policies. The rating also incorporates the district's moderate debt and pension
burden, and low OPEB obligation.

The rating further considers the above average strengths of California school districts’ general
obligation bonds. Not only are these GOs secured by a voter-approved, unlimited property
tax pledge, the proceeds of which are constitutionally restricted for debt service payment, but
Sonoma County, rather than the district, will levy, collect, and disburse the GO tax proceeds.

Credit Strengths

» Healthy tax base growth in recent years

» Above-average socioeconomic profile

» Solid financial position supported by conservative fiscal practices and formal reserve
policies

Credit Challenges

» Increasing pension costs

» Small size of operations

Rating Outlook
Outlooks are usually not assigned to local government credits with this amount of debt
outstanding.

Factors that Could Lead to an Upgrade

» Significant and sustained increase in the district's assessed value

» Sustained strong financial operations and maintenance of reserves at current levels

https://www.surveygizmo.com/s3/1133212/Rate-this-research?pubid=PBM_1089786


MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

Factors that Could Lead to a Downgrade

» Protracted decline in the district's assessed value (AV)

» Material deterioration in financial position, including reserves

» Significant loss in interdistrict transfer students (17.6% of current enrollment)

Key Indicators

Exhibit 1

Rincon Valley Union School District, CA 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Economy/Tax Base

Total Full Value ($000)  $     4,918,989  $     4,922,344  $     5,050,531  $     5,612,629  $     5,899,146 

Full Value Per Capita  $         127,415  $        128,046  $         131,885  $        142,203  $         147,965 

Median Family Income (% of US Median) 134.7% 140.3% 140.5% 136.2% 136.2%

Finances

Operating Revenue ($000)  $           31,572  $          48,108  $           35,271  $          40,308  $           45,195 

Fund Balance as a % of Revenues 33.6% 22.3% 28.6% 29.7% 27.6%

Cash Balance as a % of Revenues 29.0% 21.6% 32.5% 41.7% 42.9%

Debt/Pensions

Net Direct Debt ($000)  $          28,455  $           29,912  $          29,304  $          46,550  $          44,363 

Net Direct Debt / Operating Revenues (x) 0.9x 0.6x 0.8x 1.2x 1.0x

Net Direct Debt / Full Value (%) 0.6% 0.6% 0.6% 0.8% 0.8%

Moody's - adjusted Net Pension Liability (3-yr average) to Revenues (x) N/A 1.2x 2.0x 2.0x 1.9x

Moody's - adjusted Net Pension Liability (3-yr average) to Full Value (%) N/A 1.1% 1.4% 1.4% 1.5%

Source: Rincon Valley Union School District, Moody's Investor Service

Detailed Rating Considerations
Economy and Tax Base: Growing Tax Base with Above-Average Socioeconomic Profile
The district serves the eastern portion of the City of Santa Rosa (Aa2/NOO) in Sonoma County, 55 miles north of San Francisco (Aa1/
Stable). In 2018, the district's tax base reached $6.6 billion, reflecting a 5.6% growth from 2017, and a 33.6% cumulative increase from
the recent recession, during which the district's tax base contracted 8.0%. The district's $6.6 billion AV is above the median for Aa2-
rated school districts nationally ($4.7 billion), but below the median for Aa2-rated school districts in California ($12.7 billion). Going
forward, the district's tax base is poised for continued growth in the near-term from turnover of existing properties.

The district's tax base is diverse with the ten largest taxpayers comprising 3.8% of the 2018 AV, and no single taxpayer constituting
more than 0.7% of the total AV. The largest taxpayers include apartment complexes, shopping centers, vineyards, and commercial
owners.

The district's wealth measures are strong, with per capita income at $38,900 (128.3% of US) and median family income at $89,917
(136.2% of US). AV per capita of $166,497 is above the median for Aa2-rated school districts in California and nationally, which are
$140,145 and $106,721, respectively. The City of Santa Rosa's unemployment rate, which serves as a proxy for the district's, was 4.3%
in July 2017, below that of the nation (4.6%) and the state (5.4%).

Financial Operations and Reserves
With favorable enrollment trends and a history of fiscal prudence, the district has maintained a healthy financial position even through
the recession. Rincon Valley USD has a formal policy of maintaining a minimum general fund balance at 15.0% of annual expenditures,
which we view as a credit positive; over the last ten audited fiscal years, the district has maintained an average general fund balance

This publication does not announce a credit rating action. For any credit ratings referenced in this publication, please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entity page on
www.moodys.com for the most updated credit rating action information and rating history.

2          29 September 2017 Rincon Valley Union School District, CA : New Issue – Moody's assigns Aa2 to Rincon Valley USD, CA's Election of 2014 GO Bonds, Series B



MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

exceeding 20.0% of expenditures. With consistent healthy reserves, the district enacted very few service cuts during the recent
recession.

In recent years, the district’s revenues have strengthened from the funding enhancements made under the Local Control Funding
Formula (LCFF) and from state one-time funds for mandated cost reimbursements. Since 2006, the district's revenues have also
benefitted from a parcel tax which was recently extended for another twelve years at $96 per parcel, generating $1.1 million in annual
revenue.

In fiscal 2016, the district received $2.6 million in one-time state monies and generated $2.1 million in surplus, ending the fiscal year
with $12.1 million in its general fund (28.8% of revenues). Available operating fund balance, which for purposes of our analysis includes
the district's general fund, dependent charter school fund, and debt service fund, was $13.2 million, or 27.6% of revenues, as of fiscal
2016. Based on unaudited financials, the district drew $0.6 million from its general fund during fiscal 2017 to spend down one-time
state monies for capital outlay and district-wide textbook adoptions. Going forward, the district projects relatively balanced operations
with small draws on its general fund in the next three fiscal years. Given the district's overall conservative fiscal practices supported by
reserve policies, we expect the district to maintain its healthy financial position sufficient for the rating category.

The district's average daily attendance (ADA) has grown by approximately 780 students (30%) over the last decade as a result of its
strong academic reputation and offerings. Currently, 600 out of the district's 3,400 students are interdistrict transfers. Management
expects to maintain stable enrollment as the district has reached classroom capacity and has a waiting-list for students seeking to
transfer in.

LIQUIDITY
The district's net cash balance as of fiscal 2016 was $19.4 million, equal to a robust 42.9% of revenues. The district also has
approximately $6.1 million unrestricted monies (15.5% of revenues) in special revenue funds that can support general fund operations,
if needed.

Debt and Pensions
With the current issuance, the district will have $50.9 million general obligation bonds outstanding, along with $2.6 million of
certificates of participation paid by the general fund. The district's net direct debt burden of 0.8% of AV or 1.2 times operating revenues
remains moderate and in-line with other Aa2-rated school districts in California.

The current sale represents the final issuance under a $35.0 million authorization (2014 Election). The district does not anticipate going
to its voters for additional bond authorizations in the near future.

DEBT STRUCTURE
The district's debt profile includes fixed-rate current interest and capital appreciation general obligation bonds maturing through 2039,
as well as adjustable-rate certificate of participations maturing through 2031.

DEBT-RELATED DERIVATIVES
The district has no debt-related derivatives.

PENSIONS AND OPEB
The district’s certificated employees are members of the State Teachers' Retirement System (”STRS”). STRS provides retirement,
disability and survivor benefits to plan members and beneficiaries under a defined benefit program. Classified employees are members
of the Public Employees' Retirement System (”PERS”). Benefit provisions for both systems are established by the State statutes, as
legislatively amended from time to time.

Moody's three-year average adjusted net pension liability (ANPL) for the district, under our methodology for adjusting reported
pension data, is 1.9 times operating revenues or 1.4% of AV. Moody's ANPL reflects certain adjustments we make to improve
comparability of reported pension liabilities. The adjustments are not intended to replace the district's reported liability information,
but to improve comparability with other rated entities. Similar to most California school districts, pension costs will become an
increasing budget pressure as contribution rates increase over the next several years, which the district has incorporated in its multi-
year projections.

3          29 September 2017 Rincon Valley Union School District, CA : New Issue – Moody's assigns Aa2 to Rincon Valley USD, CA's Election of 2014 GO Bonds, Series B



MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

The district's other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liability is moderate. The OPEB obligation is being addressed on a pay-go basis,
and the unfunded liability was $1.8 million as of January 1, 2016, representing 35.9% of covered payroll. The district has eliminated
benefits for certificated employees hired after 1986 and classified employees hired after 2014. Benefits are provided until the age of 65,
with some extended coverage for those retirees with high numbers of years of service.

Management and Governance
Institutional Framework

California school districts have an Institutional Framework score of A, which is moderate compared to the nation. Institutional
Framework scores measure a sector's legal ability to increase revenues and decrease expenditures. California school districts' major
revenue sources are determined by the state government or, for the most part, can only be raised with voter approval. Ad valorem
property tax rates cannot be increased above 1% except to meet GO bond payments, and assessed valuation growth is also generally
limited to 2% annually unless a property changes ownership. Unpredictable revenue fluctuations tend to be moderate, or between 5%
and 10% annually. Across the sector, fixed and mandated costs are generally less than 25% of expenditures. However, California has
strong public sector unions and additional expenditure constraints, which limit the ability to make cuts. Unpredictable expenditure
fluctuations tend to be minor, under 5% annually.

Operating History

The district's five-year operating ratio through fiscal 2017 (unaudited) is 1.01 times. Management has traditionally taken a conservative
approach to budgeting and has effectively managed overall operations. The district's policy of maintaining its general fund reserve at
greater than 15.0% of expenditures is a credit positive.

Legal Security
The general obligation offering is secured by an unlimited property tax pledge of all taxable property within the district boundaries.
Debt service on the rated debt is secured by the district's voter-approved unlimited property tax pledge. The county rather than the
district will levy, collect, and disburse the district's property taxes, including the portion constitutionally restricted to pay debt service
on general obligation bonds.

Use of Proceeds
Proceeds of this issuance will provide for renovation and modernization projects across the district.

Obligor Profile
Rincon Valley Union School District is located in Sonoma County, California, approximately 55 miles north of San Francisco. The
district encompasses a total area of approximately 50 square miles, including areas of the City of Santa Rosa (Aa2/NOO) and certain
unincorporated areas in the County. The district operates three traditional elementary schools, five elementary conversion charter
schools, one affiliated charter middle school, and four special education programs. The district currently serves approximately 3,400
students.

Methodology
The principal methodology used in this rating was US Local Government General Obligation Debt published in December 2016. Please
see the Rating Methodologies page on www.moodys.com for a copy of this methodology.

Ratings

Exhibit 2

Rincon Valley Union School District, CA
Issue Rating
Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series
B

Aa2

Rating Type Underlying LT
Sale Amount $17,000,000
Expected Sale Date 10/11/2017

4          29 September 2017 Rincon Valley Union School District, CA : New Issue – Moody's assigns Aa2 to Rincon Valley USD, CA's Election of 2014 GO Bonds, Series B



MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

Rating Description General Obligation
Source: Moody's Investors Service

5          29 September 2017 Rincon Valley Union School District, CA : New Issue – Moody's assigns Aa2 to Rincon Valley USD, CA's Election of 2014 GO Bonds, Series B



MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

© 2017 Moody’s Corporation, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., Moody’s Analytics, Inc. and/or their licensors and affiliates (collectively, “MOODY’S”). All rights reserved.

CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE, INC. AND ITS RATINGS AFFILIATES (“MIS”) ARE MOODY’S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT
RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS MAY INCLUDE MOODY’S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE
RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES. MOODY’S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY
MAY NOT MEET ITS CONTRACTUAL, FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT. CREDIT RATINGS
DO NOT ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK, MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S
OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT. MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS MAY ALSO INCLUDE QUANTITATIVE
MODEL-BASED ESTIMATES OF CREDIT RISK AND RELATED OPINIONS OR COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY’S ANALYTICS, INC. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S
PUBLICATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT AND DO NOT
PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. NEITHER CREDIT RATINGS NOR MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS COMMENT ON THE
SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FOR ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR. MOODY’S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS AND PUBLISHES MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION
AND UNDERSTANDING THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL, WITH DUE CARE, MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR
PURCHASE, HOLDING, OR SALE.

MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY RETAIL INVESTORS AND IT WOULD BE RECKLESS AND INAPPROPRIATE FOR
RETAIL INVESTORS TO USE MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS OR MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS WHEN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION. IF IN DOUBT YOU SHOULD CONTACT
YOUR FINANCIAL OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER. ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, COPYRIGHT LAW,
AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED, REDISTRIBUTED
OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY
PERSON WITHOUT MOODY’S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY’S from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error as well
as other factors, however, all information contained herein is provided “AS IS” without warranty of any kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary measures so that the information it
uses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources MOODY'S considers to be reliable including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However,
MOODY’S is not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received in the rating process or in preparing the Moody’s publications.

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability to any person or entity for any
indirect, special, consequential, or incidental losses or damages whatsoever arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any
such information, even if MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors or suppliers is advised in advance of the possibility of such losses or
damages, including but not limited to: (a) any loss of present or prospective profits or (b) any loss or damage arising where the relevant financial instrument is not the subject of a
particular credit rating assigned by MOODY’S.

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability for any direct or compensatory
losses or damages caused to any person or entity, including but not limited to by any negligence (but excluding fraud, willful misconduct or any other type of liability that, for the
avoidance of doubt, by law cannot be excluded) on the part of, or any contingency within or beyond the control of, MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents,
representatives, licensors or suppliers, arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any such information.

NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY SUCH
RATING OR OTHER OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY’S IN ANY FORM OR MANNER WHATSOEVER.

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody’s Corporation (“MCO”), hereby discloses that most issuers of debt securities (including
corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. have, prior to assignment of any rating,
agreed to pay to Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. for appraisal and rating services rendered by it fees ranging from $1,500 to approximately $2,500,000. MCO and MIS also maintain
policies and procedures to address the independence of MIS’s ratings and rating processes. Information regarding certain affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO and
rated entities, and between entities who hold ratings from MIS and have also publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of more than 5%, is posted annually at
www.moodys.com under the heading “Investor Relations — Corporate Governance — Director and Shareholder Affiliation Policy.”

Additional terms for Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this document is pursuant to the Australian Financial Services License of MOODY’S affiliate, Moody’s Investors
Service Pty Limited ABN 61 003 399 657AFSL 336969 and/or Moody’s Analytics Australia Pty Ltd ABN 94 105 136 972 AFSL 383569 (as applicable). This document is intended
to be provided only to “wholesale clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. By continuing to access this document from within Australia, you
represent to MOODY’S that you are, or are accessing the document as a representative of, a “wholesale client” and that neither you nor the entity you represent will directly or
indirectly disseminate this document or its contents to “retail clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. MOODY’S credit rating is an opinion as
to the creditworthiness of a debt obligation of the issuer, not on the equity securities of the issuer or any form of security that is available to retail investors. It would be reckless
and inappropriate for retail investors to use MOODY’S credit ratings or publications when making an investment decision. If in doubt you should contact your financial or other
professional adviser.

Additional terms for Japan only: Moody's Japan K.K. (“MJKK”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Group Japan G.K., which is wholly-owned by Moody’s
Overseas Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MCO. Moody’s SF Japan K.K. (“MSFJ”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of MJKK. MSFJ is not a Nationally
Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (“NRSRO”). Therefore, credit ratings assigned by MSFJ are Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings. Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings are assigned by an
entity that is not a NRSRO and, consequently, the rated obligation will not qualify for certain types of treatment under U.S. laws. MJKK and MSFJ are credit rating agencies registered
with the Japan Financial Services Agency and their registration numbers are FSA Commissioner (Ratings) No. 2 and 3 respectively.

MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) hereby disclose that most issuers of debt securities (including corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred
stock rated by MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) have, prior to assignment of any rating, agreed to pay to MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) for appraisal and rating services rendered by it fees
ranging from JPY200,000 to approximately JPY350,000,000.

MJKK and MSFJ also maintain policies and procedures to address Japanese regulatory requirements.

REPORT NUMBER 1089786

6          29 September 2017 Rincon Valley Union School District, CA : New Issue – Moody's assigns Aa2 to Rincon Valley USD, CA's Election of 2014 GO Bonds, Series B

http://www.moodys.com


MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

Contacts

Sunny Zhu 415-274-1721
Analyst
sunny.zhu@moodys.com

Helen Cregger 415-274-1720
VP-Sr Credit Officer
helen.cregger@moodys.com

CLIENT SERVICES

Americas 1-212-553-1653

Asia Pacific 852-3551-3077

Japan 81-3-5408-4100

EMEA 44-20-7772-5454

7          29 September 2017 Rincon Valley Union School District, CA : New Issue – Moody's assigns Aa2 to Rincon Valley USD, CA's Election of 2014 GO Bonds, Series B



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.7 

Subject:  Highly Qualified Teachers 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: This information item is twofold.  The first purpose is to provide the Governing 
Board with information related to the certification status of each of our teachers.  
The second purpose is to report on the status of our teacher evaluation system for 
the current year. 
 

 The Williams Act first outlined the following three components.  The State of 
California, in developing the priority areas for the Local Control Accountability 
Plan, included these three components as part of the basic supports each district 
must address. 

1. Every student has the access to all core Board adopted curricular materials.  
Through resolution, the Board certified this finding last month.    

2. Every student is housed in facilities in good repair.  The Board is provided 
a status report on this item every quarter. 

3. Every student is assigned a teacher who is highly qualified and possesses 
the appropriate certification for the subject and/or grade level for which 
they are assigned.  The District verifies every student is assigned a highly 
qualified teacher through an annual review of the credentials of its teaching 
staff.  This report verifies that every teacher in Rincon Valley USD is 
highly qualified and possesses the appropriate credential for their 
assignment.  
 

Highlights: The following summarizes the number of teacher evaluations scheduled for the 
current school year. 

   Austin Creek:  8 teachers, 2 are temps/probs 
   Binkley:  8 teachers, 3 are temp/prob 
   Madrone:  6 teachers, 2 are temps/probs 
   Matanzas  7 teachers, 4 are temps/probs 
   Sequoia  9 teachers, 4 are temps/probs 
   Spring Creek:  6 teachers, 1 is a temp 

Village:  6 teachers, 5 are temps/probs 
Whited:  7 teachers, 3 are temps/probs 
RVCS Matanzas: 3 teachers, 1 is prob 

   RVCS Sequoia: 5 teachers, 2 are temp/probs 
RVP:   6 teachers, 1 is a temp 
Home Study:  3 teachers, 0 are temp/probs 
CT/Coordinators: 5 teachers, 0 are temp/probs 

 
   Totals:   79 teachers, 28 are temps/probs 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 

  

Challenges: Teacher evaluation is a critical responsibility of our site administrators.   Our 
evaluation system has been modified in recent years to ensure there is adequate 
time for administrators to conduct evaluations deeply and to build in time to 
discuss results from formal and informal observations.   

Analysis: While our teacher evaluation process has been refined, the District and RVUTA 
share an interest to move towards a new rubric that serves as the basis for teacher 
evaluation. 

Next Steps: The status of our teacher’s credentials matching their assignments will be reported 
in the individual School Report Cards to be approved by the Board in January.  
The evaluation process will be further negotiated with RVUTA during the current 
school year.   

Attachments:   None 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.8 

Subject:  Strategic Plan Update for Operations Departments 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent of Business 

 
Background: In September, staff presented purpose statements for the business, custodial, child 

nutrition, maintenance, technology, and transportation departments.  These 
purpose statements were collaboratively developed by the staff of each department 
using the District Mission Statement as a framework for their discussions.  Since 
September, each department has met and developed an action plan to address the 
purpose statement.  The plan’s development was led by the supervisor or manager 
in a collaborative process with input from the entire staff of each department. 

Highlights: The work of the departments provides the District with a concrete plan, which 
includes objectives and success indicators.   

Challenges: The District is almost 2 months into the school year and there is limited time for 
classified professional development.  The plans will also need some “fine tuning” 
before being finalized at next months meeting. 

Analysis: These plans provide an opportunity to more formally address the needs of the 
District to better serve the students and staff. 

Next Steps: If there is consensus from the board, staff will begin to implement the plans.   
Formal approval of the plans will be requested next month.  Changes may be made 
to plans based on input from the October board meeting. 

Attachments: Action Plans from each department 
 
Fiscal Impact: There is some limited costs for staff development that is in the current budget.   

Likely less than $10,000.  New software for the maintenance department will also 
be less than $10,000 and is in the current budget. 

  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



 

 

Rincon Valley Union School District 
2017‐18 Business Department Strategic Plan 

 
GOAL #1: The RVUSD Business Department maintain excellent customer service. 
 
Objective: 
1.1 Gain understanding of the level of customer service provided to the District 

1.2 Identify areas that need improvement 

A.  Conduct a baseline survey to Principals, Office Managers to determine current level of customer 

Service. 

B. Analyze data 

1.3 Develop procedures to address these areas  
1.4 Attend a District presentation on customer service 

Actions/Success Indicator:   
A. Survey sent by November 1, 2017 

B. Attend customer service training by November 1,  2017 

C. Discuss takeaways of customer service presentation at staff meeting 

D. Report on results by December 1, 2017 

E. Develop collaborative plan to improve customer service based on data by January 1, 2018 

 
GOAL #2: The RVUSD Business Department will increase efficiencies through documentation and the better use 
of technology. 
 
Objective: 
2.1 Desk Manuals will include use operating procedures and how to utilize software on each employee’s desk 

2.2 Update Business Office web page  
2.3 Review work to see if any documents can be stored electronically for retention and eliminate duplicate copies 

Actions/Success Indicator: 

A. Desk manuals will be created by each person by July 1, 2018, and be maintained, revised, and 

updated annually 

B. Business office staff will meet and evaluate current Business Office Web by December 1, 2017, and 

make suggestions for improvements 

C. Web site will be updated by July 1, 2018 and reviewed annually to ensure that the proper forms and 

information is current.  

D. Warehouse, and individual desk files will be reviewed by January 1, 2018 to ensure we are in 

compliance with Retention Policies, consolidate duplicate copies, and secure confidential files 

GOAL #3: The RVUSD Business Department will continue to learn and adopt current best practices. 

 
Objective: 
3.1 Continue Professional Development at the County Office/CASBO 

3.2 Review list of courses in Target Solutions with Director of Fiscal Services by November 1, 2017 and develop a 

professional development plan to complete courses by June 30, 2018 

Actions/Success Indicator: 

A. Business Office will continue to be present at County Office workshops and trainings 



 

 

B. By December 1, 2017, every member of the depart will have identified three assignments in Target 

Solution (including one to improve software skills) and will have completed these courses June 30, 

2018. 

C. The Business Office will continue to meet monthly after County DBUG meetings to disseminate 

pertinent information 

GOAL #4: The RVUSD Business Department will improve esprit de corp 

Objective: 
4.1 Improve communication within the Business Office 

4.2 Build and foster Business Office team relationships and morale 

4.3 Celebrate Success 

 

Actions/Success Indicator: 

A. The Business Office will continue to meet monthly to discuss any updates, changes, significant 

deadlines, etc 

B. The Business Office will have team outings (one in December and one in July) each year to celebrate 

and acknowledge the Department’s hard work. 

C. Collaboratively set norms that we will agree to work by.   



 

 

Rincon Valley Union School District 
2017‐18 Custodial Department Strategic Plan 

 
Goal #1 
The RVUSD Custodial Department will achieve and maintain excellent customer service. 
Objective: 

1.1  Gain understanding of the level of customer service provided to the School Sites 

1.2 Identify areas that need improvement 

A. Conduct a baseline survey to pertinent stakeholders to determine current level of customer 

Service. 

B. Analyze data 

1.3 Develop procedures to address areas needing attention including 
1.12   Attend a District presentation on customer service 

1.13   Report feedback to custodial by DIstrict and site 

Actions/Success Indicator   

A. Survey sent by November 1st 

B. Report on results by Jan. 1st 

C. Attend customer service training by March 1, 2018 

D. Feedback meeting with employee documented monthly by supervisor to measure 

improvement 

Goal #2 
The RVUSD Custodial department will increase efficiencies through the better use of technology. 
Action 

2.1 Staff to attend computer training for basic skill technology training   

2.2 Learn how to use/interpret the new electronic work order ticket system 

2.3 Learn how to use/interpret the electronic facility use request system 

 

Actions/Success Indicators 

A. Training for the new system will be completed by December 1, 2017 

B. New systems will be on‐line by January 1, 2018 

C. Comprehension will be determined by use of system with supervisor. 

Goal #3 

The RVUSD Custodial Department will continue to learn and adopt current best practices. 

Action 

3.1 Finalize training curriculum and use for monthly meetings 

3.2 Implement monthly Meetings  

Success Indicators 

A.  By March 1, 2018 the custodial curriculum will be finalized 

B. By June 30, 2018 the depart will have had 10 monthly meetings plus one additional inservice 



 

 

 

Goal #4 

The RVUSD Custodial Department will improve esprit de corp 

 

Objective 

4.1 Build and foster Custodial team relationships and morale 

4.2 Celebrate Success 

 

Actions/Success Indicators 

A. The Custodial Department will have a team outing each year to celebrate and acknowledge the 

Department’s hard work. 



 

 

Rincon Valley Union School District 
2017‐18 Food Service Department Strategic Plan 

 
Goal #1 
The RVUSD Food Service Department will achieve and maintain excellent customer service. 
Objective: 

1.1  Clearly Identify who the food service customers are 

1.2 Gain understanding of the level of customer service provided 

1.3 Identify areas that need improvement 

A.  Conduct a baseline survey to pertinent stakeholders to determine current level of customer 

Service. 

B. Analyze data 

1.4 Develop procedures to address these areas including 
1.12   Attend a training on customer service 

1.13  Have food manager supervisor conduct short on‐site  surveys and report back to 

individual     staff to provide feedback to improve service 

Actions/Success Indicator   

A. Survey sent by November 1st 

B. Report on results by Jan. 1st 

C. Attend customer service training by March 1, 2018 

D. Feedback meeting with employee documented weekly by supervisor 

Goal #2 
The RVUSD Food Service department will increase product marketing and brand recognition through 
the use of outreach programs. 
Action 

2.1 4.2Cooks and cashiers will promote the monthly food promotions and develop commitment from 

staff  to making it a fun event. 

2.2 Supervisor and staff will attend parent and/or school events to further promote food service 

department such as Parent University. 

 

Actions/Success Indicators 

A. Survey sent by January 1st 

B. Report results to individual staff to provide feedback to improve promotion. 

C. Increased student participation in food service program 

 

Goal #3 

The RVUSD Food Service Department will continue to learn and adopt current best practices. 

Action 

3.1 Finalize training curriculum and use for monthly meetings 



 

 

3.2 Implement monthly meetings  

Success Indicators 

A.  By June 30th, the depart will have had 10 monthly meetings, with 2 additional staff 

development days with 100% attendance rate. 

B. By March 1st the Food Service curriculum will be finalized 

 

Goal #4 
The RVUSD Food Service department will improve esprit de corp 
 
Objective: 

4.1 Build a foster Food Services team relationships and morale. 

4.2 Celebrate Success 

 

Actions/Success Indicators 
A. Food Services will have team outings each year to celebrate and acknowledge the 

Department’s hard work. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Rincon Valley Union School District 
2017‐18 Maintenance Department Strategic Plan 

 
Goal #1 
The RVUSD Maintenance Department will achieve and maintain excellent customer service. 
Objective: 

1.1  Gain understanding of the level of customer service provided to the District 

1.2 Identify areas that need improvement 

A.  Conduct a baseline survey to pertinent stakeholders to determine current level of customer 

Service. 

B. Analyze data 

1.3 Develop procedures to address these areas including 
1.12 Attend a District presentation on customer service 

1.13 Have maintenance supervisor review work tickets weekly and report back to individual 

staff to provide feedback to improve service 

Actions/Success Indicator   

A. Survey sent by October 1st 

B. Report on results by Jan. 1st 

C. Attend customer service training by March 1, 2018 

D. Feedback meeting with employee documented weekly by supervisor 

Goal #2 
The RVUSD Maintenance department will increase efficiencies through the better use of technology. 
Action 

2.1 Implement new electronic work order ticket system 

2.2 Implement an electronic facility use request system 

2.3 Develop maintenance web page  

Actions/Success Indicators 

A. Training for the new system will be completed by December 1, 2017 

B. New systems will be on‐line by January 1, 2018 

C. Monthly reports will be run and reviews with key personnel starting in February 

D. Web page will be on‐line by December 1, 2017 

Goal #3 

The RVUSD Maintenance Department will continue to learn and adopt current best practices. 

Action 

3.1 Finalize training curriculum and use for tailgate meetings 

3.2 Implement weekly Tailgate Meetings  

Success Indicators 

A.  By June 30th, the depart will have had 40 tailgate meetings 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
2017‐18 Information Technology Department Strategic Plan 

 
Goal #1: The Rincon Valley I.T. Department will achieve and maintain excellent customer 
service. 
 
Objective: 
1.1 Improve communication with end users. 
1.2 Evaluate the prioritization of work tickets. 
1.3 Identify areas of improvement. 
1.4 Utilize professional development opportunities. 
 
Action/Success Indicator: 

A. All work tickets should be completed within 48 hours. If this is not feasible, then a 
response should be added to the work ticket explaining why it will take longer, as well 
as, a realistic timeline for completion. 

B. Identify high need staff members and develop a criterion, which outlines prioritization 
levels based on equipment and number of users affected. 

C. Meet with site administrators to discuss site specific issues and develop a 
response/preventative maintenance plan to resolve issues. 

D. Plan and implement professional development on customer service. 
E. Create distribution material to better inform sites about I.T. department projects. 

 
Goal #2: The Rincon Valley I.T. Department will become more efficient in time utilization. 
 
Objective: 
2.1 Lower work ticket completion times. 
2.2 Develop methods to become better organized. 
2.3 Identify staffing needs per site. 
 
Action/Success Indicator: 

A. Identify trouble spots in the ticketing process and revise where appropriate. 
B. All work tickets should be completed or at minimum responded to within 48hours. 
C. Evaluate inventory to increase ticket response times. 
D. Establish appropriate times for shop maintenance and cleaning. 
E. Analyze work tickets by site to better allocate staff resources. 

 
Goal #3: The Rincon Valley I.T. Department will improve espirit de corps. 
 
Objective: 
3.1 Improve inter‐office communication. 
3.2 Increase collaboration and morale. 
3.3 Foster individual success. 



Action/Success Indicator: 
A. Implement weekly meetings to discuss issues in the district, as well as, and questions or 

concerns needing to be addressed. 
B. Utilize Technology and Customer Service professional development opportunities. 
C. Create bi‐annual events that encourage teamwork and recognize individual successes. 

 
Goal #4: Collaborate with field resources to increase productivity and minimize technology 
downtime to increase child productivity. 

 
Objective: 
4.1 Improve communication with field resources. 
4.2 Analyze utilization of technology spaces for 21st century learning. 
4.3 Empower field resources to provide expanded technology support to site personnel.  

 
Action/Success Indicator: 

A. Maintain weekly communications with field resources to understand site specific needs. 
B. Establish a technology committee to evaluate the district’s technology program and 

make recommendations to achieve 21st century learning objectives. 
C. Provide professional development opportunities and expand the responsibilities of field 

resources to better meet the day‐to‐day needs of their specific site. 
D. Meet face‐to‐face monthly with field resources to provide professional development 

opportunities, identify issues, and expand understanding of the Information Technology 
department’s purpose statement. 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
2017‐18 Transportation Department Strategic Plan 

 

Goal #1:  The Rincon Valley Transportation Department will achieve and maintain excellent customer 
service. 
 

Objective: 
1.1 Gain understanding of the level of customer service provided to the District. 

1.2 Identify areas that need improvement 

A. Conduct a baseline survey to the Principals, Teachers, randomly chosen 3 Special Needs       

families and 5 Regular Ed families. 

B. Analyze data 

1.3 Develop procedures to address these areas including 
1.4 Attend a District presentation on customer service. 

 

 Action/Success Indicator: 
A. Survey sent by November 1 , 2017 

B. Discuss takeaway of customer service presentation at monthly drivers meeting 

C. Report on results by December 1,2017 

D. Develop Collaborative plan to improve  customer service based on data by January 1,2018 

 

Goal #2:  The RVUSD Transportation Department will increase efficiencies through documentation and 
better use of technology. 
 

Objective: 
2.1  Implement new Zpass student/bus tracking software 

2.2   Develop Transportation web page.  

2.3  Driver handbook will include laws, regulations, and district policy 

 

 Actions/Success Indicators: 
A. Driver Handbooks will be maintained, revised, and updated annually to ensure that new 

laws and policies are current 

B. Zpass will be on‐line and training completed by Jan.1, 2018 

C. Web site will be up dated by December 1, 2018  and reviewed annually to ensure that the 

proper forms and information is current 

 

Goal  #3:      The  RVUSD  Transportation  Department  will  continue  to  learn  and  adopt  current  best 
practices. 
Action 
 

Objective: 
3.1  Continue driver safety training at monthly drivers meetings 

3.2  Continue to provide opportunities for drivers to receive their mandatory 10 hours of in‐service 

training per year.  

 

Success Indicator: 
  Drivers are current with all required certificate, in‐service training hours, DOT physicals, and First 

Aid training. 



 
Goal #4 The RVUSD Transportation Department will improve spirit de corp. 
 

Objective: 
4.1  Improve communication within the transportation Department 

4.2  Build and foster Transportation team relationships and morale 

4.3  Celebrate Success 

Actions/Success Indicator: 
A. The drivers will meet monthly to discuss any updates, changes. 

B. The  Transportation Department will  have  a  recognition  event  each  year  to  celebrate  and 

acknowledge the Department’s hard work. 

C. Collaboratively set norms that you will agree to work by.  



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.9 

Subject: Progress on 2016-17 Single Plan for Student Achievement Goals and 2017-18 
Goals 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

      
Background: Each year, schools provide a report to the Governing Board detailing the results of 

their prior year site goals.  These goals are aligned to the District LCAP.  Each of 
the schools has the identical English language arts, mathematics, and English 
learner goals and actions to meet the goals.  Individual schools created a unique 
fourth goal tied to school culture and aligned to the LCAP actions and services in 
this area.       

Highlights: The actions found to consistently be most effective for the various goals include: 

1. Goal 1, ELA:  SIPPS instruction in grades K-3 and using student 
assessment data to guide instruction. 

2. Goal 2, Math:  Increased professional development in NY Math and MTSS 
processes for students not meeting standards. 

3. Goal 3, English learners:  Purposeful instructional strategies. 
4. Goal 4, School Climate:  Strengthening school-based MTSS, monitoring 

attendance and social-emotional programs such as Restorative Practices. 

Challenges: Schools are making progress on implementing the actions defined in the LCAP.  
State testing results have improved.  However, certain subgroups of students 
continue to lag behind the performance demonstrated by other students.   

Analysis: Last year was the first year of the District narrowing the focus of the LCAP and 
then closely aligning the Single Plans to the LCAP.  Areas for improvement are in 
math for all students and ELA for English learners and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students.  Professional development in math and a focused 
designated ELD program should further progress made last year.  For school 
climate, schools have made very good progress in the development of their site-
based MTSS teams and our continuum of social-emotional programs is developing 
the tools and skills of our students. 

Next Steps: The template for the 2017-18 site-based Single Plan for Student Achievement has 
been developed and individual schools are developing their plans.  Our intent is to 
bring these plans for the Board to approve in November.  The template is aligned 
to the current LCAP.  SPSA Goal #1 is LCAP Goal #4 (growth in English 
language arts).  SPSA Goal #2 is aligned to LCAP Goal #5 (growth in 
mathematics).  SPSA goal #3 is LCAP Goal #6 (growth in reclassification for 
English learners).  Sites will have flexibility to customize SPSA Goal # 4, though 
it will be aligned to LCAP Goal #3 (safe learning environment).  We have included 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 

 a budget page for this year’s plan so it is easier to track how site-based resources 
have been allocated and utilized. 

 
Attachments:  Progress on 2016-17 Single School Plan Goals  

(a) Austin Creek    (e) Sequoia 
(b) Binkley    (f)  Village 
(c) Madrone    (g)  Whited 
(d) Spring Creek Matanzas  (h)  Rincon Valley Charter School  

 
2017-18 Single Plan Goals Template 

 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Austin Creek  
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 1 
 

  

School Goal 1:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with special attention to 3rd grade students.  
(LCAP Goal #4) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades K – 6 

Anticipated performance growth based on expected measureable 
outcomes for each group: (Base to Growth; 2015‐16 to 2016‐17) 

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd grade students meeting or exceeding the 
SBAC standard for language arts to 83% for 3rd and maintain the 98% 
of 6th grade students meeting of exceeding the SBAC standard for 
language arts.  

2. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged students 
meeting or exceeding the SBAC standard for language arts to 73%. 

3. 85% of students will meet or exceed local benchmarks at the end of 
2016-17 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Grade K – 2 students will take the DIBELS assessment three times per year. 
2. Grade 2 – 6 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
3. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT. 
4. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student reading progress in grades K-6 using formative, 
interim, and summative assessments – STAR Reading, SIPPS, 
CELDT, CAASPP interim, CAASPP and other district assessments 

Full 

Implement a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 SIPPS).  Full 

Expand and utilize the MTSS for students not meeting DIBELS 
screening, CAASPP, and/or local benchmark assessment targets.  

Partial 

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to measure school 
readiness of all Kindergarten students.  

Full 

Provide parent education that provides strategies for families to 
support reading skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and comprehension, 
for their children. 

Partial 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Full implementation of SIPPS reading instructional program for K-3  
 Expand and utilize the MTSS for students not meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or 

other local benchmark assessment targets 
 Assess student reading progress in grades K-6 using formative, interim, and summative 

assessments (e.g. STAR reading, SIPPS, CELDT, CAASPP interim, CAASPP, and other district 
assessments) 



Austin Creek  
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 2 
 

 
Description of the results: 

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd grade students meeting or exceeding the SBAC standard for language arts 
to 83% for 3rd and maintain the 98% of 6th grade students meeting of exceeding the SBAC standard for 
language arts.  

 In 2015-16, 80% of all third grade students met or exceeded SBAC ELA standard, in 2016-17 
85% of third grade students met or exceeded this standard. 

 In 2015-16, 98% of all sixth grade students met or exceeded SBAC ELA standard, in 2016-17 
90% of all sixth grade students met or exceeded this standard. 
 

2. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged students meeting or exceeding the SBAC 
standard for language arts to 73%. 

 In 2015-16, 65% of socio-economically disadvantaged students in grades 3-6 met or exceeded 
standard on the SBAC ELA, in 2016-17, 52% of social-economically disadvantaged students in 
grades 3-6 met or exceeded this standard. 
 

3.  85% of students will meet or exceed local benchmarks at the end of 2016-17 
 The spring 2017, STAR Reading report states that 88% of all students in grades 3-6 met 

or exceeded local benchmark 
 
Data supporting the results: 

 
K – 2nd on DIBELS:   

 In the fall of 2016-17, 94% of all K-2 students tested (177) met or exceeded standard, in 
the spring of 2016-17, 90% of all K-2 students tested (171) met or exceeded standard. 

 At the end of the 2015-16 school year, 94% of all K-2 students met or exceeded standard.   
 At the end of the 2016-17 school year, 90% of all K-2 met or exceeded standard. 

 
2nd – 6th STAR Reading:   

 In the spring of 2015-16, 92% of all second graders tested met or exceeded standard, in 
the spring of 2016-17, 89% of all second graders tested met or exceeded standard. 

 In the spring of 2015-16, 91% of all third graders tested met or exceeded standard, in the 
spring of 2016-17, 94% of all third graders tested met or exceeded standard. 

 In the spring of 2015-16, 85% of all fourth graders tested met or exceeded standard, in 
the spring of 2016-17, 86% of all fourth graders tested met or exceeded standard. 

 In the spring of 2015-16, 94% of all fifth graders tested met or exceeded standard, in the 
spring of 2016-17, 84% of all fifth graders tested met or exceeded standard. 

 In the spring of 2015-16, 87% of all sixth graders tested met or exceeded standard, in the 
spring of 2016-17, 90% of all sixth graders tested met or exceeded standard. 

 
CELDT:     

 70% of students who took the CELDT test in 2015-15 increased in performance when 
they took the CELDT test in 2016-17. 

 
 
 
 



Austin Creek  
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 3 
 

SBAC:              
 In the 2015-16 school year, 80% of all third graders tested met or exceeded standards, in 

2016-17, 85% of all third graders tested met or exceeded standards. 
 In the 2015-16 school year, 81% of all fourth graders tested met or exceeded standards, in 

2016-17, 79% of all fourth graders tested met or exceeded standards.  
 In the 2015-16 school year, 96% of all fifth graders tested met or exceeded standards, in 

2016-17, 77% of all fifth graders tested met or exceeded standards.  
 In the 2015-16 school year, 98% of all sixth graders tested met or exceeded standards, in 

2016-17, 90% of all sixth graders tested met or exceeded standards.  
  
 
Next Steps: 

 Progress monitor students not making measurable progress towards grade level standards 
using local district benchmark assessments, interim CAASPP, STAR Reading, DIBELS, and 
SIPPS. 

 Utilize MTSS for student not meeting assessment targets. 
 Hold data meetings with grade level teams and Student Support Coordinator to monitor 

student progress. 
 Provide targeted reading support for K-3 students not meeting assessment targets. 
 Provide targeted writing support for 4-6 students not meeting assessment targets. 
 Work with consulting teachers to support English language arts curriculum and instruction. 

 
 
  



Austin Creek  
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 4 
 

School Goal 2:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 8th grade students.  (LCAP Goal #5) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades K – 6 

Anticipated performance growth based on expected measureable 
outcomes for each group: (Base to Growth; 2015‐16 to 2016‐17) 

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd and 6th grade students meeting or 
exceeding the SBAC standard for math to 95% for 3rd grade and 82% 
for 6th grade. 

2. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged students 
meeting or exceeding the SBAC math to 58%. 

3. Establish a baseline for local benchmark assessments to ensure 
students are on track to meet 3rd and sixth grade SBAC standards 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Kindergarten students will take Math Benchmarks in the winter and spring. 
2. Grades 1 – 6 take a benchmark assessment three times per year. 
3. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student math progress in grades K-6 using formative, interim, 
and summative assessments – Local assessment – MobyMax, K-1 
district assessments, CAASPP interim, and CAASPP and/or local 
benchmark targets 

Partial  

Implement MTSS for students not meeting CAASPP and/or local 
benchmark targets.  

Partial 

Continue to provide support and professional development for teachers 
and principals towards full alignment of instruction to the new 
California State Math standards.  

Full 

Provide training to teachers and principals in the implementation of a 
new local math benchmark assessment.  

Full 

Provide parent education that strengthens parent understanding of the 
mathematical concepts and practices embedded within the new 
California State standards. 

Partial 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Continue to provide support and professional development for teachers and principals towards 
full alignment of instruction to the new California State Math Standards  

 Implement MTSS for students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets 
 Provide training to teachers and principals in the implementation of a new local benchmark 

assessment 
 



Austin Creek  
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 5 
 

 
Description of the results: 

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd and 6th grade students meeting or exceeding the SBAC standard for math to 
95% for 3rd grade and 82% for 6th grade. 

 In 2015-16, 94% of all third grade students met or exceeded SBAC Math standard, in 2016-17 
95% of third grade students met or exceeded this standard. 

 In 2015-16, 78% of all sixth grade students met or exceeded SBAC Math standard, in 2016-17 
75% of all sixth grade students met or exceeded this standard. 
 

2. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged students meeting or exceeding the SBAC math 
to 58%. 

 In 2015-16, 53% of socio-economically disadvantaged students in grades 3-6 met or exceeded 
standard on the SBAC Math, in 2016-17, 57% of social-economically disadvantaged students in 
grades 3-6 met or exceeded this standard. 
 

3. Establish a baseline for local benchmark assessments to ensure students are on track to meet 3rd and sixth 
grade SBAC standards 

 During the first year, 2016-2017, of MobyMax implementation as a local measure the data was 
found to be unreliable.   

 In addition, the Engage NY Curriculum end of unit assessments were also fount to not be a 
reliable measure of student comprehension. 

 
Data supporting the results: 

K on district Benchmark (winter):   
 At the end of the 2015-16 school year 93% of all K students tested met or exceeded 

standard, in 2016-17 
 
1st – 6th on district Benchmark:     

 During the first year, 2016-2017, of MobyMax implementation as a local measure the data was 
found to be unreliable.   

 In addition, the Engage NY Curriculum end of unit assessments were also fount to not be a 
reliable measure of student comprehension. 

 The 2016-17 data will be used to establish a baseline for 2017/18 expectations 
 

3rd – 6th on SBAC:              
 In 2015-16, 94% of all third grade students met or exceeded SBAC Math standard, in 2016-17 

95% of third grade students met or exceeded this standard. 
 In 2015-16, 61% of all fourth grade students met or exceeded SBAC Math standard, in 2016-17 

87% of fourth grade students met or exceeded this standard. 
 In 2015-16, 87% of all fifth grade students met or exceeded SBAC Math standard, in 2016-17 

71% of fifth grade students met or exceeded this standard. 
 In 2015-16, 78% of all sixth grade students met or exceeded SBAC Math standard, in 2016-17 

75% of sixth grade students met or exceeded this standard. 
 
 
 
 
 



Austin Creek  
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 6 
 

 
Next Steps: 

 Progress monitor students not making measurable progress towards grade level standards 
using local district benchmark assessments, interim CAASPP, MobyMax, Mid and End of 
Module ENY math assessments 

 Utilize MTSS for student not meeting assessment targets. 
 Hold data meetings with grade level teams and Student Support Coordinator to monitor 

student progress. 
 Provide targeted math support for 2-6 students not meeting assessment targets. 
 Work with consulting teachers to support math curriculum and instruction. 

  



Austin Creek  
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 7 
 

 

School Goal 3:  Every English Learner is on target and within timelines, as defined by State and local 
criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP).   (LCAP Goal #6) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this  

Grades K – 6 English 
Learners 

Anticipated performance growth based on expected measureable 
outcomes for each group: (Base to Growth; 2015‐16 to 2016‐17) 

1. Maintain AMAO 1 target for English learners to increase at least 
one CELDT level.  

2. Maintain AMAO 2a target for English learners who have been in 
US schools for 5 years or less will reach proficiency (level 4 or 5) 
on CELDT. 

3. 52.8% of English learners who have been in US schools for more 
that 5 years will reach proficiency (level 4 or 5) on CELDT 

4. 30% of English learners will be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP)  

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT. 
2. Grade 2 – 6 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
3. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Utilize MTSS to monitor English Learner students and provide 
additional support when needed to include intervention and targeted 
summer programs. 

Full 

Examine and pilot new designated ELD materials and adopt for the 
2017-18 school year.  

Full 

Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals toward full implementation of integrated ELD. 

Full 

Provide parents of English Learners support and resources in order for 
them to assist their children with homework.  

Partial 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Utilize MTSS to monitor English learner students and provide additional support when needed to 
include intervention and targeted summer programs 

 Examine and pilot new designated ELD materials and adopt for the 2017-2018 school year 
 Continue to provide support and professional development for teachers and principals toward full 

implementation of integrated ELD 
 
 
 
 



Austin Creek  
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 8 
 

Description of the results: 
1. Maintain AMAO 1 target for English learners to increase at least one CELDT level.  

 82% of students tested on the CELDT in 2014-15 made growth when tested in       
2015-16. 
 

2. Maintain AMAO 2a target for English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years or 
less will reach proficiency (level 4 or 5) on CELDT 

 54% of students tested for CELDT AMA0 2a, in 2015-16 reached proficiency level 
 

3. 52.8% of English learners who have been in US schools for more that 5 years will reach 
proficiency (level 4 or 5) on CELD 

 100% of students tested for CELDT AMAO 2b, in 2015-16 reached proficiency level 
 

4. 30% of English learners will be reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) 
 63% of students tested for CELDT in 2015-16 were redesignated fluent English 

proficient 
 

Data supporting the results: 
CELDT:   

 In the 2014-15 school year 71% of students tested on the CELDT AMAO 1 were 
proficient, in 2015-16 82% of students tested proficient. 

 In the 2014-15 school year 59% of students tested on the CELDT AMAO 2a were 
proficient, in 2015-16 54% of students tested proficient. 

 In the 2014-15 school year 60% of students tested on the CELDT AMAO 2b were 
proficient, in 2015-16 100% of students tested proficient. 

 
2nd – 6th on STAR Reading:     

 In the 2016-17 school year   78% of English learner students in grades 2-6 met or 
exceeded grade level expectations on the spring STAR Reading assessment 

 
3rd – 6th on SBAC:              

 In the 2015-16 school year, 84% of English learners and RFEP students, 19 total 
students, in grades 3-6 met or exceeded standard on the SBAC ELA, in 2016-17, 56% 
of English learners and RFEP students, 18 total students, in grades 3-6 met or 
exceeded standard. 

 In the 2015-16 school year, 84% of English learners and RFEP students,19 total 
students, in grades 3-6 met or exceeded standard on the SBAC Math, in 2016-17, 
50% of English learners and RFEP students, 18 total students, in grades 3-6 met or 
exceeded standard. 

 Data from English learner only students was not statistically significant.  
 
Next Steps: 

 Provide on-going professional development to certificated staff in ELD best practices 
 Support designated EL instruction in small groups by a credential teacher 
 MTSS progress monitor English learner and redesignated students 
 Regular data meetings with grade level teams and Support Coordinator 



Austin Creek  
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 9 
 

School Goal 4:  Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results 
in a safe learning environment.  (LCAP Goal #3) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:     
 
Grades K – 6 

Anticipated performance growth based on expected measureable 
outcomes for each group: (Base to Growth; 2015‐16 to 2016‐17) 

1. Maintain Austin Creek School P-2 attendance rate at 97% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students.  

2. Maintain Austin Creek School P-2 chronic absenteeism rate at 1% for 
all students and significant subgroups to include English learner, 
socio-economically disadvantaged, and special education students.  

3. Maintain Austin Creek School P-2 pupil suspension rate at 1% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students.  

4. Maintain Austin Creek School P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students.  

5. Increase the number of students who self-identify they attend a school 
with a positive school climate as measured by the district-wide local 
student climate survey 90% of students report "often"/"always" 
feeling safe at school and 92% of students reported being happy at 
school "often/always". 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Year-end school-wide attendance reports 
2. Monthly school-wide attendance reports 
3. Individual attendance contracts with targeted students and their families 
4. Administer results from spring Student Survey data for 2016-17 school year 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Daily Phone Calls to parents whose student is absent and did not notify 
the office. 

Full 

School counselor will set up SART and SARB meetings as necessary 
for families who are in jeopardy of truancy 

Full  

Principal will send home letter as needed to students and families 
facing attendance issues 

Full 

RTI Meeting with Kinder parents whose student is absent or tardy and 
would qualify to be SARTed if they met age criteria 

Full 

Monthly check-in with parents and students who are already under 
SARB contract 

 

Partial 



Austin Creek  
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 10 
 

Daily Attendance Awards for students who arrive on-time and ready to 
learn – names drawn randomly most days of the week 

Full 

Trimester Perfect Attendance Awards for students who have perfect 
attendance for an entire trimester 

Full  

Year Long Perfect Attendance Awards for students who have perfect 
attendance the entire year 

Full 

Train all students in school-wide behavior expectations at multiple 
times throughout the school year 

Full 

Hold Bi-monthly assemblies to reinforce positive behavior choices and 
good attendance 

Full  

Hold annual award assemblies for students who model excellent 
attendance, and positive academic and behavior choices for the school 
year 

Full  

Have teachers send home positive notes home to all students by the end 
of the year - teachers send home 2 or more notes per month 

Full 

Implement Restorative Practices in grades 4-6 and Kimochis in 
Kindergarten to increase social emotional learning 

Partial 

 

Actions found to be most effective: 
 All actions found to be effective 

 
Description of the results: 

1. Maintain Austin Creek School P-2 attendance rate at 97% for all students and significant subgroups to 
include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special education students.  

o 97% attendance rate maintained for all students during the 2016-17 school year.  
 

2. Maintain Austin Creek School P-2 chronic absenteeism rate at 1% for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special education students.  

o 1% of all students were chronically absent in the 2016-17 school year. 
 

3. Maintain Austin Creek School P-2 pupil suspension rate at 1% for all students and significant subgroups 
to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special education students.  

o 1% of all students were suspended in the 2016-17 school year. 
 

4. Maintain Austin Creek School P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and significant subgroups 
to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special education students.  

o 0% of all students were expelled in the 2016-17 school year 
 
 
 
 



Austin Creek  
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 11 
 

 
5. Increase the number of students who self-identify they attend a school with a positive school 

climate as measured by the district-wide local student climate survey 90% of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at school and 92% of students reported being happy at school 
"often/always". 

o In 2016-17, 87% of student respondents report they “always” or “often” feel safe at school. 
o In 2016-17, 90% of student respondents report they “always” or “often” feel happy at school. 

 
 
Data supporting the results: 
 
 Attendance Rate 

o In the 2015-16 school year, a 97% attendance rate was maintained for all students, in 
2016-17 a 97% attendance rate was maintained for all students 

 
 Chronic Absence Rate 

o In the 2015-16 school year, a 1% chronic absenteeism rate was maintained for all 
students, in 2016-17 a 1% chronic absenteeism rate was maintained for all students 

 
 Suspension Rate 

o In the 2015-16 school year, a 1% suspension rate was maintained for all students, in 
2016-17 a 1% suspension rate was maintained for all students 

 
 Expulsion Rate 

o In the 2015-16 school year, a 0% expulsion rate was maintained for all students, in 2016-
17 a 0% expulsion rate was maintained for all students 

 
 Student Survey Results 

o In 2015-16, 90% of student respondents reported that they “always” or “often” feel safe 
at school, in 2016-17, 87% of student respondents report that they “always” or “often” 
feel safe at school. 

o In 2015-16, 92% of student respondents reported that they “always” or “often” feel happy 
at school, in 2016-17, 90% of student respondents report that they “always” or “often” 
feel happy at school. 

 
 Physical Fitness Test 

o In 2015-16, 75% of students tested met a “Healthy Fitness Zone” in at least five out of six 
areas, in 2016-17, 56% of students tested met a “healthy Fitness Zone” in at least five out 
of six areas.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Austin Creek  
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 12 
 

 
Next Steps: 

 Continue to implement all current steps 
 Increase Noon Duty coverage through hired employees and community volunteers to increase 

lunch time options for students 
 Increase Noon Duty coverage to include opening the science lab to students by teacher invitation 

during lunch recess 
 Hold three awards assemblies per year to celebrate, excellent attendance, behavior choices, 

sportsmanship, academic and character development 
 Work with the parent club to build in some lunch time activities such as “Grand Parent Day” and 

“Bring your Parent to School day”  
 

 

 



Binkley Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 1 
 

  

School Goal 1:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with special attention to 3rd grade students.  
(LCAP Goal #4) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades K – 6 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. 74% to 70% of K – 2 students who took DIBELS (fall 2016 to spring 
2017) 

2. 66% to 67% of grade 2-6 students at or above benchmark on end of 
year STAR Reading  

3. 58% to 52% of students at or exceed standard on CAASPP 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Grade K – 2 students will take the DIBELS assessment three times per year. 
2. Grade 2 – 6 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
3. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT. 
4. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student reading progress in grades K-6 using formative, 
interim, and summative assessments (e.g. STAR Reading, SIPPS, 
CELDT, CAASPP interim, CAASPP and other district assessments) 

Full 

Implement a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 SIPPS).  Full 

Expand and utilize the MTSS for students not meeting DIBELS 
screening, CAASPP, and/or local benchmark assessment targets.  

Full 

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to measure school 
readiness of all Kindergarten students.  

Full 

Provide parent education that provides strategies for families to 
support reading skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and comprehension, 
for their children. 

Partial 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 



Binkley Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 2 
 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 K-3 systematic SIPPS instruction: Utilizing 6-8 trained personnel to deliver SIPPS instruction 3-
4 days per week at Kindergarten, first grade, and second grades throughout the school year.   

 
Description of the results: 

 K – 2nd on DIBELS: 70% of K-2 students scored at or above benchmark on the end of year 
DIBELS. Kindergarten DIBELS results: 61%. 1st Grade DIBELS results: 67%. 2nd Grade 
DIBELS results 85% 

 
 2nd – 6th STAR Reading: 67% of students scored at or above benchmark on the STAR Reading 

assessment. Third grade students were 67% at or above benchmark.  
 

 CELDT:    75% of students gained a CELDT level or more during 2016-2017 CELDT 
testing. (AMAO 1)  40% of Binkley ELs in US schools for 5 years or less reached proficiency 
level 4 or 5 on CELDT. 50% of Binkley ELs in US schools for 5 years or more reached 
proficiency level on CELDT. Annual CELDT will not be administers for the 2017-2018 school 
year.                           
 

 SBAC:  52% of students met or exceeded standards on the SBAC (or CAASPP) for English 
Language Arts. This was a decline in our scores from the previous school year.  In a breakdown 
of scores, our 6th grade saw an increased to 70% meeting or exceeding standards, while our 3rd, 
4th, and 5th grade declined.          

 
 
Next Steps: 

 We are implementing a newly adopted curriculum this year across grade levels called Benchmark 
Advance. Teachers will use the program materials to implement designated ELD lessons daily and 
provide targeted small group instruction to each learner. Ongoing training and support for teachers 
will be provided throughout the school year to ensure that teachers understand all of the program 
resources and that the curriculum is delivered with integrity.  

 K-2 will continue with full implementation of SIPPS while 3rd and 4th grades will utilize SIPPs for 
interventions for struggling readers.  
  



Binkley Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 3 
 

 

School Goal 2:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 8th grade students.  (LCAP Goal #5) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades K – 6 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. 46% to 58% of students in grade K will be proficient at the 
spring benchmark assessment (previous year used a 
different assessment)  

2. 55% of 3rd grade students meet or exceed standard on 
SBAC and 35% of 6th grade students meet or exceed 
standard on SBAC 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Kindergarten students will take Math Benchmarks in the winter and spring. 
2. Grades 1 – 6 take a benchmark assessment three times per year. 
3. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student math progress in grades K-6 using formative, interim, 
and summative assessments (e.g. MobyMax, K-1 district assessments, 
CAASPP interim, and CAASPP). 

Full 

Implement MTSS for students not meeting CAASPP and/or local 
benchmark targets.  

Full 

Continue to provide support and professional development for teachers 
and principals towards full alignment of instruction to the new 
California State Math standards.  

Partial 

Provide training to teachers and principals in the implementation of a 
new local math benchmark assessment.  

Partial 

Provide parent education that strengthens parent understanding of the 
mathematical concepts and practices embedded within the new 
California State standards. 

Partial 

 

* This was the first time administering this assessment, interpret the results with caution. 

 

 

 

 



Binkley Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 4 
 

 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 In the winter, teacher received initial professional development in the structure of the Engage 
New York curriculum, in particular the four parts of each lesson, the purpose of each part, and 
the need to keep up a fast pace of instruction to best deliver the curriculum as designed.  

 
Description of the results: 

 K on district Benchmark (winter): - why winter? 60% of grade K met or exceeded the district 
benchmark assessment. The previous year, 58% of grade K met or exceeded the district 
benchmark assessment.   
 

 3rd – 6th on SBAC:              
37% of 3rd-6th grade students met or exceeded standard on SBAC; 54% of 3rd graders and 37% of 
6th graders  

 
Next Steps: 

 Some teachers have received in-depth professional development in the implementation of the 
Engage New York Mathematics curriculum. Teachers who have received this training are able to 
implement the program with integrity, and apply more advanced instructional strategies, 
including small group instruction, while keeping with the pace of the program. During the year, 
we will send all teachers to training to further their learning of the program.  

  



Binkley Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 5 
 

 

School Goal 3:  Every English Learner is on target and within timelines, as defined by State and local 
criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP).   (LCAP Goal #6) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this  

Grades K – 6 English 
Learners 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. 63% to 75% gained at least one CELDT level 
2. 29.5% to 13 % moved from “intermediate” to a higher CELDT 

level 
3. 7.7% to 18.5% of EL students were reclassified as FEP 
4. 43% to 25 % of grades 2 – 6 EL students scored at or above the 

50th percentile on STAR Reading  
5. 30% to 19% of EL students in grades 3 – 6 at or exceed standard 

on ELA SBAC  

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT. 
2. Grade 2 – 6 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
3. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Utilize MTSS to monitor English Learner students and provide 
additional support when needed to include intervention and targeted 
summer programs. 

Full 

Examine and pilot new designated ELD materials and adopt for the 
2017-18 school year.  

Full 

Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals toward full implementation of integrated ELD. 

Full 

Provide parents of English Learners support and resources in order for 
them to assist their children with homework.  

Partial 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Binkley Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 6 
 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Teachers in 1st, 2nd, and 3rd grades, who piloted the new Benchmark Advance program, and 
implemented the Designated English Learner Development components of the program, reported 
an increase in active participation from our English Learners throughout the English Language 
Arts instruction period, as well as an increase in achievement on local measures. Through 
working with these specific students in small groups, teachers developed a richer understanding 
of their language needs, and were more informed when planning lessons that targeted these 
specific areas.  

 
Description of the results: 

 CELDT: 75% of students gained a CELDT level or more during 2016-2017 CELDT testing. 
(AMAO 1)  40% of Binkley ELs in US schools for 5 years or less reached proficiency level 4 or 
5 on CELDT. 50% of Binkley ELs in US schools for 5 years or more reached proficiency level 
on CELDT. Annual CELDT will not be administers for the 2017-2018 school year. 

 
 2nd – 6th on STAR Reading:    Students meeting the criteria for redesignation increased from the 

previous year. 6 Students were redesignated for the 2015-2016 year and 15 students were 
redesignated for the 2016-2017 school year.  

 
 3rd – 6th on SBAC:        We saw a slight decrease in performance on the SBAC by our English 

Learners from 30% to 19%.  
 

 
Next Steps: 

 Our newly adopted Benchmark Advance program has very strong English Language 
Development components, including integrated ELD and designated ELD. With the support of 
this curriculum, teachers will be using ELD strategies as they instruct the whole class and as they 
work with the ELD group on a daily basis.  

 An English Learner Homework Club after school four days per week will provide students will a 
structured space and support in completing their independent reading and language arts homework.  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Binkley Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 7 
 

School Goal 4:  Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results 
in a safe learning environment.  (LCAP Goal #3) 
 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:     
 
Grades K – 6 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-6 to 2016-17)     

1. 96.1% to 96% P-2 attendance rate 
2. 9.4% P-2 chronic absenteeism 
3. 2.9 % to 2.5 % pupil suspension rate 
4. 76% to 67% number of students who self-identify they 

"often"/"always" feeling safe at school 
5. 79% to 73% number of students who self-identify they 

"often"/"always" feel happy at school 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Year-end school-wide attendance reports 
2. Monthly school-wide attendance reports 
3. Individual attendance contracts with targeted students and their families 
4. Administer results from spring Student Survey data for 2016-17 school year 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Implement Restorative Practices in 4-6, Toolbox in 1-3, and Kimochis 
in Kindergarten to strengthen social emotional learning across grade 
levels.  

Full 

Office clerk will make phone calls home each day to verify reason for 
any school absence if parent has not called in an absence.  

Full 

School counselor will arrange SART and SARB meetings as necessary 
to support families in jeopardy of truancy. 

Full 

Principal will send home letters regularly to make families aware of 
their truant behaviors and to resolve potential problems.  

Full 

Provide daily, weekly, and trimester attendance awards and incentives 
to increase attendance awareness.  

Full 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Binkley Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 8 
 

 

Actions found to be most effective: 
 The implementation of Restorative Practices in 4th, 5th, and 6th grades and Kimochis in 

transitional Kindergarten and Kindergarten increased the social emotional learning opportunities 
for students and provided teachers structure and professional learning so they could support their 
class community.  

 
Description of the results: 

 Absenteeism has held steady from 2015/2016 to 2016/2017.  
 Chronic absenteeism is at 9% which met our goal for being under 10%.  
 Suspension rates held steady from 2015/2016 to 2016/2017. 
 Student survey results showed a slight decrease in students self-reporting as safe and happy at 

school.  
 
Next Steps: 

 We will continue to recognize the entire student body with attendance recognition. We will take 
a close look at the 30 students across TK-6th grades, which is about 2 students per class, and 
develop individual plans with their teachers, and parents as SART meetings are called to 
determine the root causes of their chronic absenteeism and individual support plans.   

 We will pilot the Safe Schools Ambassadors Program with our 4th, 5th, and 6th grade class to 
increase the student capacity for solving social problem and increasing “upstander” behavior.  

 

 



Madrone School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 1 
 

  

School Goal 1:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with special attention to 3rd grade students.  
(LCAP Goal #4) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades K – 6 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. 80 % to 78 % of K – 2 students who took DIBELS (fall 2016 to 
spring 2017) 

2. 65 % to 62% of grade 2-6 students at or above benchmark on end of 
year STAR Reading  

3. 55 % to 52 % of students at or exceed standard on SBAC 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Grade K – 2 students will take the DIBELS assessment three times per year. 
2. Grade 2 – 6 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
3. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT. 
4. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student reading progress in grades K-6 using formative, 
interim, and summative assessments (e.g. STAR Reading, SIPPS, 
CELDT, CAASPP interim, CAASPP and other district assessments) 

Partial 

Implement a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 SIPPS).  Full 

Expand and utilize the MTSS for students not meeting DIBELS 
screening, CAASPP, and/or local benchmark assessment targets.  

Partial 

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to measure school 
readiness of all Kindergarten students.  

Full 

Provide parent education that provides strategies for families to 
support reading skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and comprehension, 
for their children. 

Partial 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 



Madrone School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 2 
 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Implementation of SIPPS in grades K-3rd grade.  The teachers worked closely together changing 
groups of students often when students showed mastery.   

 Using data from assessments to guide instruction. 
 Attending CABE Conference  

 
Description of the results: 

 K – 2nd on DIBELS:   
 15/16 Year 16/17 Year 
K   91  95 
1st  69  65 
2nd  80  73 
 

 2nd – 6th STAR Reading:   
  15/16 Year 16/17 Year   

2nd  69  72 
3rd  76  74 
4th  73  61 
5th  62  60 
6th  49  64  

   
 

 SBAC:             
 3rd Grade – 50% to 46% 

 4th Grade – 47% to 47% 
 5th Grade – 58% to 54% 
 6th Grade – 64% to 62% 
 The above data shows grade level from one to the same grade level the next year, meaning a 
different group of students.  When looking at the same group of students from 15/16 to 16/17 we see a 
decrease of 3% in 3rd to 4th grade and an increase of 7% in 4th to 5th grade and an increase of 4% in 5th to 
6th grade.   
 
Next Steps: 

 Support teachers in the implementation of Benchmark Advance 
 Continue to improve our intervention system 
 Monitor the progress on students receiving extra help in reading 
 

  



Madrone School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 3 
 

 

School Goal 2:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 8th grade students.  (LCAP Goal #5) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades K – 6 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. 90 % to 92 % of students in grade K will be proficient at the 
spring benchmark assessment 

2. 41 % to 52 % of students at or exceed standard on SBAC 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Kindergarten students will take Math Benchmarks in the winter and spring. 
2. Grades 1 – 6 take a benchmark assessment three times per year. 
3. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student math progress in grades K-6 using formative, interim, 
and summative assessments (e.g. MobyMax, K-1 district assessments, 
CAASPP interim, and CAASPP). 

Partial/Full 

Implement MTSS for students not meeting CAASPP and/or local 
benchmark targets.  

Partial 

Continue to provide support and professional development for teachers 
and principals towards full alignment of instruction to the new 
California State Math standards.  

Full 

Provide training to teachers and principals in the implementation of a 
new local math benchmark assessment.  

Full 

Provide parent education that strengthens parent understanding of the 
mathematical concepts and practices embedded within the new 
California State standards. 

Partial 

 

* This was the first time administering this assessment, interpret the results with caution. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Madrone School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 4 
 

Actions found to be most effective: 
 Professional development focused on math instruction to gain a better understanding of the math 

curriculum.   
 Use of academic language and using sentence frames in math conversations. 
 Attending CABE Conference and teaching the rest of the teachers about using language in math. 

 
Description of the results: 

 K on district Benchmark (winter):   
 This showed that a very large number of kindergarten students were proficient on the math 
assessment. 

 
 3rd – 6th on SBAC:              

3rd Grade – 48% to 57% 
4th Grade – 45% to 51% 
5th Grade – 28% to 42% 
6th Grade – 42% to 59% 

 
Next Steps: 

 Continue to follow the best practices for Eureka Math.  Our 6th grade grew 32% and we feel that 
part of this growth was due to the teachers completing every lesson and every module. As a next 
step it will be important to have each grade level purposefully and intentionally look at making 
sure we stick to the lesson design and supplement as needed, but only supplement not change 
Eureka lessons.   

 To design specific math intervention in 4th-6th grade to help increase math foundational skills for 
students who are showing a deficiency in math skills.   

  



Madrone School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 5 
 

 

School Goal 3:  Every English Learner is on target and within timelines, as defined by State and local 
criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP).   (LCAP Goal #6) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this  

Grades K – 6 English 
Learners 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. 52 % to 72 % gained at least one CELDT level 
2. 35 % to 40 % moved from “intermediate” to a higher CELDT 

level 
3. 13 % to 8 % of EL students were reclassified as RFEP 
4. 32 % of grades 1 – 6 EL students scored at or above the 50th 

percentile on STAR Reading 
5. 0 % to 23% of EL students in grades 3 – 6 at or exceed standard 

on ELA SBAC 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT. 
2. Grade 2 – 6 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
3. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Utilize MTSS to monitor English Learner students and provide 
additional support when needed to include intervention and targeted 
summer programs. 

Partial 

Examine and pilot new designated ELD materials and adopt for the 
2017-18 school year.  

Full 

Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals toward full implementation of integrated ELD. 

Full 

Provide parents of English Learners support and resources in order for 
them to assist their children with homework.  

Partial 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Madrone School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 6 
 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Our most effective action was sending a group of teachers to the CABE conference and working 
with this group to develop an action plan.  We taught the rest of the staff a way to increase the 
academic vocabulary for our EL students.  We monitored this and continued to provide 
professional development throughout the year.   

 EL Assistant worked closely with targeted students. 
 Teachers identified EL focal students  

 
 

 
Next Steps: 

 We saw tremendous growth this year with our EL students and the next step is to continue the 
work and bridge this work to writing.  We feel that our writing will increase as we continue to 
develop stronger vocabulary and having our EL students more engaged in conversation and 
explanation of their thinking.   

 Implement ELD instruction for all EL learners. 
 Have the EL Assistant support instruction and learning for EL students, specifically those in the 

beginning levels.   
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Madrone School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 7 
 

 
School Goal 4:  Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results 
in a safe learning environment.  (LCAP Goal #3) 
 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:     
 
Grades K – 6 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-6 to 2016-17)     

1. 94 % to 96 % P-2 attendance rate 
2. 9 incidents to 3 incidents pupil suspension rate 
3. 77 % to 82% number of students who self-identify they 

"often"/"always" feeling safe at school 
4. 82 % to 88O% number of students who self-identify they 

"often"/"always" feel happy at school 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Year-end school-wide attendance reports 
2. Monthly school-wide attendance reports 
3. Individual attendance contracts with targeted students and their families 
4. Administer results from spring Student Survey data for 2016-17 school year 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Office clerk will make phone calls home each day to verify reason for 
any school absence if parent has not called in.  

Full 

School counselor will set up SART and SARB meetings as necessary 
for families that are in jeopardy of truancy.   

Full 

Principal will send home letters regularly to make families aware of 
their truant behaviors and to resolve potential problems.   

Full 

Incentive program for students to increase attendance awareness.  Partial 

Implement restorative practices, Toolbox, and Kimochis to strengthen 
social/emotional learning across grade levels.   

Full 

  

  
 

 

 

 

 



Madrone School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 8 
 

 

 

 

Actions found to be most effective: 
 Having the office clerk call each day to verify absences.  
 Our SART meetings have been helpful in getting families to be more aware of the absences and 

the importance of communicating with the school. 
 Sending home letters has made parents more aware of the legal requirements for what is 

considered an absence and what isn’t.   
 
Description of the results: 

 Due to the above actions we increased our attendance rate and decreased the chronic 
absenteeism.   

 
Next Steps: 

 Continue doing what we are doing.  I feel we are strong in this area and it’s about the office 
communicating with parents to increase parental understanding of absences and tardies.   

 

 



SPRING CREEK MATANZAS School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 1 
 

  

School Goal 1:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with special attention to 3rd grade students.  
(LCAP Goal #4) 6th  

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades K – 6 

Anticipated performance growth for each group:     

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd and 6th grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 37% for 3rd and 
53% for 6th.  

2. Increase the percent of English learner 3rd and 6th grade students grade 
meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 12% 
for 3rd and 13% for 6th.  

3. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 3rd and 6th 
grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 25% for 3rd and 39% for 6th.  

4. 60% of students will meet or exceed local benchmarks at end of 
2016/2017 school year.  

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Grade K – 2 students will take the DIBELS assessment three times per year. 
2. Grade 2 – 6 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
3. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT. 
4. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student reading progress in grades K-6 using formative, 
interim, and summative assessments (e.g. STAR Reading, SIPPS, 
CELDT, CAASPP interim, CAASPP and other district assessments) 

Full 

Implement a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 SIPPS).  Full 

Expand and utilize the MTSS for students not meeting DIBELS 
screening, CAASPP, and/or local benchmark assessment targets.  

Full 

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to measure school 
readiness of all Kindergarten students.  

Full 

Provide parent education that provides strategies for families to 
support reading skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and comprehension, 
for their children. 

Full 

 
 

 
 



SPRING CREEK MATANZAS School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 2 
 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Expand and utilize the MTSS for students not meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or 
local benchmark assessment targets. 

 Implement a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 SIPPS).  
 Assess student reading progress in grades K-6 using formative, interim, and summative 

assessments (e.g. STAR Reading, SIPPS, CELDT, CAASPP interim, CAASPP and other district 
assessments) 

 
Description of the results: 

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd and 6th grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 37% for 3rd and 53% for 6th. The percent of all 3rd at or above standard increased to 53%. 
The percent of all 6th at or above standard increased to 54%. 

2. Increase the percent of English learner 3rd and 6th grade students grade meeting or exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 12% for 3rd and 13% for 6th. The percent of all 3rd at or above standard 
increased to 40%. We did not meet our goal for 6th grade. 

3. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 3rd and 6th grade students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for language arts to 25% for 3rd and 39% for 6th. The percent of all 3rd at or above 
standard increased to 40%. The percent of all 6th at or above standard increased to 40%. 

4. 60% of students will meet or exceed local benchmarks at end of 2016/2017 school year. We met our goal 
of 60%. 

 
Next Steps: 

 Progress-monitor students using the MTSS process 
 Regular data meetings with teachers and support coordinator 
 Work with consulting teachers to support math and English language arts curriculum and instruction 
 Continue to implement current action steps 

  



SPRING CREEK MATANZAS School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 3 
 

 

School Goal 2:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 8th grade students.  (LCAP Goal #5) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades K – 6 

Anticipated performance growth for each group:  (Base to 
Growth; 2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd and 6th grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 41% for 3rd and 31% for 
6th.  

2. Increase the percent of English learner 3rd and 6th grade students grade 
meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 12% for 3rd 
and 5% for 6th.  

3. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 3rd and 6th 
grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP math to 27% for 
3rd and 17% for 6th.  

4. Establish a baseline for local benchmark assessments to ensure 
students are on track to meet 3rd and 6th grade CAASPP standards. 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Kindergarten students will take Math Benchmarks in the winter and spring. 
2. Grades 1 – 6 take a benchmark assessment three times per year. 
3. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student math progress in grades K-6 using formative, interim, 
and summative assessments (e.g. MobyMax, K-1 district assessments, 
CAASPP interim, and CAASPP). 

Full 

Implement MTSS for students not meeting CAASPP and/or local 
benchmark targets.  

Partial, more focus on 
ELA 

Continue to provide support and professional development for teachers 
and principals towards full alignment of instruction to the new 
California State Math standards.  

Full 

Provide training to teachers and principals in the implementation of a 
new local math benchmark assessment.  

Full 

Provide parent education that strengthens parent understanding of the 
mathematical concepts and practices embedded within the new 
California State standards. 

Partial 

 

* This was the first time administering this assessment, interpret the results with caution. 

 



SPRING CREEK MATANZAS School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 4 
 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Continue to provide support and professional development for teachers and principals towards 
full alignment of instruction to the new California State Math standards.  

 Implement MTSS for students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.  
 Provide training to teachers and principals in the implementation of a new local math 

benchmark assessment.  

 
Description of the results: 

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd and 6th grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for math 
to 41% for 3rd and 31% for 6th. The percent of all 3rd at or above standard increased to 50%. The percent of 
all 6th at or above standard increased to 42%. 

2. Increase the percent of English learner 3rd and 6th grade students grade meeting or exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 12% for 3rd and 5% for 6th. The percent of all 3rd at or above standard increased to 
60%. We did not meet this goal for 6th grade. 

3. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 3rd and 6th grade students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP math to 27% for 3rd and 17% for 6th. The percent of all 3rd at or above standard increased to 
40%. We did not meet this goal for 6th grade. 

4. Establish a baseline for local benchmark assessments to ensure students are on track to meet 3rd and 6th 
grade CAASPP standards. 

 
Next Steps: 

 Support intervention possibilities for math 
 More robust MTSS progress-monitoring for math 
 Work closely with consulting teacher on-campus on a regular basis to support math instruction 
 Regular data meetings with teachers and support coordinator 
 Continue to implement current action steps 

 
  



SPRING CREEK MATANZAS School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 5 
 

 

School Goal 3:  Every English Learner is on target and within timelines, as defined by State and local 
criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP).   (LCAP Goal #6) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this  

Grades K – 6 English 
Learners 

Anticipated performance growth for each group:  (Base to 
Growth; 2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. 62% of English learners shall increase at least one CELDT level. 
(2016-17 Title III AMAO 1).  

2. 25.5% of English learners who have been in US schools for 5 
years or less will meet reach proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on 
CELDT. (2016-17 Title III target AMAO 2a 

3. 52.8% of English learners who have been in US schools for more 
than 5 years will reach proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT. 
(2016-17 Title III target AMAO 2b).  

4. 10% of English learners will be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP).  

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT. 
2. Grade 2 – 6 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
3. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Utilize MTSS to monitor English Learner students and provide 
additional support when needed to include intervention and targeted 
summer programs. 

Full 

Examine and pilot new designated ELD materials and adopt for the 
2017-18 school year.  

Full 

Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals toward full implementation of integrated ELD. 

Full 

Provide parents of English Learners support and resources in order for 
them to assist their children with homework.  

Partial 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SPRING CREEK MATANZAS School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 6 
 

 
 
 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Utilize MTSS to monitor English Learner students and provide additional support when needed 
to include intervention and targeted summer programs. 

 Examine and pilot new designated ELD materials and adopt for the 2017-18 school year.  
 Continue to provide support and professional development for teachers and principals toward 

full implementation of integrated ELD.  

 
Description of the results: 

1. 62% of English learners shall increase at least one CELDT level. (2016-17 Title III AMAO 1). 30% 
of ELs increased at least one level. 

2. 25.5% of English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years or less will meet reach 
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT. (2016-17 Title III target AMAO 2a). 33% of English learners 
who have been in US schools for 5 years or less reached proficiency 

3. 52.8% of English learners who have been in US schools for more than 5 years will reach proficiency 
(Level 4 or 5) on CELDT. (2016-17 Title III target AMAO 2b). 31% of English learners who have 
been in US schools for 5 years or more reached proficiency 

4. 10% of English learners will be reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP). 23% of English 
learners were reclassified as Fluent English Proficient 

 
Next Steps: 

 Provide ongoing professional development to classified support and certificated staff in ELD 
best practices 

 Support designated EL instruction in small group by credentialed teacher 
 MTSS progress-monitoring  
 Work closely with consulting teacher on-campus on a regular basis to support EL instruction 
 Regular data meetings with teachers and support coordinator 
 Continue to monitor RFEPed students 
 Restructure ELAC meetings to include parent support for curriculum and homework 
 Continue to implement current action steps 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SPRING CREEK MATANZAS School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 7 
 

 
School Goal 4:  Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results 
in a safe learning environment.  (LCAP Goal #3) 
 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:     
 
Grades K – 6 

Anticipated performance growth for each group: (Base to Growth; 
2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. Reduce pupil suspension rate 
2. Maintain Spring Creek/Matanzas School P-2 attendance rate at 96% 

for all students.  
3. Decrease from 13% of absent students declared truant in 2015-2016 

at Matanzas to 8%.  
4. Decrease from 14% of absent students declared truant in 2015-2016 

at Spring Creek to 9%.  
5. Decrease in suspensions of general education students at Spring 

Creek from 12 in in 2015-2016.  
6. Decrease in suspensions of general education students at Matanzas 

from 8 in 2015-2016.  
7. Decrease in suspensions of special education students at Spring Creek 

from 26 in 2015-2016.  
8. Decrease in suspensions of special education students at Matanzas 

from 7 in 2015-2016.  
9. Maintain Spring Creek/Matanzas School P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 

0% for all students and significant subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special education 
students.  

10. Increase the number of Matanzas students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive school climate as measured by the 
district-wide local student climate survey from 67.7% of students 
report "often"/"always" feeling safe at school and 74.2% of students 
reported being happy at school "often/always".  

11. Increase the number of Spring Creek students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive school climate as measured by the 
district-wide local student climate survey from 71% of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at school and 85.6% of students 
reported being happy at school "often/always".  

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Year-end school-wide attendance reports 
2. Monthly school-wide attendance reports 
3. Individual attendance contracts with targeted students and their families 
4. Administer results from spring Student Survey data for 2016-17 school year 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 
Implement Restorative Practices in 4-6, Toolbox in KB-3, and Kimochis in K 
to strengthen our social-emotional learning programs Full 



SPRING CREEK MATANZAS School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 8 
 

Office clerk will make phone calls home each day to verify reason for any 
school absence if parent hasn’t called in. Full 

School counselor will set up SART and SARB meetings as necessary for 
families that are in jeopardy of truancy. Full 

Principal will send home letters regularly to make families aware of their 
truant behaviors and resolve potential problems. Full 

Attendance Incentives for students to increase attendance awareness (TK-3) Full 

 

Actions found to be most effective: 
 All of the actions were found to be effective 

 
Description of the results: 

 7 % to 3 % pupil suspension rate 
 Maintain Spring Creek/Matanzas School P-2 attendance rate at 96% for all students. The rate decreased to 

95% in 2016-2017. 
 Decrease from 13% of absent students declared truant in 2015-2016 at Matanzas to 8%. The rate 

decreased to 4% at Matanzas in 2016-2017. 
 Decrease from 14% of absent students declared truant in 2015-2016 at Spring Creek to 9%. The rate 

decreased to 8% at Spring Creek in 2016-2017. 
 Decrease in suspensions of general education students at Spring Creek from 12 in in 2015-2016. The 

number decreased to 5 at Spring Creek in 2016-2017.  
 Decrease in suspensions of general education students at Matanzas from 8 in 2015-2016. The number 

decreased to 6 at Matanzas in 2016-2017.  
 Decrease in suspensions of special education students at Spring Creek from 26 in 2015-2016. The number 

decreased to 0 in 2016-2017. 
 Decrease in suspensions of special education students at Matanzas from 7 in 2015-2016. This number 

increased to 16 at Matanzas in 2016-2017. 
 Maintain Spring Creek/Matanzas School P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and significant 

subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special education students. 
We maintained this at 0%. 

 Increase the number of Matanzas students who self-identify they attend a school with a positive school 
climate as measured by the district-wide local student climate survey from 67.7% of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at school and 74.2% of students reported being happy at school 
"often/always". In 2016-2017: 85% of 3rd-6th grade students identified that they "often/always" feel safe; 
85% of 3rd-6th grade students identified that they "often/always" feel happy at school. 

 Increase the number of Spring Creek students who self-identify they attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by the district-wide local student climate survey from 71% of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at school and 85.6% of students reported being happy at school 
"often/always". In 2016-2017: 85% of 3rd-6th grade students identified that they "often/always" feel safe; 
85% of 3rd-6th grade students identified that they "often/always" feel happy at school. 

 
Next Steps: 

 Continue to implement the current steps. 



Sequoia Elementary 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 1 
 

   

School Goal 1:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with special attention to 3rd grade students.  
(LCAP Goal #4) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades K – 6 

Anticipated performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd and 6th grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 47% for 3rd and 
75% for 6th.  

2. Increase the percent of English learners meeting or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for language arts to 10%. 

3. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged students 
meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 
33%. 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Grade K – 2 students will take the DIBELS assessment three times per year. 
2. Grade 2 – 6 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
3. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT. 
4. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student reading progress in grades K-6 using formative, 
interim, and summative assessments (e.g. STAR Reading, SIPPS, 
CELDT, CAASPP interim, CAASPP and other district assessments) 

Partial 

Implement a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 SIPPS).  Partial 

Expand and utilize the MTSS for students not meeting DIBELS 
screening, CAASPP, and/or local benchmark assessment targets.  

Full 

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to measure school 
readiness of all Kindergarten students.  

Full 

Provide parent education that provides strategies for families to 
support reading skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and comprehension, 
for their children. 

Partial 

 
 

 
 



Sequoia Elementary 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 2 
 

Actions found to be most effective: 
 Expand and utilize the MTSS for students not meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or 

local benchmark assessment targets. 
 Implement a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 SIPPS).  
 Assess student reading progress in grades K-6 using formative, interim, and summative 

assessments (e.g. STAR Reading, SIPPS, CELDT, CAASPP interim, CAASPP and other district 
assessments) 

 
Description of Results:  

Increase the percent of all 3rd and 6th grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 47% for 3rd and 75% for 6th. We met the goal for 3rd graders with 75% of 3rd graders 
meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts. We did not meet the goal for 6th 
grader with 70% of 6th graders meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts.  
 
Increase the percent of English learners meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for language 
arts to 10%. We did not meet our goal for English learners.  
 
Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged students meeting or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for language arts to 33%. We did meet our goal for socio-economically 
disadvantaged students with 45% meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard.  

 
Data Supporting the Results: 

● K – 2nd on DIBELS:   
Increase the percent of all K-2 students at benchmark on DIBELS to 69%-74%. In analyzing the 
data, we made the expected growth at 73% of our K-2 students at benchmark on the DIBELS 
assessment. At or Above at END: K – 67%; 1st – 77%; 2nd – 75% 

 
● 2nd – 6th STAR Reading:   

Increase the percent of 2nd-6th grade students at or above benchmark on STAR reading to 72%-
77%. 73% of our students in grades 2-6th were at or above benchmark at the end of year STAR 
reading assessment.  
At or Above benchmark at END: 2nd – 80%, 3rd – 86%, 4th – 66%, 5th – 67%, 6th – 71% 

 
● CAASPP:              

Increase the percent of students at or exceeding standard on CAASPP to 61%-66%. As a school, 
61% of students were at or exceeding standard on CAASPP in ELA.  
0% of our English language learners scored at or above standard on CAASPP. We did not meet 
our goal of 1-2 EL students scoring at or above standard on CAASPP.  

 
Next Steps: 
● Progress-monitor students using the MTSS process 
● Regular data meetings with teachers and support coordinator 
● Work with consulting teachers to support math and English language arts curriculum and instruction 
● Continue to implement current action steps 
● Continue professional development in ELD instruction. 



Sequoia Elementary 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 3 
 

 
School Goal 2:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 8th grade students.  (LCAP Goal #5) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades K – 6 

Anticipated performance growth for each group:  (Base to 
Growth; 2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd and 6th grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 58% for 3rd and 63% 
for 6th.  

2. Increase the percent of English learners meeting or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for math to 13%.  

3. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged students 
meeting or exceeding the CAASPP math to 33%. 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Kindergarten students will take Math Benchmarks in the winter and spring. 
2. Grades 1 – 6 take a benchmark assessment three times per year. 
3. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student math progress in grades K-6 using formative, interim, 
and summative assessments (e.g. MobyMax, K-1 district assessments, 
CAASPP interim, and CAASPP). 

Full 

Implement MTSS for students not meeting CAASPP and/or local 
benchmark targets.  

Partial 

Continue to provide support and professional development for teachers 
and principals towards full alignment of instruction to the new 
California State Math standards.  

Full 

Provide training to teachers and principals in the implementation of a 
new local math benchmark assessment.  

Partial 

Provide parent education that strengthens parent understanding of the 
mathematical concepts and practices embedded within the new 
California State standards. 

Partial 

 

* This was the first time administering this assessment, interpret the results with caution. 

 

 



Sequoia Elementary 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 4 
 

 

Actions found to be most effective: 

● Continue to provide support and professional development for teachers and principals towards 
full alignment of instruction to the new California State Math standards.  

● Implement MTSS for students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.  
● Provide training to teachers and principals in the implementation of a new local math benchmark 

assessment.  
 

Description of the results: 
 

Increase the percent of all 3rd and 6th grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard 
for math to 58% for 3rd and 63% for 6th. We met our goal for 3rd grade with 74% of 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding standard for CAASPP. We did not meet our goal for 6th grade 
with 53% of 6th grade students meeting or exceeding standard.  
Increase the percent of English learners meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 
13%. We did not meet our goal of 13% of EL’s meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard.  
Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged students meeting or exceeding the 
CAASPP math to 33%. We did meet our goal with 45% of socio-economically disadvantaged 
students meeting or exceeding standard for CAASPP. 

 
 
Next Steps: 

● Support further teacher training in ENY 
● Continued use of interim assessments, including CAASPP interims to monitor student progress 

toward meeting standards.  
● More robust MTSS progress-monitoring for math 
● Regular data meetings with teachers and support coordinator 

 
 

  



Sequoia Elementary 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 5 
 

 
School Goal 3:  Every English Learner is on target and within timelines, as defined by State and local 
criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP).   (LCAP Goal #6) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this  

Grades K – 6 English 
Learners 

Anticipated performance growth for each group:  (Base to 
Growth; 2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. 64% of English learners shall increase at least one CELDT level. 
(2016-17 Title III AMAO 1). 

2. 37% of English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years 
or less will reach proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT. (2016-17 
Title III target AMAO 2a). 

3. 10% of English learners will be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP).  

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT. 
2. Grade 2 – 6 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
3. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Utilize MTSS to monitor English Learner students and provide 
additional support when needed to include intervention and targeted 
summer programs. 

Partial 

Examine and pilot new designated ELD materials and adopt for the 
2017-18 school year.  

Full 

Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals toward full implementation of integrated ELD. 

Partial 

Provide parents of English Learners support and resources in order for 
them to assist their children with homework.  

Partial 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sequoia Elementary 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 6 
 

Actions found to be most effective: 

● Utilize MTSS to monitor English Learner students and provide additional support when needed 
to include intervention and targeted summer programs. 

● Examine and pilot new designated ELD materials and adopt for the 2017-18 school year.  
● Continue to provide support and professional development for teachers and principals toward full 

implementation of integrated ELD.  
 

 
Description of the results: 

64% of English learners shall increase at least one CELDT level. (2016-17 Title III AMAO 1). 
We met our goal with 73% of English learners increasing one CELDT level.  

37% of English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years or less will reach proficiency 
(Level 4 or 5) on CELDT. (2016-17 Title III target AMAO 2a). We nearly met our goal with 
35% of English learners reaching Level 4 or 5.  

10% of English learners will be reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP). We did meet 
our goal with 24% of English learners being reclassified as Fluent English Proficient.  
 

 
Next Steps: 

● Begin using new ELD curriculum and monitoring student progress 
● Increased vocabulary support 
● Provide ongoing professional development to classified support and certificated staff in ELD 

best practices 
● Support designated EL instruction in small group by credentialed teacher 
● MTSS progress-monitoring  
● Regular data meetings with teachers and support coordinator 
● Continue to monitor RFEPed students 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sequoia Elementary 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 7 
 

School Goal 4:  Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results 
in a safe learning environment.  (LCAP Goal #3) 
 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:     
 
Grades K – 6 

Anticipated performance growth for each group:  (Base to 
Growth; 2015-6 to 2016-17)     

1. Maintain Sequoia School P-2 attendance rate at 98% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, 
socio-economically disadvantaged, and special education 
students.  

2. Reduce Sequoia School P-2 chronic absenteeism rate to below 
5% for all students and significant subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special 
education students.  

3. Reduce Sequoia School P-2 pupil suspension rate below 5% for 
all students significant subgroups to include English learner, 
socio-economically disadvantaged, and special education 
students.  

4. Reduce Sequoia School P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, 
socio-economically disadvantaged, and special education 
students.  

5. Increase the number of students who self-identify they attend a 
school with a positive school climate as measured by the 
district-wide local student climate survey 90% of students 
report “often”/”always” feeling safe at school and 90% of 
students reported being happy at school “often/always”.  

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Year-end school-wide attendance reports 
2. Monthly school-wide attendance reports 
3. Individual attendance contracts with targeted students and their families 
4. Administer results from spring Student Survey data for 2016-17 school year 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Establish weekly recognition program to highlight “Safe, Respectful, 
Responsible Behavior” – Done weekly at Community gatherings.  

Full 

Establish monthly recognition program to highlight “Sequoia Scholars” Full 

Promote recognition programs to parents- One Call Now, Newsletter, 
SPC email blasts 

Full 

Continue to implement attendance interventions and regular SART Full 



Sequoia Elementary 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 8 
 

meetings with administrator and counselor 

Support the Restorative practices program in the intermediate grades 
and Toolbox and Kimochis in primary grades 

Full 

 
 

Actions found to be most effective: 
 Establishing weekly/monthly recognition programs to highlight students.  
 Continue to implement attendance interventions and regular SART meetings with administrator 

and counselor 
 Support the Restorative practices program in the intermediate grades and Toolbox and Kimochis 

in primary grades 
 
Description of the results: 

● Maintain Sequoia School P-2 attendance rate at 98% for all students and significant subgroups to 
include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special education students. We 
did not meet our goal for a 98% attendance rate for all students including significant subgroups. 
Our P-2 attendance rate was 96.5%.  

● Reduce Sequoia School P-2 pupil suspension rate below 5% for all students significant 
subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special education 
students. We did meet our goal of reducing P-2 pupil suspension rate to below 5% with 1% for 
last year.  

● Reduce Sequoia School P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and significant subgroups 
to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special education students. 
We met our goal of 0% expulsions for last year.  

● Increase the number of students who self-identify they attend a school with a positive school 
climate as measured by the district-wide local student climate survey 90% of students report 
“often”/”always” feeling safe at school and 90% of students reported being happy at school 
“often/always”. We did not meet our goal of 90% of students “often/always” feeling happy and 
safe at school. Last year, 83% of students reported “often/always” feeling safe at school and 81% 
of students reported “often/always” feeling happy at school.  

 
Next Steps: 

● Continue current action steps 
 

 



Village Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 1 
 

  

School Goal 1:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with special attention to 3rd grade students.  
(LCAP Goal #4) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades K – 6 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. 65 % to 60 % of K – 2 students who took DIBELS (fall 2016 to 
spring 2017) 

2. 50.6 % to 63% of grade 2-6 students at or above benchmark on end 
of year STAR Reading  

3. 51 % to 51 % of students at or exceed standard on SBAC 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Grade K – 2 students will take the DIBELS assessment three times per year. 
2. Grade 2 – 6 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
3. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT. 
4. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student reading progress in grades K-6 using formative, 
interim, and summative assessments (e.g. STAR Reading, SIPPS, 
CELDT, CAASPP interim, CAASPP and other district assessments) 

Full Implementation 

Implement a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 SIPPS).  Full Implementation 

Expand and utilize the MTSS for students not meeting DIBELS 
screening, CAASPP, and/or local benchmark assessment targets.  

Full Implementation 

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to measure school 
readiness of all Kindergarten students.  

Full Implementation 

Provide parent education that provides strategies for families to 
support reading skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and comprehension, 
for their children. 

Full Implementation 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 



Village Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 2 
 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Consistent Data Review, Data Analyzing and Timely Intervention of DIBELS/SIPPS weekly 
progress monitoring and Monthly Data Meetings 

 Utilizing Accelerated Reader (AR) Data 
 

 
Description of the results: 

 K – 2nd on DIBELS:   
 Kindergarten:  From 59% to 65% at end of the year 
 First Grade:     From 57% to 61% at end of the year 
 Second Grade: From 63% to 71% at end of the year 

 
 2nd – 6th STAR Reading:   

63% to 62% of all students were at or above benchmark with goal range of 51% to 70%, so this 
goal was met. 
EL’s scored at 37%  
ED’s scored at 50% 

 CELDT:     
 20% of our population are EL’s 
 6% to 9% scored at or above standards met/exceeded 

 
 

 SBAC:      
 51% of all students scored at or above on SBAC         

 
 
Next Steps: 

 Analyze data using multiple measures (EL Levels, Star Reading, DIBELS, GATE, ED and 
Attendance) to set goal for student groups and classes 

 Create a common learning time for targeted and direct instruction for reading levels 
 Designate a grade level common time for Designated English Language Development 

 
New Goals: 

 K-2:   70% of all students will be at or above benchmark on DIBELS 
 3-6th:  70% of all students will be at or above benchmark on STAR 
 3-6th:  60% of all students will be at or above standards met on SBAC 
 3-6th:  EL’s will grow from 9% to 15% on ELA SBAC 

 
 
 

  



Village Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 3 
 

 

School Goal 2:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 8th grade students.  (LCAP Goal #5) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades K – 6 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. 50 % to 60 % of students in grade K will be proficient at the 
spring benchmark assessment 

2. 60.4 % to 75 % of grade 1 – 6 students at or above benchmark on 
the district assessment (fall 2016 to spring 2017)* 

3. 45 % to 42% of students at or exceed standard on SBAC 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Kindergarten students will take Math Benchmarks in the winter and spring. 
2. Grades 1 – 6 take a benchmark assessment three times per year. 
3. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student math progress in grades K-6 using formative, interim, 
and summative assessments (e.g. MobyMax, K-1 district assessments, 
CAASPP interim, and CAASPP). 

Full Implementation 

Implement MTSS for students not meeting CAASPP and/or local 
benchmark targets.  

Full Implementation 

Continue to provide support and professional development for teachers 
and principals towards full alignment of instruction to the new 
California State Math standards.  

Full Implementation 

Provide training to teachers and principals in the implementation of a 
new local math benchmark assessment.  

Full Implementation 

Provide parent education that strengthens parent understanding of the 
mathematical concepts and practices embedded within the new 
California State standards. 

Full Implementation 

 

* This was the first time administering this assessment, interpret the results with caution. 

 

 

 

 

 



Village Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 4 
 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Implementation of high quality instructional practices using number talks and CER model 
 
Description of the results: 

 K on district Benchmark (winter):   
 44/50 on target 

 
 1st – 6th on district Benchmark:  

40/47 on target 

  2nd-6th on STAR Math:  31% are not on target or below standards and 69% are on grade level 
target 
 
 

 3rd – 6th on SBAC:  
 44.75% of all students meet or exceeded grade level goals 
 7% of English Learners meet or exceeded grade level goals 
 28% of Economically Disadvantaged students meet or exceeded grade level goals             

 
 
Next Steps: 

 Increase the 7% of EL’s meeting or exceeding grade level goals to 25% 
 Increase the 44.75% to 50% of all students meeting or exceeding grade level goals 
 Increase the 28% of ED students to 35% meeting or exceeding grade level goals 
 Start creating targeted math instructional groups for additional support 
 Math time school-wide to be instructed starting the instructional day 

  



Village Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 5 
 

 

School Goal 3:  Every English Learner is on target and within timelines, as defined by State and local 
criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP).   (LCAP Goal #6) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this  

Grades K – 6 English 
Learners 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. From 54% to 62% and actual 52 % gained at least one CELDT 
level 

2. From 21% to 25.5%  and actual 63%  moved from “intermediate” 
to a higher CELDT level 

3. 5 students to 8 of EL students were reclassified as RFEP 
4. 16 % to 22% with actual 14% of grades 2 – 6 EL students scored 

at or above the 50th percentile on STAR Reading 
5. 0 % to 10% with actual 7% of EL students in grades 3 – 6 at or 

exceed standard on ELA SBAC 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT. 
2. Grade 2 – 6 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
3. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Utilize MTSS to monitor English Learner students and provide 
additional support when needed to include intervention and targeted 
summer programs. 

Partial  

Work in Progress 

Examine and pilot new designated ELD materials and adopt for the 
2017-18 school year.  

Full Implementation 

Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals toward full implementation of integrated ELD. 

Full Implementation 

Provide parents of English Learners support and resources in order for 
them to assist their children with homework.  

Full Implementation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Village Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 6 
 

 
 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 English Learner’s proficiency levels know to teachers 
 Strategic instructional targeting 
 Intentional effective instructional strategies such as student to student interactions, random 

calling and sufficient wait time for student responding 
 
Description of the results: 

 CELDT:   
 23% of EL’s scored at the 50% Star Reading 
 63% of EL’s moved from Intermediate to Early Advanced/Advanced 

 
 2nd – 6th on STAR Reading: 

63% scored at 50% 
 

 3rd-6th on SBAC:  51% met/exceeded standards on ELA SBAC 
 3rd-6th on SBAC:  42% met/exceeded standards on Math SBAC 
 EL students from 6% to 9% met/exceeded standards on ELA SBAC 
 EL students from 9% to 6% met/exceeded standards on Math SBAC 

            
Next Steps: 

 Continue with high quality instruction with effectively targeting English Learners using 
effective, research based instructional strategies 

 Celebrate English Learner success at Student of the Month Assemblies 
 Continue with Trimester Parent Conference with English Learners to monitor their 

progress 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Village Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 7 
 

School Goal 4:  Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results 
in a safe learning environment.  (LCAP Goal #3) 
 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:     
 
Grades K – 6 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-6 to 2016-17)     

1. 96.2% to 96.1 % P-2 attendance rate 
2. 0 % to 1 % pupil suspension rate 
3. 77.9% to 80% number of students who self-identify they 

"often"/"always" feeling safe at school 
4. 78.9 % to 80% number of students who self-identify they 

"often"/"always" feel happy at school 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Year-end school-wide attendance reports 
2. Monthly school-wide attendance reports 
3. Individual attendance contracts with targeted students and their families 
4. Administer results from spring Student Survey data for 2016-17 school year 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Provide and environment where students are safe, supported, 
empowered and held accountable and where respect for self and others 
is highly valued.  The focus will be to increase student pro social 
interactions and to improve attendance at school. 

Partial  

Work in Progress 

Implement attendance interventions and regular SART hearings by 
having school counselor coordinate SART meetings. 

Full Implementation 

Recognize perfect attendance monthly, recognize three students daily 
for being at school and recognize students for improved attendance. 

Partial 

Work in Progress 

Develop restorative practices at Village Elementary and train staff. Full Implementation 

Strengthen the relationship with the culturally and linguistically diverse 
community by expanding cultural community events. 

 Continue with safe routes to school program 
 Implement the Kaiser Peace Signs Program 
 Continue with Peace Journals to help students report incidences 
 Continue with teacher led Restorative Circles and counselor led 

Restorative Circles 
 Continue utilizing Kimochis and ToolBox 

Full Implementation 

Information links providing key information to our stakeholders 

 RVUSD Website 
Full Implementation 



Village Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 8 
 

 School website with Parent Club Facebook link 
 Monthly Newsletter 
 Village Elementary Parent’s Club email blast 
 One Call Now 

 

  
 

Actions found to be most effective: 
 Monitoring attendance to determine chronic cases 
 Discussion of attendance at parent conferences, principal and counselor meetings 
 Celebration of student attendance improvements 

 
Description of the results: 

 Attendance Reports:  95% goal with actual 96.1% 
 Chronic absenteeism reports:  7.4% Chronic Absenteeism 

 
Next Steps: 

 Daily Attendance Calls 
 Continue monitoring attendance monthly 
 Continue conducting parent SARB meetings 
 Celebrate attendance succes 

 

 



Whited Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 1 
 

 
  

School Goal 1:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with special attention to 3rd grade students.  
(LCAP Goal #4) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades K – 6 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. 59% to 68% of 3rd graders met or exceeded ELA CAASPP standard  
36% to 43% of 6th graders met or exceeded ELA CAASPP standard 

2. 4% to 13% of EL students met or exceeded ELA CAASPP standard 
3. 39% to 41% of ED students met or exceeded ELA CAASPP standard 
4. 58% to 59% of all students met or exceeded local benchmark at end 

of 2016-17 school year 
Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Grade K – 2 students will take the DIBELS assessment three times per year. 
2. Grade 2 – 6 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
3. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT. 
4. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student reading progress in grades K-6 using formative, 
interim, and summative assessments (e.g. STAR Reading, SIPPS, 
CELDT, CAASPP interim, CAASPP and other district assessments) 

Full 

Implement a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 SIPPS).  Full 

Expand and utilize the MTSS for students not meeting DIBELS 
screening, CAASPP, and/or local benchmark assessment targets.  

Partial 

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to measure school 
readiness of all Kindergarten students.  

Full 

Provide parent education that provides strategies for families to 
support reading skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and comprehension, 
for their children. 

Partial 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 



Whited Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 2 
 

 
 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Support Coordinator leading several grade level data meetings per year, and continuously 
making adjustments to groupings.  

 2016-2017 was the first year we had full implementation of SIPPS 
 Ongoing training for teachers in SIPPS 

 
 
Description of the results: 

59% to 68% of 3rd graders met or exceeded ELA CAASPP standard  

36% to 43% of 6th graders met or exceeded ELA CAASPP standard 

4% to 13% of EL students met or exceeded ELA CAASPP standard 
39% to 41% of ED students met or exceeded ELA CAASPP standard 
58% to 65% of students met or exceeded local benchmark at end of 2016-17 school year 
 
 
Next Steps: 

 Full implementation of the new ELA curriculum, and ongoing support and planning time for 
teachers. 

 Grade level data meetings 
 MTSS for students below benchmark 
 Designated ELD 

  



Whited Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 3 
 

 

School Goal 2:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 8th grade students.  (LCAP Goal #5) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades K – 6 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. 59% to 63% of 3rd graders met or exceeded math CAASPP 
standard 
39% to 24% of 6th graders met or exceeded math CAASPP 
standard 

2. 12% to 7% of ELs met or exceeded CAASPP math standard 
3. 33% to 28% of ED met or exceeded CAASPP math standard 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Kindergarten students will take Math Benchmarks in the winter and spring. 
2. Grades 1 – 6 take a benchmark assessment three times per year. 
3. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student math progress in grades K-6 using formative, interim, 
and summative assessments (e.g. MobyMax, K-1 district assessments, 
CAASPP interim, and CAASPP). 

Full 

Implement MTSS for students not meeting CAASPP and/or local 
benchmark targets.  

Partial 

Continue to provide support and professional development for teachers 
and principals towards full alignment of instruction to the new 
California State Math standards.  

Partial 

Provide training to teachers and principals in the implementation of a 
new local math benchmark assessment.  

Partial 

Provide parent education that strengthens parent understanding of the 
mathematical concepts and practices embedded within the new 
California State standards. 

Partial 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Whited Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 4 
 

 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Continued focus on professional development to help teachers and administrators better 
understand the intent of the ENY program, and how to best implement it.  

 
Description of the results: 

59% to 63% of 3rd graders met or exceeded math CAASPP standard 

39% to 24% of 6th graders met or exceeded math CAASPP standard 
12% to 7% of ELs met or exceeded CAASPP math standard 
33% to 28% of ED met or exceeded CAASPP math standard          

 
 
Next Steps: 

 Principals participating in CEL work in order to have a unified understanding of HQI in math 
instruction and how to better support teachers.  

 Designated ELD 
 Exploration of additional math interventions that we can implement through MTSS process.  

  



Whited Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 5 
 

 

School Goal 3:  Every English Learner is on target and within timelines, as defined by State and local 
criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP).   (LCAP Goal #6) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this  

Grades K – 6 English 
Learners 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. 54 % to 68% gained at least one CELDT level 
2. 14 % to 31 % moved from “intermediate” to a higher CELDT 

level 
3. % to % of EL students were reclassified as RFEP 
4.  % to % of grades 2 – 6 EL students scored at or above the 50th 

percentile on STAR Reading 
5.  12% to 7% of EL students in grades 3 – 6 at or exceed standard 

on ELA CAASPP 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT. 
2. Grade 2 – 6 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
3. Grades 3 – 6 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Utilize MTSS to monitor English Learner students and provide 
additional support when needed to include intervention and targeted 
summer programs. 

Partial 

Examine and pilot new designated ELD materials and adopt for the 
2017-18 school year.  

Full 

Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals toward full implementation of integrated ELD. 

Partial 

Provide parents of English Learners support and resources in order for 
them to assist their children with homework.  

Partial 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Whited Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 6 
 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Results on ELs from pilot teachers using designated ELD were very positive. 
 New ELA/ ELD curriculum 

 
 
Description of the results: 
54 % to 68% gained at least one CELDT level 
14 % to 31 % moved from “intermediate” to a higher CELDT level 
12% to 7% of EL students in grades 3 – 6 at or exceed standard on ELA CAASPP 
 

 
 
Next Steps: 

 Add back Latino Family Literacy Program and other EL parent opportunities 
 Continued focus on PD around high expectations and teaching strategies that support ELs 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Whited Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 7 
 

 

 
School Goal 4:  Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results 
in a safe learning environment.  (LCAP Goal #3) 
 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:     
 
Grades K – 6 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
2015-16 to 2016-17)     

1. 96 % to 95 % P-2 attendance rate 
2. 20 Days of Suspension to 18 
3. 77 % to 75% of students who self-identify they 

"often"/"always" feeling safe at school 
4. 80 % to 78% number of students who self-identify they 

"often"/"always" feel happy at school 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Year-end school-wide attendance reports 
2. Monthly school-wide attendance reports 
3. Individual attendance contracts with targeted students and their families 
4. Administer results from spring Student Survey data for 2016-17 school year 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Counselors and Office Clerks will receive ongoing training and support 
to monitor attendance. Counselors will set up SART and SARB 
meetings, as needed. 

Partial 

Principal will regularly mail attendance letters for students at risk of 
chronic absenteeism. 

Full 

Implementation of Restorative Practices in grades 4-6 and Kimochis in 
grades K-3 and professional development for staff. 

Full 

Incentives for perfect attendance and improved attendance. Partial 

Office Clerk will phone families daily to verify absences. Full 

  

  
 

 

 

 



Whited Elementary School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 8 
 

 

 

 

 

Actions found to be most effective: 
 Schoolwide celebrations focusing on attendance and being “Kimochi kids” 
 Families better understanding rules around absences because of increased communication and 

letters mailed. 
 
Description of the results: 

1. 96 % to 95 % P-2 attendance rate 
2. 20 Days of Suspension to 18 
3. 77 % to 75% of students who self-identify they "often"/"always" feeling safe at school 

80 % to 78% number of students who self-identify they "often"/"always" feel happy at school 
 
Next Steps: 

 Continue implementation of Restorative Practices and Kimochis, building them into our 
school culture.  

 Build upon what has been started recognizing perfect attendance by increasing the focus to 
include improved attendance.  

 

 



Rincon Valley Charter School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 1 
 

  

School Goal 1:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with special attention to 3rd grade students.  
(LCAP Goal #4) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades 7 – 8 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes: 

1. Increase the percent of all 7th and 8th grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for ELA to 64% for 7th and 60% for 
8th. 

2. Increase the percent of English learners meeting or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for ELA to 20%. 

3. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 7th and 8th 
grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP ELA to 50%. 

4. 60% of students will meet or exceed local benchmarks at each 
trimester. 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Grade 7 – 8 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
2. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT (transition year to ELPAC). 
3. Grades 7 – 8 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student reading progress in grades K-8 using formative, interim, and 
summative assessments (e.g. STAR Reading, CELDT, CAASPP interim, 
CAASPP and other district assessments) 

Full 

Implement MTSS for students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
targets.  Partial 

Provide parent education that provides strategies for families to 
support reading skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and comprehension, 
for their children. 

Partial 

 
 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Continued use of intervention and advocacy during boost. 
 Continued professional development on ELD strategies. 
 Coordinated planning time for ELA teams 
 Incorporated tech tools to help support student development of vocabulary, grammar, 

conventions of writing and sentence structure. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Rincon Valley Charter School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 2 
 

Description of the results: 
 SBAC:   

o We increased the percent of all students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for ELA, with 7th grade increasing from 59% in 15-16 to 79% in 16-17, 
and 8th grade increasing from 56% in 15-16 to 68% in 16-17.   

o We increased the percent of English learners meeting or exceeding the CAASP 
standard for ELA from 14% in 15-16 to 29% in 16-17. 

o We increased the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged students meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP standard for ELA from 43% in 15-16 to 60% in 16-
17.   

 
 CELDT:  82% of students met their annual growth targets towards English proficiency 

 
 STAR Reading:  At the end of 16-17, 66% of students met benchmark on the STAR Reading 

test. 
 

 
Next Steps: 

 Increase use of auxiliary technology-based support programs for vocabulary, sentence structure, 
grammar and writing conventions. 

 Training and implementation of designated ELD curriculum 
 Integration of cross-curricular writing assignments through project-based learning 
 Continued development of rubrics  

  



Rincon Valley Charter School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 3 
 

 

School Goal 2:  Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 8th grade students.  (LCAP Goal #5) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this 
goal:   

Grades 7-8 

Annual performance growth for each group:  (Base to Growth; 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes: 

1. Increase the percent of all 7th and 8th grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 45% for 7th and 40% for 
8th. 

2. Increase the percent of English learners meeting or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for math to 15%. 

3. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 7th and 8th 
grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP math to 35%. 

4. Establish a baseline for local benchmark assessments to ensure 
students are on track to meet 7th and 8th grade CAASPP standards. 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Grades 7 – 8 take a benchmark assessment three times per year. 
2. Grades 7 – 8 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Assess student math progress in grades K-8 using formative, interim, and 
summative assessments (e.g. MobyMax, Engage NY, CAASPP interim, and 
CAASPP). 

Full 

Implement MTSS for students not meeting CAASPP and/or local 
benchmark targets.  

Partial 

Continue to provide support and professional development for teachers 
and principals towards full alignment of instruction to the new 
California State Math standards.  

Full 

Provide training to teachers and principals in the implementation of a 
new local math benchmark assessment.  

Partial 

Provide parent education that strengthens parent understanding of the 
mathematical concepts and practices embedded within the new 
California State standards. 

Partial 

 

 

 

 

 



Rincon Valley Charter School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 4 
 

 

 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Continued training for instructors on Engage NY curriculum 
 District in-services with math focus throughout the school year 
 Coordinated planning time for teachers 
 

 
Description of the results: 

 SBAC:  We increased the percent for all 7th and 8th grade students meeting or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for math, with 7th grade increasing from 42% in 15-16 to 56% in 16-17, and 
8th grade increasing from 35% in 15-16 to 40% in 16-17. 

 EL on CAASPP:  The percent of EL students who met or exceeded the CAASPP math standard 
decreased from 7% in 15-16 to 6% in 16-17. 

 ED on CAASPP:  The percent of socioeconomically disadvantaged students who met or 
exceeded the CAASPP math standard increased from 29% in 15-16 to 32% in 16-17. 
 

 Benchmark: We used Moby Max to administer benchmarks three times in 2016-17, and results 
were mixed and difficult to interpret, partially due to irregularities in assessment procedures and 
student interaction with the assessment. We have made adjustments to the assessment and are 
using it this year, with a baseline established regarding grade level performance. 
 
 

 
Next Steps: 

 Second stage of Engage NY curriculum training for all teachers 
 District pacing guide and pacing support for teachers 
 Continued use of interim assessments, including CAASPP interims to monitor student progress 

towards meeting standards. 
 District end of module benchmarks to use for additional progress monitoring. 

  



Rincon Valley Charter School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 5 
 

 

School Goal 3:  Every English Learner is on target and within timelines, as defined by State and local 
criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP).   (LCAP Goal #6) 

Student groups and grade 
levels to participate in this  

Grades K – 6 English 
Learners 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes: 

1. 65% of English learners shall increase at least one CELDT level. 
(2016-17 Title III AMAO 1).  

2. 30% of English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years or 
less will meet reach proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT. (2016-17 
Title III target AMAO 2a).  

3. 55% of English learners who have been in US schools for more than 
5 years will reach proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT. (2016-17 
Title III target AMAO 2b).  

4. 10% of English learners will be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP). 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. English Learners will be assessed once annually on the CELDT (transition year to ELPAC). 
2. Grade 7 – 8 students will take the STAR Reading assessment four times per year. 
3. Grades 7 – 8 take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (SBAC) in the spring. 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Utilize MTSS to monitor English Learner students and provide 
additional support when needed to include intervention and targeted 
summer programs. 

Partial 

Examine and pilot new designated ELD materials and adopt for the 
2017-18 school year.  

Full 

Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals toward full implementation of integrated ELD. 

Full 

Provide parents of English Learners support and resources in order for 
them to assist their children with homework.  

Partial 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Rincon Valley Charter School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 6 
 

 
Actions found to be most effective: 

 Created and analyzed English Learner profiles across content areas 
 Direct instruction/push-in support for EL students with EL assistant 
 Use of technology tools to assist EL students 

 
Description of the results: 

 CELDT:   
o We increased the percentage of English learners improving by at least one CELDT level, 

from 62.5% in 15-16 to 82.3% in 16-17.   
o We increased the percentage of English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years 

or less and met proficiency on CELDT (AMAO 2a) from 33.3% in 15-16 to 55.6% in 
16-17. 

o We increased the percentage of English learners who have been in US schools for more 
than 5 years and met proficiency on CELDT (AMAO 2b) from 50% in 15-16 to 80% in 
16-17. 

o We increased the percentage of English learners reclassified as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP) from 0% in 15-16 to 13.3% in 16-17. 

 
 STAR Reading:  0% of EL students met benchmark in 16-17 

 
 SBAC:  We increased the percent of English learners meeting or exceeding the CAASP standard 

for ELA from 14% in 15-16 to 29% in 16-17. 
 
Next Steps: 

 Begin using new ELD curriculum and monitoring student progress 
 Continued professional development for teachers in best integrated ELD classroom practices 
 Increased vocabulary support in math and science 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Rincon Valley Charter School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 7 
 

 
School Goal 4:  Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results 
in a safe learning environment.  (LCAP Goal #3) 
 

Student groups 
and grade levels 
to participate in 
this goal:     
 
Grades 7-8 

Measurable Outcomes: 

1. Maintain Rincon Valley Charter School P-2 attendance rate at 96% for all students 
and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.  

2. Reduce Rincon Valley Charter School P-2 chronic absenteeism rate to below 5% 
for all students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students.  

3. Maintain P-2 charter middle school drop-out rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students as measured by CALPADS.  

4. Reduce Rincon Valley Charter School P-2 pupil suspension rate below 4% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.  

5. Maintain Rincon Valley Charter School P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.  

6. Increase the number of students who self-identify they attend a school with a 
positive school climate as measured by the district-wide local student climate 
survey 85% of students report "often"/"always" feeling safe at school and 80% of 
students reported being happy at school "often/always". 

Means of evaluating progress toward this goal:   

1. Year-end school-wide attendance reports 
2. Monthly school-wide attendance reports 
3. Individual attendance contracts with targeted students and their families 
4. Spring Student Survey data for 2016-17 school year 

Actions Planned to Reach This Goal 
Level of Implementation 

(Full, Partial, Not Started) 

Continue staff development in Restorative Practices and practice circles in 
homerooms and as a behavioral intervention. Full 

Incorporate cyber safety training into year round technology classes for all 7th 
graders; encourage attendance at district parent nights geared towards cyber 
safety. 

Full 

Continue to provide expanded counseling services, including friendship 
groups and lunchtime activities Full 

Continue counselor support model for chronic absenteeism and provide 
counselor support for students at risk of SART/SARB Full 

 

 



Rincon Valley Charter School 
Report on Progress Toward Meeting 2016-17 Single Plan Goals 

Page 8 
 

 

Actions found to be most effective: 
 Beginning of year teambuilding and community events 
 Continued support from counselors in both on-campus presence and review of attendance 
 Addition of campus supervisor position 
 Increased development of student leadership program, including community service 

 
Description of the results: 

 We maintained our P-2 attendance rate at 96% for all students and significant subgroups.   
 Our P2 chronic absenteeism went from 5% in 2015-16 to 4.5% in 2016-17. 
 We maintained our P2 dropout rate at 0% for all students including significant subgroups. 
 Our P2 suspension rate went from 5.6% in 2015-16 to 6.3% in 2016-17; however, this increase 

can partly be attributed to an improvement in documentation of disciplinary actions. 
 We maintained our P2 expulsion rate at 0% for students including significant subgroups. 
 We maintained rates of students reporting that they “often/always” feel safe at school at 83%, 

and students reporting that they “often/always” were happy to be at this school went from 77% in 
2015-16 to 76% in 2016-17.  We administered the survey to a significantly larger number of 
students in 2016-17 and maintained student safety and happiness at school. 

 
Next Steps: 

 Continued development of campus supervisor role to include teambuilding and student support 
 Continued development of student leadership/spirit activities at school 
 Maintain counseling support, including lunch groups and individual check ins 
 Continued development of Restorative Practices 

 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.10 

Subject: Rincon Valley Charter School Renewal-Application Review 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent    

 
Background: The Rincon Valley Charter School operates under an application to the Rincon 

Valley Union School District Governing Board.  The application must be renewed 
every five years.  The current application expires on December 11, 2017.  The 
District has established a Renewal Committee to develop an application to the 
Governing Board to extend the Charter School through December 11, 2022.  The 
members of the Renewal Committee include RVCS-Matanzas teachers Harmony 
Gooch and Samantha Tuor, RVCS-Matanzas Site Director Hannah Bates, RVCS-
Sequoia teachers Erin Conrad and Heidi Newton, RVCS-Sequoia Site Director 
Amy Wiese, Trustee Jeff Gospe, District administrators Terry Metzger, Cathy 
Myhers, Joe Pandolfo, and Tony Roehrick.   

  

Highlights: The Renewal Committee worked with the charter school law firm, YM&C to 
ensure the renewal application meets all State and Federal regulations that govern 
charter schools.  The draft renewal application, as presented, is compliant with all 
such regulations.  In addition, the description of the Charter School is aligned to 
current instructional focus and practice of the school.   

Challenges: N/A 

Analysis: The Renewal Committee recommends the Governing Board review Element 9: 
Financial and Programmatic Audit.  The programmatic audit is not a legal 
requirement for the Charter School.  However, the annual report described under 
this section is valuable information that should assist the Governing Board in its 
oversight responsibilities for the school.  The Renewal Committee asks the 
Governing Board to determine if this section should be removed, retained as is, or 
retained and amended as determined by the Governing Board.   

Next Steps: The renewal application will be brought back to Governing Board at its November 
14 regular meeting for approval.  Following approval by the RVUSD Governing 
Board, the renewal application will be forwarded to the California Department of 
Education. 

Attachments:  RVCS Renewal Application 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



	
	
	
	
	
	
	

 
Rincon Valley 
Charter School 

 
Renewal Application 

 
For the Term   

December 11, 2017 through December 11, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Table of Contents 
 
 

Affirmation……………………………………………………………………………. 1 
 
Charter Renewal Criteria…………………………………………………………….... 

 
3 

 
Element 1: Educational Program…………………………………………………….... 

 
6 

 
Element 2: Measurable Pupil Outcomes……………………………………………… 

 
21 

 
Element 3: Methods to Assess Progress Towards Meeting Outcomes……………….. 

 
25 

 
Element 4: Governance Structure of the School……………………………………… 

 
27 

 
Element 5: Employee Qualifications………………………………………………….. 

 
30 

 
Element 6: Health and Safety Procedures…………………………………………….. 

 
31 

 
Element 7: Means to Achieve Racial/Ethnic Balance Reflective of the Rincon Valley  
Union School District…………………………………………………………………. 

 
 

32 
 
Element 8: Admission Requirements…………………………………………………. 

 
33 

 
Element 9: Financial and Programmatic Audit……………………………………….. 

 
34 

 
Element 10: Pupil Suspension and Expulsion………………………………………… 

 
36 

 
Element 11: Retirement Systems……………………………………………………... 

 
37 

 
Element 12: Attendance Alternatives…………………………………………………. 

 
38 

 
Element 13: Description of Employee Rights………………………………………… 

 
39 

 
Element 14: Dispute Resolution Process……………………………………………... 

 
40 

 
Element 15: Closure Procedures……………………………………………………… 

 
41 

 
Miscellaneous Clauses………………………………………………………………... 

 
43 

 

 
 
 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

1 

AFFIRMATIONS 
 
The Charter School is committed to the following affirmations: 
 

• The Charter School shall meet all statewide standards and conduct the student 
assessments required, pursuant to Education Code Section 60605, and any other 
statewide standards authorized in statute, or student assessments applicable to students in 
non-charter public schools. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(c)(1)] 

• The Rincon Valley Union School District declares that it shall be deemed the exclusive 
public school employer of the employees of Charter School for purposes of the 
Educational Employment Relations Act.  [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(b)(6)] 

• The Charter School shall be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, 
employment practices, and all other operations. [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(d)(1)]	

• The Charter School will not charge tuition. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)]	
• The Charter School will not discriminate against any pupil on the basis of the 

characteristics described in Education Code Section 220 (actual or perceived disability, 
gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual 
orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set 
forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code or association with an individual who has any 
of the aforementioned characteristics). [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)]	

• The Charter School will admit all pupils who wish to attend the charter school, subject 
only to capacity. If the Charter School receives a greater number of applications than 
there are spaces for students, admission shall be determined through a public random 
drawing process. Except as required by Education Code Section 47605(d)(2), admission 
to the Charter School shall not be determined according to the place of residence of the 
student or his or her parents within the State. Preference in the public random drawing 
shall be given as required by Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(B). In the event of a 
drawing, the chartering authority shall make reasonable efforts to accommodate the 
growth of the Charter School in accordance with Education Code Section 
47605(d)(2)(C). [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(A)-(C)] 

• The Meetings of the Rincon Valley Union School District Board of Education for the 
Charter School shall be held in accordance with the Brown Act.	

• The Charter School shall comply with the Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Improvement Act (“IDEA”), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act ("Section 504 "), and 
the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”).	

• The Charter School shall comply with the Public Records Act and the Federal 
Educational Privacy Rights Act (“FERPA”).	

• The Charter School shall continually strive for a healthy, collaborative, synergistic 
relationship with the District and surrounding Districts.	

• The Charter School shall offer, at a minimum, the same number of minutes of instruction 
set forth in Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(l)(A)-(D) for the appropriate grade levels.	

• The Charter School will develop a conflicts of interest code in accordance with the 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

2 

conflicts code of the District.	
• If a pupil is expelled or leaves the Charter School without graduating or completing the 

school year for any reason, the charter school shall notify the superintendent of the school 
district of the pupil's last known address within 30 days, and shall, upon request, provide 
that school district with a copy of the cumulative record of the pupil, including a 
transcript of grades or report card and health information. [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(d)(3)]	

• The Charter School shall meet all requirements for employment set forth in applicable 
provisions of law, including, but not limited to credentials, as necessary. [Ref. Title 5	

o California Code of Regulations Section 11967.5.l(f)(5)(C)].	
• The Charter School shall ensure that teachers in the Charter School hold a Commission 

on Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which a 
teacher in other public schools are required to hold. As allowed by statute, flexibility will 
be given to non-core, non-college preparatory teachers. [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(l)]	

• The Charter School shall comply with all applicable portions of the Elementary and 
Secondary Education Act (“ESEA”), as reauthorized and amended by the Every Student 
Succeeds Act (“ESSA”).	

• The Charter School shall meet or exceed the legally required minimum number of school 
days. [Ref. Title 5 California Code of Regulations Section 11960]	

• The Charter School shall maintain accurate and contemporaneous written records that 
document all pupil attendance and make these records available for audit and inspection. 
[Ref. Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(2)] 

• The Charter School shall, on a regular basis, consult with its parents and teachers 
regarding the Charter School's educational programs. [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(c)] 

• The Charter School shall comply with all laws establishing the minimum and maximum 
age for public school enrollment. [Ref. Education Code Sections 47612(b) and 47610] 

  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

3 

CHARTER RENEWAL CRITERIA 
 

1. Education Code Section 47607(b) requires that a charter school must meet at least one of 
the following renewal criteria prior to receiving a charter renewal: 
1.1. Attained its Academic Performance Index (API) growth target in the prior year or 

in two of the last three years, both school-wide and for all groups of pupils served 
by the charter school. 

1.2. Ranked in deciles 4 to 10, inclusive, on the API in the prior year or in two of the 
last three years. 

1.3. Ranked in deciles 4 to 10 inclusive, in the API for a demographically comparable 
school in the prior year or in two of the last three years. 

1.4. The entity that granted the charter determines that the academic performance of 
the charter school is at least equal to the academic performance of the public 
schools that the charter school pupils would otherwise have been required to 
attend, as well as the academic performance of the schools in the school district in 
which the charter school is located, taking into account the composition of the 
pupil population that is served at the charter school. 

1.5. Has qualified for an alternative accountability system pursuant to subdivision (h) 
of Education Code Section 52052. 

 
2. Education Code Section 47607(a)(3): (A) The authority that granted the charter shall 

consider increases in pupil academic achievement for all groups of pupils served by the 
charter school as the most important factor in determining whether to grant a charter 
renewal.  (B) For purposes of this section, “all groups of pupils served by the charter 
school” means a numerically significant pupil subgroup, as defined by paragraph (3) of 
subdivision (a) of Section 52052.  
 
Education Code Section 52052(a)(3):  (A) For purposes of this section, a numerically 
significant pupil subgroup is one that consists of at least 30 pupils, each of whom has a 
valid test score. (B) Notwithstanding subparagraph (A), for a subgroup of pupils who are 
foster youth or homeless youth, a numerically significant pupil subgroup is one that 
consists of at least 15 pupils.  Potential subgroups include: 
2.1. Ethnic subgroups. 
2.2. Socioeconomically disadvantaged pupils. 
2.3. English learners. 
2.4. Pupils with disabilities. 
2.5. Foster youth. 
2.6. Homeless youth. 

 
The following shall serve as documentation confirming that the Charter School meets the 
statutory criteria required for renewal set forth in Education Code Section 47607(b). 
 
Assembly Bill 484 amended Education Code section 52052(e)(4) to allow schools that do not 
have an API calculated to use one of the following criteria to meet legislative and/or 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

4 

programmatic requirements: 
• The most recent API calculation; 
• An average of the three most recent annual API calculations; or 
• Alternative measures that show increases in pupil academic achievement for all groups of 

pupils schoolwide and among significant groups. 
 
The Charter School meets the charter renewal criteria established in Education Code Section 
47607(b) by utilizing “the most recent API calculation” as allowed per Education Code Section 
52052(e)(4)(A), as further specified below. 
 
Analysis of Most Recent API Calculation 
 

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS FOR CHARTER RENEWAL 
Education Code Section 47607(b) – Charter School Must Meet at Least ONE  

Criteria for Renewal 

Renewal Criteria Criteria Met 

Attained its Academic Performance Index (API) growth target in the prior 
year or in two of the last three years, both school wide and for all groups 
of pupils served by the charter school. 

Yes; see table 
below 

Ranked in deciles 4 to 10, inclusive, on the API in the prior year or in two 
of the last three years. 

Yes; see table 
below 

Ranked in deciles 4 to 10 inclusive, in the API for a demographically 
comparable school in the prior year or in two of the last three years. 

Yes; see table 
below 

The entity that granted the charter determines that the academic 
performance of the charter school is at least equal to the academic 
performance of the public schools that the charter school pupils would 
otherwise have been required to attend, as well as the academic 
performance of the schools in the school district in which the charter 
school is located, taking into account the composition of the pupil 
population that is served at the charter school. 

Not Applicable 

Has qualified for an alternative accountability system pursuant to 
subdivision (h) of Education Code Section 52052 

Not Applicable 

(Source: CDE DataQuest, accessed September 15, 2017) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

5 

The Charter School had the following API scores: 
 

Year API Ranking Similar School 
Ranking 

API Scores API Growth 
Target (Actual 

Growth) 
2007-08 9 6 847 A (+21) 
2008-09 9 7 825 A (-19) 
2009-10 8 5 888 A (+65) 
2010-11 9 9 871 A (-17) 
2011-12 9 9 862 A (-19) 
2012-13 8 3 850 A (-12) 

“A” means the school or subgroups scored at or above the statewide performance target of 800. 
(Source: CDE website, accessed August 28, 2017) 
 
Additional Justification for Charter Renewal: Analysis of Student Subgroup Academic 
Achievement (Education Code Section 47607(a)(3)) 
 
The Charter School has the following significant subgroups:  Socio-economically Disadvantaged 
Pupils, Pupils with Disabilities, and White Students.  The following table outlines the CAASPP 
performance for ELA and Math for these significant subgroups. 
 

Years Subgroup ELA % Meeting/ 
Exceeding 

Math % Meeting/ 
Exceeding 

2014-15 
2015-16 
2016-17 

 
Socio-Econ 

48 
43 
60 

26 
29 
32 

2014-15 
2015-16 
2016-17 

 
Disabilities 

24 
30 
43 

14 
12 
21 

2014-15 
2015-16 
2016-17 

 
White 

65 
63 
78 

42 
42 
55 

 
The Spring 2017 California Dashboard compares the 2014-15 and 2015-16 school years and sets 
the following performance levels for the significant subgroups present at the Charter School: 

• Socio-economically Disadvantaged Pupils:  Blue 
• Pupils with Disabilities:  Red 
• White Students:  Green 

 
Spring 2017 CAASPP scores are significantly higher than previous years and demonstrate the 
school is improving its academic achievement results for its significant subgroups of students.  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

6 

ELEMENT 1. 
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM 

 
Governing Law: The educational program of the charter school, designed, among other things, 
to identify those whom the charter school is attempting to educate, what it means to be an 
"educated person" in the 21st century, and how learning best occurs. The goals identified in that 
program shall include the objective of enabling pupils to become self-motivated, competent, and 
lifelong learners. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A)(i). 
 
The annual goals for the charter school for all pupils and for each subgroup of pupils identified 
pursuant to Section 52052, to be achieved in the state priorities, as described in subdivision (d) 
of Section 52060, that apply for the grade levels served, or the nature of the program operated, 
by the charter school, and specific annual actions to achieve those goals. A charter petition may 
identify additional school priorities, the goals for the school priorities, and the specific annual 
actions to achieve those goals. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A)(ii). 
 
The Charter School is a site-based, traditional calendar charter school for seventh and eighth 
grade students. It is located on one or more sites within the Rincon Valley Union School District. 
The school community at each site will operate as a unique TK-8 campus. The Charter School 
fosters a learning environment where all students can achieve excellence in academics while 
involving themselves in a community of kindergarten through eighth grade learners. Students 
develop socially and emotionally within a safe and nurturing environment where they will-feel-
supported in-their development as a young adult. 
 
MISSION 
 
The Charter School pursues excellence in middle school education where students are self-
motivated, competent, lifelong learners who hold themselves to high academic and personal 
standards within a student-centered environment, emphasizing a challenging core curriculum. 
 
VISION 
 
The vision of the Charter School is to provide an unique educational program for students who 
are interested and committed to participating in a rigorous core academic program in a small 
school setting, based upon the California state content standards and local essential standards, 
with an educational experience focusing on Project-Based Learning, infused with technology and 
fine arts to support the intellectual, physical, social, and emotional development of a 21st century 
student. 
 
WHOM THE SCHOOL IS ATTEMPTING TO EDUCATE 
 
The Charter School education program provides expanded educational choice and opportunities 
for families in the Rincon Valley and greater Santa Rosa community. The Charter School offers 
two separate program options. The first is for students in grades 7 and 8, which includes strong 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

7 

student support. Informal data gathered from parents and teachers indicate that a number of 7th 
and 8th grade students’ families currently seek alternative private programs with lower 
enrollment and higher student support. In addition, these families desire a rigorous academic 
program with access to technology and the fine arts. The second program option is a long-term 
independent study program for students in TK-8. This option provides credentialed teacher 
support for families who choose, for whatever reason, to instruct their children primarily at 
home. 
 
The Charter School serves students in TK-8th grade whose families have an interest in and 
dedication to the school's philosophy and vision. The Charter School shall be nonsectarian in its 
admission policies employment practices, and all other operations. The school shall not 
discriminate against any student on the basis of race, ethnicity, national origin, gender, or any 
characteristic listed in Education Code Section 220. 
 
WHAT IT MEANS TO BE AN "EDUCATED PERSON" IN THE 21ST CENTURY 
 
To be a well-educated person of the 21st century, one needs: 
 

• To be academically capable, able to think creatively, make sound decisions, solve 
problems, and possess scholarly attributes.	

• To have a deep understanding of the humanities, sciences, and the arts.	
• To be capable of using technology as a tool in the pursuit of continued learning.	
• To be an exceptional communicator; one who possesses superb skills in many forms of 

communication.	
• To be capable of establishing and completing long- and short-term goals.	
• To possess the attributes of responsibility, citizenship, sociability, diligence, civility, 

integrity, and honesty.	
 
THE ATTRIBUTES OF AN EDUCATED PERSON IN THE 21ST CENTURY INCLUDE: 
 

• Being literate.	
• Being competent in oral, written, and visual communication.	
• Understanding the scientific process.	
• Understanding historical foundations and apply them to the modern day.	
• Understanding of the mathematical process.	
• Ability to think critically, creatively, analytically, and logically.	
• Ability to gather, organize, and present information. 	
• Ability to critically assess data and sources.	
• Ability to set and achieve personal, academic, and group goals. 
• Ability to communicate and collaborate in a group setting. 

 
 
 
 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

8 

HOW LEARNING BEST OCCURS 
 
Learning best occurs for adolescents when they are involved with issues they regard as important 
and that have meaning in their own lives. They need to: 
 

• Recognize and acknowledge global diversity.	
• Explore and apply ideas such as fairness, equity and justice to the world around them.	
• Be actively involved in their learning.	
• Engage in interactive learning opportunities within the community.	
• Be provided with opportunities for differentiated learning.	
• Engage in multiple levels of questioning and thinking.  	
• Engage in editing and revision based on feedback to finalize work.	
• Access, evaluate, and incorporate information using technology.	
• Engage in metacognition.	
• Experience high expectations from adults in their lives and be provided with the support 

needed to achieve those high expectations. 
 
METHODS OF INSTRUCTION 
 
As outlined in the Carnegie Council on Adolescent Development Report, Turning Points: 
Preparing American Youth for the 21st Century, the school and teachers will work to: 
 

• Create small communities for learning where stable, close, mutually respectful 
relationships with adults and peers are considered fundamental for intellectual 
development and personal growth. The key elements of these communities are schools-
within-schools or houses, students and teachers grouped together as teams and small-
group advisories that ensure that every student is known well by at least one adult.	

• Teach a core academic program that results in students who are literate in all disciplines, 
think critically, lead a healthy life, behave ethically, and assume the responsibilities of 
global citizenship.	

 
At the Charter School, our primary method of instruction is Project-Based-Learning, which is 
defined by the Buck Institute (Novato, CA) as a teaching method in which students gain 
knowledge and skills by working for an extended period of time to investigate and respond to an 
authentic, engaging, and complex question, problem, or challenge. Additional instructional 
approaches may include but are not limited to the following: 
 

• Utilizing strategies that emphasize critical thinking, complex reasoning, and 
differentiated instruction.	

• Providing students opportunities for feedback and choice that shape their learning 
experience. 

• Providing students with interactive learning opportunities within the community that 
bring them into contact with people with diverse perspectives.	

• Providing opportunities for students to engage in interdisciplinary and thematic 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

9 

explorations that require multiple levels of questioning and thinking.	
• Provide direct instruction and multiple opportunities in the giving and receiving of 

feedback toward editing, revising, and finalizing their work.	
• Utilizing modern technology to ensure that students become empowered learners, 

knowledge constructors, digital citizens, creative communicators, innovative designers, 
computational thinkers, and global collaborators.	

• Independent study in which the parent provides instruction in partnership/consultation 
with a credentialed teacher. 

 
CURRICULUM 
 
The courses of study developed for the school are demanding, relevant, and taught through an 
interdisciplinary, project-based approach. Based upon current research on how students learn, the 
interdisciplinary curriculum reinforces brain-based learning. It has been demonstrated that the 
brain appears better able to retain information when curriculum is presented as integrated rather 
than in isolation. 
 
The integrated, interdisciplinary approach is based on the California Content Standards 
(including but not limited to the Common Core State Standards, Next Generation Science 
Standards, and English Language Development Standards, local key standards and the California 
Department of Education document “Taking Center Stage: A Commitment to Standards-Based 
Education for California's Middle Grades Students." 
 
The core curriculum will include reading/language arts, mathematics, history/social science, and 
science. The content standards define for each subject and grade level the most important 
knowledge that students must acquire and the skills that they must master. 
 
Language Arts-Reading 
 
Students demonstrate strong reading, writing, listening, speaking, and presentation skills, in 
multiple forms of expression (e.g., written, oral, multimedia), with communication skills 
appropriate to the setting and audience. They comprehend and critically interpret multiple forms 
of expression including literature from various time periods and cultures. 
 

• Students are required to articulate the expressed purposes and characteristics of different 
forms of prose, including the short story novel, novella, poetry, and essay. They engage 
in identifying and tracing the development of an author's argument; reading, evaluating, 
and applying informational research as evidence of their own ideas; and analyzing 
setting, characterization, and conflict in fictional narratives.  

• Word Analysis Fluency, and Systematic Vocabulary Development: Students must 
identify idioms, analogies, metaphors, and similes in prose and poetry and continue to 
clarify word meanings through definitions, examples, restatements and contrasts. 

• Reading Comprehension – Nonfiction: Strategies focused on (I) use and analysis of 
categories of informational materials (e.g., consumer and workplace documents, 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

10 

textbooks, newspapers, instructional manuals); and (2) assessment of an author's 
argument. 

• Literary Response and Analysis – Students are required to articulate the express purposes 
and characteristics of different forms of prose (e.g., short story, novel, novella, essay). 

• The instruction is both deep and diligent and allows students ample opportunity to 
scrutinize a particular work. Selected works lend themselves to exploring with the 
students how events advance the plot; how each event explains past or present actions or 
foreshadows future actions, and how a character's thoughts, words speech patterns, and 
actions reveal characterization. 

• Extensive independent reading is an important element of the curriculum – including 
good representation of narrative and expository instructional materials. A variety of 
methods are used to assess the reading done outside the classroom including student 
maintained reading logs and book reports in various formats.	

 
Language Arts-Writing 
 

• Writing focuses on multi-paragraph expository compositions. Students are expected to 
write texts of between 500-700 words for the purpose of informational summary, 
interpretation of literature, research reports, argumentative essays, and fictional 
narratives. 

• Students develop strategies for organized writing with an emphasis on thesis statements, 
evidence, interpretation, documentation, and MLA format. Students explore the various 
stages of the writing process including outlines, rough drafts, feedback, editing and 
revision, and finalizing. 

• Students demonstrate a general command of English language conventions in both 
writing.  

• Curriculum emphasis at this grade level includes sentence structure (e.g., proper 
placement of modifiers and use of the active voice); grammar (e.g., proper use of 
infinitives and participles, clear pronouns and antecedents); punctuation (e.g., correct use 
of hyphens, dashes, brackets, and semicolons); and spelling (e.g., applying the spelling of 
bases and affixes to derivatives).	

 
Language Arts – Listening and Speaking 
 

• Students deliver focused, coherent presentations that convey ideas clearly and relate to 
the background and interests of the audience.  

• Students deliver well-organized, formal presentations employing traditional rhetorical 
strategies (e.g., narration, exposition, persuasion, and description) and strong presentation 
skills (e.g., maintaining eye contact, speaking loudly and clearly).   

• Students demonstrate a wide range of speaking skills and strategies that may include but 
are not limited to: collaborative discussion, discussion preparation, following rules and 
formats of formal discussion, meeting deadlines, questioning ideas and making 
connections, interpreting evidence, analyzing purpose, establishing relevancy, integrating 
technology, and academic language.	



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

11 

• Student speaking demonstrates a command of standard American English.	
 
Mathematics 
 
A high-quality mathematics program will be provided for each student. To compete successfully 
in the global economy, today’s students must have a high degree of comprehension in 
mathematics. The State content standards and key standards focus on essential skills to prepare 
students for the study of advanced mathematics, science and technical careers, as well as success 
in a secondary program. 
 
Students develop abilities to reason logically and to understand and apply mathematical 
processes and concepts, including those within arithmetic, algebra, geometry, etc. 
The goals in mathematics education are for students to: 
 

• Make sense of problems and persevere in solving them. 
• Reason abstractly and quantitatively. 
• Construct viable arguments and critique the reasoning of others. 
• Model with mathematics. 
• Use appropriate tools strategically. 
• Attend to precision. 
• Look for and make use of structure. 
• Look for and express regularity in repeated reasoning. 
• Develop fluency in basic computational skills.	

 
History/Social Science 
 
Students understand and apply historical, civic, economic, and geographical knowledge in order 
to serve as citizens in today's world of diverse cultures. 
 

• Grade Seven: World History and Geography: Medieval and Early Modern Times	
o Students in Grade 7 study the Americas and Afro-Eurasia between the years 300-

1789 CE.  After reviewing the ways in which archaeologists and historians uncover 
the past, students study the great civilizations that were developing concurrently 
throughout the world during medieval and early modern times. They examine the 
growing economic interaction among civilizations as well as the exchange of ideas, 
beliefs, technologies, and commodities. They learn about the resulting growth of the 
Scientific Revolution, the Age of Exploration, and Enlightenment.  Finally, students 
connect democratic ideas that led to the foundation of the United States government 
and continue to influence the world today. 

• Grade Eight: United States History and Geography: Growth and Conflict	
o Students in grade eight study the ideas, issues, and events from colonization to 

Industrialization. Students analyze the heritage of our nation, the writing of the 
Declaration of Independence, framing of the Constitution, and the Bill of Rights. 
They trace the development of American politics, society, culture, geography, and 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

12 

economics relating them to the emergence of major regional differences. They learn 
about the challenges facing the new nation, with an emphasis on the causes, course, 
and consequences of Westward Expansion, Civil War, Reform Movements, and 
Reconstruction. They make connections between the rise of industrialization and 
contemporary social and economic conditions.	

 
Science 
 
Glenn T. Seaborg, Chair of the Academic Standards Commission’s Science Committee, stated in 
"A Letter to a Young Scientist" that science is an organized body of knowledge and a method of 
proceeding to an extension of this knowledge by hypothesis and experiment. With this in mind, 
the science curriculum reflects a view of science as a balance between the body of knowledge, 
the practices that scientists and engineers use, and concepts that cross boundaries between 
disciplines. The curriculum provides the foundational skills and knowledge for students to learn 
core concepts, principles, and theories of science. The content standards are taught so that 
students have the opportunity to build connections that link science to technology and societal 
impacts. 
 

• Students successfully utilize scientific research and inquiry methods to understand and 
apply the major concepts underlying the life sciences and physical science. 

• The study of science in seventh grade includes the structure and properties of matter, 
chemical reactions, history of Earth, Earth’s systems, matter and energy in organisms and 
ecosystems, interdependent relationships in ecosystems, human impacts, and engineering 
design.  

• The study of science in eighth grade includes human impacts, space systems, history of 
Earth, growth, development and reproduction of organisms, natural selection and 
adaptation, waves and electromagnetic radiation, forces, interactions, energy, and 
engineering design.	

 
Independent Study 
 
The Charter School has added grades TK-6, thus forming a TK-8 Charter School, for the purpose 
of establishing an independent study program to serve home-schooling families in Sonoma 
County and adjacent Counties as determined by the District Board of Education. The 
independent study program shall meet all state standards and shall be conducted in strict 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter Schools Act, and Education Code Section 51745 et 
seq. and its implementing regulations. The Governing Board of the District shall determine the 
capacity of the program. 
 
UNIQUE ASPECTS OF THE EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM 
 
The teachers are expected to use an interdisciplinary approach in a standards-based system with 
student centered learning opportunities. 
 
The standard will be for high quality student work enhanced and enabled by excellent teaching 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

13 

within a supportive school culture. 
 
Teachers are expected to: 
 

• Possess demonstrable professional competence.	
• Provide caring emotional support for all students to develop positive educational values.	
• Maintain emotionally and physically safe learning environments.	
• Implement standards-based education in all core areas of the curriculum.	
• Use curriculum materials and assessment practices that are aligned with standards.	
• Provide content and performance standards that are clear including required academic 

performance levels, for all parents and students.	
• Provide differentiated instruction including the use of scaffolding, to assess students in 

learning to use knowledge and skills in practical ways.	
• Engage students in tasks requiring complex reasoning that are expressed in speech or 

writing or in experiments projects, artwork, models, or other appropriate means.	
• Assign relevant and demanding homework linked to content and performance standards.	
• Establish the development of foundational and academic literacy for all students as the 

highest priority in the school.	
• Use support personnel effectively, including aides, tutors, and adult volunteers.	
• Avoid classroom interruptions.	
• Facilitate student access to human services agencies or other appropriate helping 

organizations.	
• Plan, implement, and evaluate regularly school-based initiatives focused on remedial 

programs for students.	
• Inform students, parents, and the community about the basic and special efforts of the 

school to help all students meet or exceed required levels of academic proficiency.	
• Be encouraged to be innovative.	

 
The Charter School “re-engages families in the education of young adolescents by giving 
families meaningful roles in school governance, communicating with families about the school 
program and students’ progress, and offering family opportunities to support the learning process 
at home and at the school.” (Carnegie Council on Adolescent Development) 
 
The California Service-Learning Task Force has called for school districts to use service learning 
to connect youths to their communities by integrating academic facts and standards while 
providing opportunities for students to demonstrate civic responsibility. Opportunities for service 
learning are offered within the school. 
 
The Charter School is responsible for helping students become good citizens. It communicates 
the civic values of the U.S. Constitution, including the Bill of Rights. Those values include 
freedom of religion, speech, and press; equal protection; non-discrimination; and fairness and 
due process under the law. The school also promotes shared social values, such as responsibility, 
honesty, kindness, and respect for others, through a strong character education program. 
 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

14 

Learning Opportunities: 
 

• Students know how to access and use information via the use of electronic 
equipment/technology.	

• Students locate information from print, primary, and digital sources, and validate the 
quality and integrity of the content.	

• Students are provided on-line homework challenges.	
• Students participate in a well-articulated physical fitness program that will serve them 

throughout their lives. The program includes extracurricular sports opportunities.	
• Students participate in visual and performing arts opportunities both as a participant and a 

spectator to broaden student's awareness.	
• Students are given the opportunity to develop strong citizenship and leadership, and the 

ability to collaborate and work effectively with others within the TK-8 community.	
• Underlying and utilized throughout each of the core curriculum areas are additional skills 

such as: critical thinking, technology, creative expression through various forms of the 
arts, knowledge of pertinent issues of health, and the development of physical fitness.	

• Students are supported in developing the necessary skills, which will enable students to 
pursue their own path of learning throughout their adult lives.	

• Students are taught important practices for a healthy adult life, including: personal 
financial management skills, job readiness and career exploration, higher education 
possibilities.	

• Students develop a core knowledge of basic information that a person needs to be a 
successful and productive citizen of the United States.	

 
The electives program may include but may not be limited to art, drama, music, foreign 
language, ethics, and after school sports, as determined by student interest and the availability of 
qualified staffing. 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL GOALS AND ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE THE EIGHT 
STATE PRIORITIES  
 
Please see the section “Goals, Actions and Measurable Outcomes Aligned with the Eight State 
Priorities” in Element 2 of the Charter for a description of the Charter School’s annual goals to 
be achieved in the Eight State Priorities school-wide and for all pupil subgroups, as described 
in Education Code Section 52060(d), and specific annual actions to achieve those goals, in 
accordance with Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A)(ii). 
 
ENGLISH LEARNERS 
 
Of special importance to middle schools is the idea that English-language development 
instruction should continue for students at all levels of English language proficiency. The State 
ELD Standards are taught through the state English/Language Arts Common Core State 
Standards to ensure that English language learners develop proficiency in both the English 
language and the concepts and skills contained in the State standards. 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

15 

All English learners are supported with specially-designed academic instruction in English 
(SDAIE) to help develop their English skills and simultaneously address grade-level content in 
the core curriculum. Students new to US schools (known as newcomers) receive additional 
support from a classified or certificated staff member to acquire basic English language quickly. 
English learners who have not been designated as Fluent English Proficient (R-FEP) after 6 years 
of instruction are classified as Long Term English Learners (LTEL). These students receive 
intensive intervention from a certificated teacher, using instructional materials from the state-
approved list. All teachers hold an English learner authorization (CLAD or equivalent). 
 
Home Language Survey 
 
The Charter School will administer the home language survey upon a student’s initial enrollment 
into the Charter School (on enrollment forms). 
 
English Language Proficiency Testing 
 
All students who indicate that their home language is other-than-English will be administered a 
California English language proficiency test within thirty days of initial enrollment and at least 
annually thereafter re-designated as fluent English proficient.  
 
The Charter School will notify all parents of its responsibility for English language proficiency 
testing and of those test results within thirty days of receiving results from publisher. The 
California English Language Proficiency Test (CELDT) will be used through Fall 2017. 
Beginning Spring 2018 the English Language Proficiency Assessment for California (ELPAC) 
will be used to fulfill the requirements under the Every Student Succeeds Act for annual English 
proficiency testing. 
 
SPECIAL EDUCATION STUDENTS/SECTION 504/ADA 
 
Public School of the District 
 
The Charter School shall comply with all applicable State and Federal Laws in serving students 
with disabilities, including, but not limited to, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act ("Section 
504"), the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA") and the Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Improvement Act ("IDEA"). The Charter School shall be deemed a public school of 
the District pursuant to Education Code Section 4764l(b). 
 
A Charter School that is deemed to be a public school of the local educational agency that 
granted the charter shall participate in state and federal funding in the same manner as any other 
public school of the granting agency. Further, a child with disabilities attending the charter 
school shall receive special educational instruction or designated instruction and services, or 
both, in the same manner as a child with disabilities who attends another public school of that 
district. The District shall ensure that all children with disabilities enrolled in the Charter School 
receive special education and designated instruction and services in a manner that is consistent 
with their individualized education program and in compliance with the IDEA. 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

16 

Non-Discrimination 
 
The Charter School shall not deny nor discourage any student from enrollment due to a disability 
or due to the Charter School's concerns about its ability to provide appropriate services. The 
Charter School will comply with all provisions of federal law and implementing regulations 
related to the rights of students with disabilities and their parents (20 U. S.C. Chapter 33, the 
IDEA). The Charter School facility shall not present physical barriers that would limit an eligible 
student's full participation in the educational and extracurricular program offered by the Charter 
School. 
In-Service on Referral System  
 
The Charter School shall designate a representative to attend an in-service conducted by the 
District or the SELPA on the referral system and criteria. 
 
Services 
 
The Charter School will be treated as any other public school in the District with respect to the 
provision of special education services, including the allocation of duties between on-site staff 
and resources and the District staff and resources. All individuals providing services to the 
Charter School shall be appropriately credentialed under California and Federal law. 
 
The District and the School agree to allocate responsibility for the provisions of services 
(including but not limited to identification, evaluation, I.E.P. development and modification, and 
educational services) in a manner consistent with their allocation between the District and its 
local public school sites. Where particular services are generally provided by staff at the local 
school site level, the Charter School will be responsible for providing said staff and 
programming; where particular services are provided to the school by the central District office, 
those services will be made available to the Charter School in a similar fashion. 
 
The Charter School and the District intend that they will jointly ensure that all students entitled 
to services under the IDEA and California Education Code Section 56000, et seq., will receive 
those services. 
 
The District shall be responsible for providing all services under this Charter to all students of 
the Charter School regardless of their school district of residence. 
 
If needed due to limited special education staff, the District may seek out contracts with other 
school districts, or companies, or organizations to serve Charter School students. The Charter 
School shall assist the District in procuring such services. 
 
Identification and Referral 
 
The Charter School shall have the same responsibility as any other public school in the District 
to work cooperatively with the District in identifying and referring students who have or may 
have exceptional needs that qualify them to receive special education services. The Charter 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

17 

School will develop, maintain, and implement policies and procedures to ensure identification 
and referral of students who have, or may have, such exceptional needs. These policies and 
procedures will be in accordance with California law and District policy. As between the Charter 
School and the District, the Charter School is solely responsible for obtaining the cumulative 
files, prior and/or current Individualized Education Plan ("IEP") and other special education 
information on any student enrolling from a non-District school. A pupil shall be referred for 
special education instruction and services only after the resources of the regular education 
program have been considered and where appropriate utilized and exhausted. 
 
The District shall provide the Charter School with any assistance that it generally provides its 
other public schools in the identification and referral processes. The District will ensure that the 
Charter School is provided with notification and relevant files of all students transferring to the 
School from a District school, who have an existing IEP, in the same-manner that it ensures the 
forwarding of such information between District schools. All records and files will be released 
with the signed permission of the parent/guardian. 
 
Assessment 
 
The District and Charter School shall make the determination as to what assessments are 
necessary, including assessments for all referred students, annual assessments and tri-annual 
assessments, in accordance with the District's general practice and procedure and applicable law. 
The Charter School shall not conduct unilateral independent assessments without prior written 
approval of the District. 
 
Individualized Education Plan (“IEP”) 
 
Responsibility for arranging necessary IEP meetings shall be allocated in accordance with the 
District’s general practice, procedure and applicable law. The Charter School shall be 
responsible for having the designated representative of the Charter School in attendance at the 
IEP meetings in addition to representatives who are knowledgeable about the regular education 
program at the Charter School. 
 
Decisions regarding eligibility, goals/objectives, program placement and exit from special 
education shall be the decision of the IEP team. Team membership shall be in compliance with 
state and federal law and shall include the designated representative of the Charter School (or 
designee) and the designated representative of the District (or designee) (when appropriate). 
Services and placements shall be provided to all eligible Charter School students in accordance 
with the policies, procedures and requirements of the District and of the Local Plan for Special 
Education. 
 
For students who enroll in the Charter School with a current IEP, the District and the Charter 
School shall conduct an IEP meeting in accordance with applicable law. The Charter School 
shall notify the District immediately of students who may fall into this category. The District will 
provide consultative assistance to Charter School to help transition the student. 
 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

18 

To the extent that the agreed upon IEP requires educational or related services to be delivered by 
staff other than the Charter School staff, the District shall provide and/or arrange for such 
services in the same manner that it would be legally obligated to provide to the students at its 
other District schools. District services shall include consultative services by District staff to 
Charter School staff in the same manner that District staff consults with staff at other District 
schools. 
 
Concerns/Complaints 
 
The Charter School shall instruct Parents/Guardians to raise concerns regarding special 
education services, related services and rights to the Charter School staff. The Charter School 
staff shall then in turn consult with the designated representative of the District regarding such 
concerns. The District representative in consultation with the Charter School's designated 
representative shall respond to and address the parent/guardian concerns. 
 
In consultation with the Charter School, the District shall address/respond/investigate all 
complaints received under the Uniform Complaint procedure involving special education. 
 
In consultation with the Charter School, the District may initiate a due process hearing on behalf 
of a student enrolled in the Charter School as the District determines is legally necessary to meet 
a school agency's responsibilities under federal and state law. The District and the Charter 
School shall work together to defend any due process hearing brought by a student enrolled in 
the Charter School. 
 
In the event that the District determines that legal counsel representation is needed, the District/ 
Charter School shall be jointly represented by legal counsel, unless there is a conflict of interest. 
In the case separate counsel is needed by the Charter School, the Charter School shall be 
responsible for the separate costs of its legal counsel. 
 
SELPA Representation 
 
The District Superintendent or designee shall represent the Charter School at all SELPA 
meetings as it represents the needs of all schools in the District. Reports to the Charter School 
regarding SELPA decisions, policies, etc. shall be communicated to the Charter School as they 
are to all other schools within the District. To the extent that the District and/or SELPA provide 
training opportunities and/or information regarding special education to site staff, such 
opportunities/information shall be made available to Charter School staff. To the extent that 
District site staff have the opportunity to participate in committee meetings of the SELPA as 
representatives of their district, such opportunities shall be made available to Charter School 
staff. To the extent services are offered SELPA-wide, such services will also be available to 
students at the Charter School. 
 
The Charter School agrees to adhere to the policies, procedures, and requirements of the Local 
Plan for Special Education and to District policies. 
 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

19 

Funding 
 
The parties agree that, pursuant to the division of responsibilities set forth in this Charter, the 
School has elected the status of any other public school in the District for the purposes of special 
education services and funding, and the District has agreed to provide special education services 
for the School, consistent with the services it provides at its public schools. Consistent with this 
division of responsibility, the District shall retain all state and federal special education funding 
allocated for Charter School students through the SELPA. 
 
The Charter School shall owe the District a pro-rata share of the District’s unfunded special 
education costs (“encroachment”).  
 
At the end of each fiscal year, the District shall calculate and charge the Charter School's pro-rata 
share of the Special Education District-wide contribution for that year.  All of the charter 
school’s special education costs as well as revenue shall be included in the District’s special 
education resource code (6500), unless otherwise directed by the state.  The total amount of 
unfunded expenses for all special education costs is paid for by a contribution from the general 
find.  The charter school's share of this contribution should be the total contribution divided by 
the District’s total average daily attendance (ADA), (which includes the Charter Schools ADA) 
multiplied by the Charter School ADA.   See the example below: 
  
(Contribution from general fund to resource code 6500 / Total ADA)* Charter ADA   
$4,000/3,300 = $1,212.12 *200 =$242,424. 
 
The District shall be responsible for all costs related to the service of Charter School students in 
the same manner as it is responsible for the cost of serving other students of the District on an 
annual basis. 
 
Special education funds for special education staff and services provided at the local school site 
level by the Charter School with the agreement of the District shall be allocated to the Charter 
School by the District on an annual basis. 
 
Discipline 
 
The Charter School shall follow the requirements of State and Federal Law in regard to the 
suspension or expulsion of special education students including but not limited to the 
requirement that a manifestation determination be made prior to any change of placement. 
 
Dispute Resolution 
 
The Charter School and the District agree to follow the dispute resolution procedure outlined by 
Element 14 of this charter in the case of a dispute regarding special education services or 
funding. The SELPA Director shall be included as applicable and necessary in the dispute 
resolution process. 
 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

20 

Section 504/Americans with Disabilities Act 
 
The District shall be responsible for Charter School compliance with Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act ("Section 504") and the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) with 
respect to eligible students.   
  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

21 

ELEMENT 2. 
MEASURABLE PUPIL OUTCOMES 

 
Governing Law: The measurable pupil outcomes identified for use by the charter school. “Pupil 
outcomes,” for purpose of this part, means the extent to which all pupils of the school 
demonstrate that they have attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes specified as goals in the 
school’s educational program. Pupil outcomes shall include outcomes that address increases in 
pupil academic achievement both schoolwide and for all groups of pupils served by the charter 
school, as that term is defined in subparagraph (B) of paragraph (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 
47607. The pupil outcomes shall align with the state priorities, as described in subdivision (d) of 
Section 52060, that apply for the grade levels served, or the nature of the program operated, by 
the charter school.  Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(B). 
 
It is the philosophy of the Charter School to foster high academic standards through the use of a 
rigorous application of the State content standards and identified key school standards. It is the 
goal of the school for all students, including subgroups, to achieve the green level on the 
California School Dashboard.  The Charter School is a two-year school and scores vary 
significantly from year to year due to its small number of students and 50% turnover each year, 
making it less meaningful to compare school-wide results from year to year.  Rather, the growth 
of the individual student, the class, and the cohort of students within a year is more important for 
monitoring.  In addition, it is the goal to support each student physically, socially and 
emotionally. The desired outcome is the development of a healthy middle school student who is 
on the road to becoming a lifelong learner. The purpose of educational process outlined in this 
charter will allow children to recognize and achieve their full individual potential. 
 
CHARTER OUTCOMES 
 
It is the goal of the Charter School that students achieve the following outcomes: 
 
Anticipated Outcomes 
 
Students at RVCS will demonstrate the following upon graduation: 
 

• Overall scores on the CAASPP that demonstrate annual student progress both school-
wide and for all numerically significant student subgroups served by the Charter School 
(as defined by Education Code Section 52052(a)(3)). 

• Mastery of the school's key standards. 
• Competency in state grade-level content and performance standards. 
• Strong study skills. 
• Good citizenship.	

 
 
 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

22 

Academic Content Specific Outcomes 
 
Language Arts 
 

• Students master significant literary works, as demonstrated through speaking, reading, 
and writing. 

• Students have strong written and oral presentation skills. 
• Students read at or above grade level. 
• Students demonstrate effective communication skills in writing and oral language/speech.	

 
Mathematics 
 

• Make sense of problems and persevere in solving them. 
• Reason abstractly and quantitatively. 
• Construct viable arguments and critique the reasoning of others. 
• Model with mathematics. 
• Use appropriate tools strategically. 
• Attend to precision. 
• Look for and make use of structure. 
• Look for and express regularity in repeated reasoning. 
• Develop fluency in basic computational skills.	

 
History/Social Studies 
 

• Students understand the historical context of significant events, people, and ideas in order 
to analyze modern day. 

• Students understand the role geography plays in connecting global regions.   
• Students act upon learned civic values. 
• Students connect economic concepts to the development of a culture or country.	

 
Science 
 

• Students investigate natural phenomenon using disciplinary core ideas, scientific 
practices, and cross-cutting concepts. 

• Students undertake design challenges, defining criteria and constraints, evaluating 
competing design solutions, and developing models. 

 
Visual and Performing Arts 
 

• Students produce/perform works to the best of their personal abilities. 	
• Students understand the value of the execution of visual/performing arts.	
• Students appreciate well-executed works. 	
• Students understand that art requires discipline and perseverance and leads to self-



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

23 

expression and self-knowledge. 
 
Physical Education 
 

• Students understand the value of teamwork and good sportsmanship.  	
• Students know the benefits of lifelong physical activity.	

 
Technology and Study Skills 
 

• Be empowered learners who can use technology to set goals, work toward achieving 
them, and demonstrate learning. 

• Be digital citizens who understand the rights, responsibilities, and opportunities of living, 
learning, and working in an interconnected digital world. 

• Be knowledge constructors who critically select, evaluate, and synthesize digital 
resources into a collection that reflects learning and builds knowledge. 

• Be innovative designers who solve problems by creating new and imaginative solutions 
using a variety of digital tools. 

• Be computational thinkers who identify authentic problems, work with data, and use a 
step-by-step process to automate solutions. 

• Be creative communicators who communicate effectively and express themselves 
creatively using different tools, styles, formats, and digital media. 

• Be global collaborators who strive to broaden their perspectives, understand others, and 
work effectively in teams using digital tools. 

 
The Charter School will continue to evaluate and refine its list of desired outcomes over time to 
reflect the school’s vision and mission and any changes to the state or local standards that 
support the mission. 
 
GOALS, ACTIONS AND MEASURABLE OUTCOMES ALIGNED WITH 
THE EIGHT STATE PRIORITIES  
 
Pursuant to Education Code Sections 47605(b)(5)(A)(ii) and 47605(b)(5)(B), the Charter 
School’s annual goals, actions and measurable outcomes, both schoolwide and for each subgroup 
of pupils, which address and align with the Eight State Priorities as described in Education Code 
Section 52060(d), can be found in the Charter School’s Local Control Accountability Plan 
(“LCAP”). Each of these goals addresses the unique needs of all students attending the Charter 
School, including our numerically significant student subgroups. The metrics associated with 
these goals help the Charter School to ensure that these specific subgroups are making 
satisfactory progress, and are provided with necessary additional supports made possible by 
additional funds from the Local Control Funding Formula.  
 
The current LCAP is on file with the District. The Charter School shall annually update and 
develop the LCAP in accordance with Education Code Section 47606.5 and shall use the LCAP 
template adopted by the State Board of Education. The Charter School reserves the right to 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

24 

establish additional and/or amend school-specific goals and corresponding assessments 
throughout the duration of the charter through the annual LCAP update. The Charter School shall 
submit the LCAP to the District and County Superintendent of Schools annually on or before 
July 1, as required by Education Code Section 47604.33.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

25 

ELEMENT 3. 
METHODS TO ASSESS PUPIL PROGRESS 

TOWARDS MEETING OUTCOMES 
 
Governing Law: The method by which pupil progress in meeting those pupil outcomes is to be 
measured. To the extent practicable, the method for measuring pupil outcomes for state 
priorities shall be consistent with the way information is reported on a school accountability 
report card. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(C). 
 
Student progress is based on how well students have met the measurable student outcomes 
outlined by the charter. The Charter School shall utilize the following methods of measurement 
to assess the achievement of student outcomes. 
 
Performance Based Assessment 
 
The performance assessments require students to structure and apply information learned by 
actively constructing, organizing and producing/exhibiting a specific product.  Performance 
based assessments are used to measure higher levels of student thinking and creative problem 
solving. Written products, both draft and final, and oral presentations are scored and used to 
determine progress toward mastery of standards.  Rubrics are used to assess student proficiency 
on performance tasks as a key component of a performance standard system. 
 
Formative Assessments 
 
Diagnostic assessments are integral to the instructional process. Teachers utilize assessments to 
support the diagnostic need of meeting individual student learning. Formative assessments are 
used for each of the core curriculum areas and are administered on a regularly scheduled basis 
coinciding at a minimum with the report of progress to parents and students. Formative 
assessments are used to inform instruction and adjust instruction accordingly. 
 
Benchmark Assessments 
 
Benchmark assessments based upon identified state and local performance standards provide a 
uniform basis for measuring student progress on standards at least once during the course of the 
year. The student results are used by the school as a performance indicator and as part of the data 
used in establishing a performance level for the student. Benchmark assessments are used to 
inform instruction. 
 
Summative Assessments 
 
The CAASPP is used for program analysis and public accountability. It provides trend data about 
general performance that can guide school programs. 
 
 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

26 

California School Dashboard 
 
The California School Dashboard provides the school with status and change metrics for its 
entire and subgroup populations.  The California School Dashboard provides trend data used to 
guide programmatic decisions. 
  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

27 

ELEMENT 4. 
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE OF THE SCHOOL 

 
Governing Law: The governance structure of the charter school, including, but not limited to, 
the process to be followed by the charter school to ensure parental involvement. Education Code 
Section 47605(b)(5)(D). 
 
The Charter School is governed by the Rincon Valley Union School District Board of Education 
(“Governing Board”). The Governing Board is ultimately in charge of the Charter School’s 
operation and governance. The Site Director, appointed by the Governing Board, is responsible 
for execution of daily management duties at the Charter School on behalf of the Governing 
Board. 
 
The Charter School is non-sectarian in its programs, admissions policies, employment practices, 
and all other operations; shall not charge tuition; and shall not discriminate on the basis of the 
characteristics listed in Education Code Section 220 (actual or perceived disability, gender, 
gender expression, gender identity, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or 
any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 
422.55 of the Penal Code or association with an individual who has any of the aforementioned 
characteristics). 
 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 
The Executive Committee serves as an advisory committee. The Executive Committee consists 
ideally of two parent representatives, two teachers, and two administrators as defined by the 
Committee’s bylaws. The representatives serve two-year terms. All representatives are appointed 
by the Superintendent of the District or her or his designee. If, after the best efforts, the 
Superintendent is unable to find parents who are willing to serve as representatives, the 
Superintendent shall use professional judgment in filling member positions with representatives 
whose backgrounds, knowledge or expertise will make them an asset to the Executive 
Committee. Procedures regarding the election and membership of the Executive Committee shall 
be set forth in Executive Committee bylaws and as approved by the Executive Committee and 
the Governing Board. The District Superintendent sits in an advisory role to the Executive 
Committee. 
 
The Executive Committee may recommend any program, activity, or may otherwise act in any 
manner, which is not in conflict with, or inconsistent with, or preempted by, any law or this 
charter, and/or which is not in conflict with the purposes for which charter schools are 
established. 
 
The Executive Committee shall have the following duties: 
 

1) Annual review of the goals/objectives for grades 7 and 8 within the terms of the Charter. 
2) Annual review of assessment standards for grades 7 and 8 within the terms of the Charter. 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

28 

3) Annual review of curriculum and supporting materials within the terms of the Charter. 
4) Oversight and approval of annual assessment of Charter School program. 
5) Advise the Governing Board through the Superintendent on any matter affecting the 

Charter School. 
6) Provide Superintendent or designee with input on policies and procedures related to the 

Charter School. 
 

Staff and parents of the Charter School will be encouraged to bring proposals or concerns to the 
attention of the Executive Committee, which in turn may bring the matter to the Governing 
Board. 
 
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD 
 
All duties and operations regarding the Charter School not specifically listed as a duty of the 
Executive Committee shall be considered a duty of the Governing Board unless otherwise 
delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee or other committee as allowed by this 
charter. These duties include but are not limited to: 
 

1) Development and adoption of policies and procedures related to the Charter School. 
2) Approval of Charter School budget. 
3) Management of Charter School personnel including, but not limited to evaluation, 

discipline, hiring, collective bargaining and grievances. 
4) All special education services. 
5) Provision, management, and location of the Charter School facilities. 
6) Transportation of the Charter School students. 
7) Food services for the Charter School students. 
8) Maintenance and operations for the Charter School. 

 
The Governing Board may delegate its authority to the Executive Committee or any advisory 
committees as needed.  However, the Governing Board shall annually review the governance of 
the Executive Committee. 
 
The District shall have supervisorial oversight of the Charter School. Such duties may include, 
but are not necessarily limited to, review and renewal of the charter, review and approval of 
amendments, revocation, review of annual audits and STRS/PERS reporting. 
 
The District shall manage all day-to-day administration of the Charter School through the 
Superintendent and the Charter School Site Director. 
 
SUPERINTENDENT 
 
The Superintendent of the District shall serve as a liaison between the Charter School and the 
District and shall manage the day-to-day administration of the Charter School along with the Site 
Director. 
 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

29 

DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT, BUSINESS 
 
The Deputy Superintendent, Business of the District shall also serve as the Chief Financial 
Officer of the Charter School. 
 
SITE DIRECTOR 
 
The Charter School Site Director will communicate directly with the District Superintendent and 
Board of Trustees as necessary. The Charter School Site Director is fully responsible for the 
daily administration of the Charter School. 
  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

30 

ELEMENT 5. 
EMPLOYEE QUALIFICATIONS 

 
Governing Law: The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the charter 
school. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(E). 
 
The Charter School retains or employs faculty who hold a Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which a teacher in other public schools 
would be required to hold in accordance with Education Code Section 47605(l). These 
documents shall be maintained on file at the Charter School and are subject to periodic 
inspection by the District. These teachers will teach the core academic classes offered by the 
Charter School. These teachers will be responsible for overseeing the students’ academic 
progress and for monitoring grading and matriculation decisions. 
 
In accordance with the flexibility granted to charter schools pursuant to Education Code Section 
47605(l), the Charter School may also employ or retain non-certificated instructional staff in any 
case where a prospective staff member has an appropriate mix of subject matter expertise, 
professional experience, and the demonstrated capacity to work successfully in an instructional 
capacity in noncore, non-college preparatory courses and activities. These teachers may be 
required to teach along with a credentialed faculty member as may be required by law. Teaching 
positions for which flexibility may be granted shall receive prior approval by the Governing 
Board. 
  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

31 

ELEMENT 6. 
HEALTH AND SAFETY PROCEDURES 

 
Governing Law: The procedures that the charter school will follow are to ensure the health and 
safety of pupils and staff. These procedures shall include the requirement that each employee of 
the charter school furnish it with a criminal record summary as described in Section 44237. 
Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(F). 
 
The Charter School complies with all health and safety policies of the District. These policies 
shall include, but not be limited to, a policy establishing that the School functions as a drug, 
alcohol, and tobacco free workplace and a requirement that each employee of the school submit 
to a criminal background check and furnish a criminal record summary as required by Education 
Code section 44237 as well as a requirement to seek a criminal background check of vendors as 
required by Education Code Section 45125.1. 
 
These policies are reviewed on an ongoing basis in the Charter School and District’s ongoing 
development efforts. 
  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

32 

ELEMENT 7. 
MEANS TO ACHIEVE RACIAL/ETHNIC BALANCE 

REFLECTIVE OF THE RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 

 
Governing Law: The means by which the school will achieve racial and ethnic balance among 
its pupils that is reflective of the general population residing within the territorial jurisdiction of 
the school district to which the charter petition is submitted. Education Code Section 
47605(b)(5)(G). 
 
The Charter School strives to achieve a racial and ethnic balance amongst its student population 
that is reflective of population of the territorial jurisdiction of the District by first, implementing 
a student recruitment strategy aimed at attracting a broad base of students, and second, by 
providing services for Charter School students that serve a broad base of students. 
 
As such, the Charter School uses a student recruitment strategy which includes, but is not 
necessarily limited to, the following elements or strategies: 
 

• An enrollment process that is scheduled and adopted to include a timeline that allows for 
a-broad-based recruiting and application process.	

• The development of promotional and informational material that appeals to all of the 
various racial and ethnic groups represented in the District.	

• The appropriate development of promotional and informational materials in languages 
other than English to appeal to limited English proficient populations.	

• Outreach meetings in several areas of the District to reach prospective students and 
parents.	

• The distribution of promotional and informational materials to a broad variety of 
community groups and agencies that serve the various racial, ethnic, and interest groups 
represented in the District.	

  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

33 

ELEMENT 8. 
ADMISSION REQUIREMENTS 

 
Governing Law: Admission requirements, if applicable. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(H) 
 
The Governing Board shall have the sole authority to determine the capacity, location, and 
facilities of the Charter School. The determination of these factors shall be based on the School's 
academic program, the School’s fiscal viability, the educational needs of currently enrolled 
students, the capacity of the School site, and the level of interest shown by students who want to 
attend the School. 
 
There shall be no admission criteria, testing, or other evaluation required of any applicant. The 
Charter School shall not charge an application fee nor shall it charge tuition. The Charter School 
shall be nonsectarian in its admission and enrollment policies and shall not discriminate against 
any student on the basis of ethnicity, national origin, gender, gender expression, gender identity, 
or disability or any other characteristic described in Education Code Section 220. 
 
The Charter School shall admit and enroll all students who wish to attend the School provided 
that the School's capacity is not exceeded. Should more students wish to enroll than space 
allows, the Charter School will hold the public random drawing in stages, according to 
enrollment preferences as follows: 
 

1) Currently enrolled RVUSD students who have a sibling who is currently or formerly 
enrolled at the Charter School. 

2) Children of RVUSD employees currently enrolled in RVUSD. 
3) Students currently enrolled in RVUSD. 
4) Students residing within the district boundaries and not enrolled in RVUSD. 
5) Students who do not reside in nor attend a school in RVUSD, but who have a sibling who 

is currently or formerly enrolled at the Charter School. 
6) Children of RVUSD employees who do not reside in nor attend school in RVUSD. 
7) All other applicants. 

 
The Charter School shall adopt a policy which shall fully delineate the application and random 
drawing process consistent with the seven above priorities. 
  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

34 

ELEMENT 9. 
FINANCIAL AND PROGRAMMATIC AUDIT 

 
Governing Law: The manner in which an annual, independent, financial audit shall be 
conducted, which shall employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the manner in 
which audit exceptions and deficiencies shall be resolved to the satisfaction of the chartering 
authority. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(I). 
 
FISCAL AUDIT 
 
The Charter School will utilize the external auditors of the District for an annual independent 
audit of the school's financial affairs if available or shall contract for the same from a third-party 
provider. 
 
The audit will verify the accuracy of the Charter School's financial statements, attendance and 
enrollment accounting practices, and review the school's internal controls. The audit will be 
conducted in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to the school. 
To the extent required under applicable federal law, the audit scope will be expanded to include 
items and processes specified in any applicable Office of Management and Budget Circulars. 
 
The annual audit will be completed and forwarded to the District, the County Superintendent of 
Schools, the State Controller, and to the CDE by the 15th of December of each year. The 
administration will review any audit exceptions or deficiencies and report to the Charter School's 
Executive Committee and the Governing Board with recommendations on how to resolve them. 
The Board, with input from the Executive Committee, shall determine the manner by which the 
exceptions and deficiencies will be resolved. Audit appeals or requests for summary review shall 
be submitted to the Education Audit Appeals Panel (“EAAP”) in accordance with applicable law. 
 
The independent financial audit of the Charter School is public record to be provided to the 
public upon request. 
 
PROGRAMMATIC AUDIT 
 
The Charter School will compile and provide to the District an annual performance report. This 
report will, at a minimum, include the following: 
	

• Summary data showing student progress toward the goals and outcomes specified in 
Element 2 from assessment instruments and techniques listed in Element 2.	

• An analysis of whether student performance is meeting the goals specified in Element 2. 
This data will be displayed on both a Charter school-wide basis and disaggregated by 
major racial and ethnic categories to the extent feasible without compromising student 
confidentiality.	

• A summary of policies and procedures established for the Charter School during the year.	
• Data on the level of parent involvement in the Charter School's governance (and other 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

35 

aspects of the school, if applicable) and summary data from an annual parent and student 
satisfaction survey.	

• Data regarding the number of staff working at the school and their qualifications.	
• Information demonstrating whether the Charter School implemented the means listed in 

charter Element 7 to achieve a racially and ethnically balanced student population.	
• An overview of the Charter School's admissions practices during the year and data 

regarding the numbers of students enrolled , the number on waiting lists, and the numbers 
of students expelled and/or suspended.	

• Analyses of the effectiveness of the Charter School's internal and external dispute 
mechanisms and data on the number and resolution of disputes and complaints.	

• Other information regarding the educational program and the administrative, legal, and 
governance operations of the Charter School relative to compliance with the terms of the 
charter generally.	

 
The Charter School Executive Committee and the District jointly develop the content, evaluation 
criteria, timelines, and process for the annual performance report. 
  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

36 

ELEMENT 10. 
PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION 

 
Governing Law: The procedures by which pupils can be suspended or expelled. Education Code 
Section 47605(b)(5)(J). 

 
As a dependent charter, the Charter School follows and adheres to the RVUSD Governing Board 
adopted policy and practices that govern pupil discipline, which includes student suspension and 
expulsion.  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

37 

ELEMENT 11. 
RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

 
Governing Law: The manner by which staff members of the charter schools will be covered by 
the State Teachers' Retirement System, the Public Employees' Retirement System, or federal 
social security. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(K). 

 
The full-time non-certificated staff at the Charter School shall participate in the federal social 
security system and the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). The certificated staff 
shall participate in the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS). The District will also make 
contributions for workers compensation insurance, unemployment insurance, and any other 
payroll obligations of public school employer. The District shall create any reports required by 
STRS or PERS for Charter School employees. The Charter School shall inform all applicants for 
positions of the District’s retirement benefits. 
  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

38 

ELEMENT 12. 
ATTENDANCE ALTERNATIVES 

 
Governing Law: The public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing within the school 
district that choose not to attend charter schools. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(L). 
 
No student may be required to attend the Charter School. Students who opt not to attend the 
Charter School may attend other schools within their school district of residence or pursue an 
inter-district transfer in accordance with existing enrollment and transfer policies of their district 
or county of residence. 
  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

39 

ELEMENT 13. 
DESCRIPTION OF EMPLOYEE RIGHTS 

 
Governing Law: The rights of an employee of the school district upon leaving the employment of 
the school district to work in a charter school and of any rights of return to the school district 
after employment at a charter school. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(M). 
 
No public school district employee shall be required to work at the Charter School. All 
employees of the Charter School shall be considered employees of the District and shall retain 
the right to return and gain seniority through the District, pursuant to any applicable collective 
bargaining agreements or District policy. 
  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

40 

ELEMENT 14. 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS 

 
Governing Law: The procedures to be followed by the charter school and the entity granting the 
charter to resolve disputes relating to provisions of the charter. Education Code Section 
47605(b)(5)(N). 
 
In the event that the Charter School Executive Committee and the Governing Board have 
disputes regarding the terms of this charter both parties agree to follow the process outlined 
below. 
 
The Site Director, at the direction of the Executive Committee and the Superintendent, or 
designee at the direction of the Board, agree to first frame the issue in written format. 
 
The Site Director and Superintendent, or designees, shall informally meet and confer in a timely 
fashion to attempt to resolve the dispute. In the event that this informal meeting fails to resolve 
the dispute, both parties shall identify two members from their respective committee board to 
meet to resolve the dispute. If this joint meeting fails to resolve the dispute, the Superintendent 
and the Site Director shall meet to jointly identify a neutral, third party mediator. The format of 
the mediation session shall be developed jointly by the Superintendent and the Site Director. 

 
 

  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

41 

ELEMENT 15. 
CLOSURE PROCEDURES 

 
Governing Law: The procedures to be used if the charter school closes. The procedures shall 
ensure a final audit of the charter school to determine the disposition of all assets and liabilities 
of the charter school, including plans for disposing of any net assets and for the maintenance 
and transfer of pupil records. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(O). 
 
Closure of the Charter School will be documented by official action of the Governing Board. The 
action will identify the reason for closure. The official action will also identify the District as the 
entity responsible for closure-related activities and will specify a person or persons at the District 
responsible. 
 
The District will promptly notify parents and students of the Charter School, the District, the 
Sonoma County Office of Education, the School's SELPA, the retirement systems in which the 
School’s employees participate (e.g., Public Employees' Retirement System, State 
Teachers' Retirement System, and federal social security), and the California Department of 
Education of the closure as well as the effective-date of the closure. This notice will-also include 
the name(s) of and contact information for the person(s) to whom reasonable inquiries may be 
made regarding the closure; the pupils' school districts of residence; and the manner in which 
parents (guardians) may obtain copies of pupil records, including specific information on 
completed courses and credits that meet graduation requirements. 
 
The District will ensure that the notification to the parents and students of the Charter School of 
the closure provides information to assist parents and students in locating suitable alternative 
programs. This notice will be provided promptly following the Board's decision to close the 
School. 
 
The District will also develop a list of pupils in each grade level and the classes they have 
completed, together with information on the pupils' districts of residence, which they will 
provide to the entity responsible for closure-related activities. 
 
As applicable, the District will provide parents, students and the District with copies of all 
appropriate student records and will otherwise assist students in transferring to their next school. 
All transfers of student records will be made in compliance with the Family Educational Rights 
and Privacy Act ("FERPA") 20 U.S.C. § 1232g. The District will store original records of 
Charter School students. All records of the School shall be transferred to the District upon 
School closure. 
 
All state assessment results, special education records, and personnel records will be transferred 
to and maintained by the District in accordance with applicable law. 
 
As soon as reasonably practical, the District will prepare final financial records for the School. 
The District will also have an independent audit completed within six months after School 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

42 

closure. The District will pay for the final audit out of the School reserve funds. The audit will be 
prepared by a qualified Certified Public Accountant selected by the District and will be provided 
to the District promptly upon its completion. The final audit will include an accounting of all 
financial assets, including cash and accounts receivable and an inventory of property, equipment, 
and other items of material value, an accounting of the liabilities, including accounts payable and 
any reduction in apportionments as a result of audit findings or other investigations, loans, and 
unpaid staff compensation, and an assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds received 
by or due to the charter school. 
 
The District will complete and file any annual reports required pursuant to Education Code 
section 47604.33. 
 
On closure of the Charter School, all assets of the Charter School, including but not limited to all 
leaseholds, personal property, intellectual property and all ADA apportionments and other 
revenues generated by students attending the School, shall be retained by the District. In 
addition, any assets acquired from the District or District property will be promptly returned 
upon School closure to the District. The distribution shall include return of any grant funds and 
restricted categorical funds to their source in accordance with the terms of the grant or state and 
federal law, as appropriate, which may include submission of final expenditure reports for 
entitlement grants and the filing of any required Final Expenditure Reports and Final 
Performance Reports, as well as the return of any donated materials and property in accordance 
with any conditions established when the donation of such materials or property was accepted. 
 
The District will utilize the reserve fund to undertake any expenses associated with the closure 
procedures identified above. 
  



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

43 

MISCELLANEOUS CLAUSES 
 
RENEWAL TERM 
 
The term of this charter shall begin on December 11, 2017 and expire on December 11, 2022. 
 
AMENDMENTS 
 
Any amendments to this charter shall be made by the mutual agreement of the Charter School 
and the District. Material revisions and amendments shall be made pursuant to the standards, 
criteria, and timelines in Education Code Sections 47605 and 47607. 
 
RENEWAL 
 
The Charter School may submit its charter for renewal to the District any time during the final 
year of its five-year term. 
 
Renewals shall be governed by the standards and criteria in Education Code Sections 47605 and 
47607. Any renewal shall be for a five (5) year term. 
 
POTENTIAL CIVIL LIABILITY EFFECTS 
 
Governing Law: Potential civil liability effects, if any, upon the school and upon the school 
district. Education Code Section 47605(g). 
 
The Charter School shall work diligently to assist the District in meeting any and all oversight 
obligations under the law, including monthly meetings, reporting, or other District-requested 
protocol to minimize any risk of liability to the District for the operation of the Charter School. 
 
The District will institute appropriate risk management practices and shall maintain appropriate 
insurance policies for the operational of the Charter School. 
 
FACILITIES 
 
Governing Law: The facilities to be utilized by the school. The description of the facilities to be 
used by the charter school shall specify where the school intends to locate. Education Code 
Section 47605(g). 
 
The Charter School shall utilize District facilities during the term of the charter. Locations are at 
5305 Dupont Drive, Santa Rosa, CA 95409 and 1687 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95045, 
subject to change. 
 
 
 



 
	

RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	DRAFT	
	

	 	
 

44 

BUDGET 
 
Governing Law: The petitioner or petitioners shall also be required to provide financial 
statements that include a proposed first year operational budget, including startup costs, and 
cash flow and financial projections for the first three years of operation. Education Code Section 
47605(g). 
 
The Charter School's operational budget, cash flow and financial projections are attached as an 
Appendix. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
 
Governing Law: The manner in which administrative services of the school are to be provided. 
Education Code Section 47605(g). 
 
The Charter School shall use all centralized services of the District unless otherwise approved by 
the Governing Board. 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.11 

Subject: RVUTA Initial Sunshine Collective Bargaining Proposal with RVUSD 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

      
Background: The Governing Board will accept comments and questions regarding the Rincon 

Valley Union Teachers’ Association’s “Sunshine” Collective Bargaining 
Agreement openers with the Rincon Valley Union School District for 2017-2018. 

  

Highlights: N/A 

Challenges: N/A 

Analysis: N/A 

Next Steps: Negotiations between the two parties begins on October 12, 2017. 

Attachments:   RVUTA Openers for Negotiations with RVUSD for 2017-18 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



To:  Dr. Tony Roehrick-RVUSD District Superintendent 
 
From: Debbie Perry-RVUTA President 
Re:  Sunshine Items 2017-18 
 
After speaking with Robin Horgan, our lead negotiator, we are requesting the following 
items to sunshine for the 2017-18 negotiations: 
 

1. Calendar 
2. Salary (for 2017-18) 
3. Benefits 
4. Set limits of number of  IEP students in one class as well as IEP/MTSS meetings 

outside contract hours    
5. RVUTA is interested expanding class size language, for all grade levels, to 

match what is standard for comparable districts.  
6. Duty Wheel 

 
 
Please contact me if you have any questions. We look forward to working with you this 
year.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Debbie Perry 
 
 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.12 

Subject: RVUSD Initial Sunshine Collective Bargaining Proposal with RVUTA 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

      
Background: Each year, the District publishes the areas of the joint RVUSD/RVUTA contract 

that it intends to negotiate.  
 
Highlights: While the District and RVUTA contract is settled through June 2018 for 

compensation, there are a number of openers built into the settlement.  In addition, 
each party may open up to three articles each.  

 

In addition to the articles the District intends to open, the following article is open 
this year: 

 
1. Calendar 

 
The following MOU’s are also open for discussion: 

 
1. RVP Preschool Teaching Days 
2. Evaluation 

 
The Governing Board will accept comments and questions regarding the Rincon 
Valley Union School District’s Initial “Sunshine” Collective Bargaining 
Agreement openers with the Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ Association for 2016-
2017. 
 

1. Compensation for the position of School Nurse 
2. Article XV: Teaching Hours 

Challenges: None 

Analysis: None 

Next Steps: Negotiations between the two parties begins on October 12, 2017. 

Attachments:   None 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 12.1 

Subject:  Resolution 10-17-07, Declaring an Emergency 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent  

Background: The wildfires in Santa Rosa produced a great amount of smoke with particulates. 

Highlights: After discussions with Dan Hardin and his mechanical engineer, the District 
ordered air purifiers which will help make the classrooms healthier for students 
and staff. 

Challenges: The Purchase amount is over the bid threshold; and, therefore, requires an 
emergency resolution in order to make the purchase 

Analysis: This purchase is rational and needed given the situation. 

Next Steps: These units should arrive on Friday and will be deployed throughout the district 
with HEPA filters designed to filter smoke. 

 
Attachments: Emergency Resolution #10-17-07 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $139,275 
 
Recommendation: Approve 
 



 
RESOLUTION OF THE RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY UNDER 
PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTIONS 22035 AND 22050 

 
Resolution #10-17-07 

 
WHEREAS, the schools in the Rincon Valley Union School District have suffered smoke 
damage, which was caused by smoke created during the recent wildfires, and the smoke 
cannot be remediated without specialized equipment; and  
 
WHEREAS, unless immediate action is taken to repair this smoke damage, the schools may 
not be safe for students and 
 
WHEREAS, it is essential that this equipment be undertaken immediately to allow the 
schools to be occupied; and 
 
WHEREAS, under Public Contract Code Sections 22035 and 22050, in an emergency, in a 
district that has adopted the California Uniform Public Construction and Accounting Act, the 
governing body may proceed at once to replace or repair any public facility without adopting 
plans, specifications, strain sheets, or working details, or giving notice for bids to let 
contracts; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Rincon Valley Union School District has previously adopted the California 
Uniform Public Construction and Accounting Act; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that this Board has determined, by at least a 
four-fifths vote herein recorded, that pursuant to Public Contract Code Sections 22035 and 
22050, for the reasons set forth above, an emergency exists in that there is both a danger to 
life and/or property and that delay could interfere with the start of classes at the end of 
summer break; and  
 
IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, upon approval of this Resolution, the Board 
delegates to the District Superintendent, or his or designee, the authority to District may 
contract in writing with a reputable licensed contractor for the performance of the work 
required, such contract to be ratified by the Board; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, for any contract exceeding $25,000.00, 
performance and payment bonds will be required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

The foregoing Resolution was introduced by Board Member _________________, 
who moved its adoption, second by Board Member _________________, and adopted on 
roll call on October 19, 2017 by the following vote: 
 

Member ______________ _____ 
Member ______________ _____ 
Member ______________ _____ 
Member ______________ _____ 
Member ______________ _____ 

 
 
 

AYES: _____________ 
 

NOES: _____________ 
 
ABSENT OR NOT VOTING:  _______ 

 
 
SO ORDERED. 

 
 ______________________________
_ 
 Board President 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 12.2 

Subject:  Prequalification resolutions for Prime Contractors and Mechanical, 
Electrical and Plumbing Contractors (MEPs) 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent of Business 

Background: The board discussed delivery methods for construction and a general timeline for 
this year’s construction at last month’s board meeting.  For the upcoming projects, 
the District will likely use both the design-bid-build method and the lease lease-
back method.  Both methods require a prequalification process for general 
contractors as well as mechanical, electrical and plumbing contractors (MEPs).   

Highlights: The prequalification process should help the district filter out sub-par contractors. 

Challenges: Additional paperwork is time consuming for staff. 

Analysis: This process should result in a qualified field of contractors that can submit 
proposals or bids for District work.   

Next Steps: After adopting the resolutions to prequalify the contractors, the board in November 
should adopt a resolution establishing the best value methodology for the lease- 
leaseback process.  

Attachments: Resolution #10-17-05, Prequalification for Prime Contractors  
Resolution #10-17-06, Prequalification for MEPs 

 
Fiscal Impact: Passing the resolution will have no direct fiscal impact on the District. 
  
Recommendation: Approve 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO.10-17-05 
OF THE 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
ADOPTING PREQUALIFICATION PROCESS FOR PRIME CONTRACTORS 

PURSUANT TO PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 20111.6 
 
 WHEREAS, the Rincon Valley Union School District (“District”) desires to prequalify 
potential prime contractors for lease-leaseback projects and/or projects using funds 
received pursuant to the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998 or any funds 
received, including funds reimbursed, from any future state school bond for a public project 
that involves a projected expenditure of one million dollars ($1,000,000) or more;  

WHEREAS, school districts are required to prequalify prime contractors for all 
contracts for the aforementioned district projects using the requirements described in 
Section 20111.6 of the Public Contract Code; 

WHEREAS, Public Contract Code section 20111.6 directs school districts to require 
prospective prime contractors to submit a standardized prequalification questionnaire and 
financial statement (collectively “Prequalification Package”) prior to submitting a 
bid/proposal for the aforementioned district projects;  

WHEREAS, Public Contract Code section 20111.6, subdivision (g) authorizes school 
districts to establish a uniform system of rating prospective contractors based upon the 
completed Prequalification Packages (“Prequalification Process”); 

WHEREAS, District staff have developed a standardized questionnaire in accordance 
with Public Contract Code section 20111.6 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 
(“Questionnaire”); 

 WHEREAS, District staff have developed a uniform system of rating potential prime 
contractors based upon the completed Questionnaires in accordance with Public Contract 
Code section 20111.6 attached hereto as Exhibit “B” (“Rating System”);  

 WHEREAS, the Rating System includes a process for potential prime contractors to 
appeal certain decisions with respect to the Prequalification Process (“Appeal Process”); and 

 WHEREAS, the District desires to adopt the Prequalification Process, including the 
Questionnaire, Rating System, and Appeal Process. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the Rincon Valley Union School District 
hereby finds, determines, declares, orders and resolves as follows: 

Section 1. That the above recitals are true and correct.  

Section 2.  That the Questionnaire, the Rating System, and the Appeal Process are 
authorized pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20111.6.  

Section 3. That the District’s Superintendent, or designee, is authorized to 
implement the Prequalification Process, including accepting the final list of prequalified 
prime contractors, consistent with Public Contract Code section 20111.6. 



 

 

APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Rincon Valley Union 
School District on this _____ day of __________, 2017, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTENTIONS:  
  
 
             

Carol Lynn Wood 
President of the Board of Trustees of the  
Rincon Valley Union School District  

 
Attested to: 
 
       
Cynthia Evers 
Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the 
Rincon Valley Union School District 



 

 

Exhibit “A” 
 

Prequalification Questionnaire 
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PREQUALIFICATION QUESTIONNAIRE FOR 

PROSPECTIVE PRIME CONTRACTORS  
 

October 10, 2017 
 

Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20111.6, each prospective prime contractor shall 
submit the following information to establish its qualifications to perform construction work 
as the prime contractor on either District lease-leaseback projects or District projects using 
funds received pursuant to the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998 or any funds 
received, including funds reimbursed, from any future state school bond for a public project 
that involves a projected expenditure of one million dollars ($1,000,000) or more. 
 
A. CONTRACTOR’S CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

Firm name:            

           

Address:            

           

Telephone:            

Fax:             

Mobile Telephone:           

E-mail:            

By:              Date:     
       (Name of individual completing statement) 
 

Years in business as a licensed contractor:       
Types of work performed with own forces:       
            
            
         
Years in business under current firm name:       
Years at the above address:         

 



 

 

B. CURRENT ORGANIZATION AND STRUCTURE OF THE BUSINESS 
 

1. For Firms that Are Corporations:  

a. Date incorporated:         
b. Under the laws of what state:       
c. Provide all the following information for each person who is either (a) 

an officer of the corporation (president, vice president, secretary, 
treasurer), or (b) the owner of at least 10% of the corporation’s stock.   

 
Name Position Years with Co. % Ownership 
    
    

 
2. For Firms that Are Partnerships:  

a. Date of formation:         
b. Under the laws of what state:       
c. Provide all the following information for each partner who owns ten 

percent (10%) or more of the firm.   
 

Name Position Years with Co. % Ownership 
    
    

 
3. For Firms that Are Sole Proprietorships:  

a. Date of commencement of business:      
 

4. For Firms that Intend to Bid as a Joint Venture:  

a. Date of commencement of joint venture:      
b. Provide all of the following information for each firm that is a member 

of the joint venture that expects to bid on one or more projects.  
Attach all additional references and/or information on separate signed 
sheets.  

 
Name of Firm % of Ownership of Joint Venture 
  
  

 
5. Associated Firms 

 
For any of the above business structures, identify every construction firm that any 
person listed above has been associated with (as owner, general partner, limited 
partner or officer) at any time during the past 5 years.   

 
Person’s Name  Name of Construction Firm & 

License No.  
Dates of Person’s 
Participation with Firm 

   
   

 
 Attach all additional references and/or information on separate signed sheets. 
 
C. HISTORY OF THE BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATIONAL PERFORMANCE 



 

 

 
1. Has there been any change in ownership of the firm at any time during the 

past 3 years?  NOTE: A corporation whose shares are publicly traded is not 
required to answer this question.   

  Yes    No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet. 
 

2. Is the firm a subsidiary, parent, holding company, or affiliate of another 
construction firm?  NOTE:  Include information about other firms if one firm 
owns 10% or more of another, or if an owner, partner, or officer of your firm 
holds a similar position in another firm.   

  Yes    No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet.  Include name of the related 
company and percent ownership. 

 
3. Are any corporate officers, partners or owners connected to any other 

construction firms?  NOTE:  Include information about other firms if an owner, 
partner, or officer of your firm holds a similar position in another firm.   

  Yes    No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet. 
 

4. Has any owner, partner, CSLB qualifier or corporate officer of the firm 
operated as a contractor under any other name or license number (not listed 
above) in the last 5 years?     

  Yes    No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the name and license 
number of the other company.   

5. State your firm’s gross revenues for each of the past 3 years:  
 

Year Gross Revenue 
 $ 
 $ 
 $ 

 
6. How many years has your firm been in business in California as a contractor 

under your present business name and license number?     
         

7. Is your firm currently the debtor in a bankruptcy case or was your firm in 
bankruptcy at any time during the last 5 years?   

  Yes    No   

If “yes,” please attach a copy of the bankruptcy petition and a copy of the 
Bankruptcy Court’s discharge or any other document that ended the case, if 
any. 

8.  Is your firm’s headquarters located within 60 miles of Santa Rosa? 

  Yes    No  



 

 

9. Has your firm performed work on a public works project in excess of $1M that 
required DSA approval? 

  Yes    No  

 

 
 
LICENSES/REGISTRATION 

10. Please provide the following licensing information:  
 

a. Name of license holder exactly as on file with the Contractors State 
License Board:         
        

 
b. License classification(s):        
 
c. License #:          
 
d. Expiration Date:          

 
e. Public Works Contractor’s Registration # as on file with Department of 

Industrial Relations: ____________________  

11. Has any CSLB license held by your firm or its Responsible Managing Employee 
or Responsible Managing Officer been suspended or revoked within the last 5 
years? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet. 

12. Has your firm changed names or license number in the past 5 years?   

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the reason for the 
change. 

DISPUTES 

13. At any time in the last 5 years, has your firm been assessed liquidated 
damages under a construction contract with any public or private owner?   

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, identifying projects by owner, 
owner’s address, and date of completion. 

14. At any time in the last 5 years, has your firm, or any owners, officers or 
partners, been debarred, disqualified, removed or otherwise prevented from 
bidding on, or completing, any public works project? 

  Yes   No   



 

 

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the name of the person 
who was associated with that company, the year of the event, owner, owner’s 
address and basis for the action. 

15. At any time in the last 5 years, has a public agency found your company was 
not a responsible bidder? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the year of the event, 
owner, owner’s address and basis for the finding. 

16. In the past 5 years, has any claim exceeding $50,000 against your firm or by 
your firm against an owner been filed in court or arbitration concerning your 
firm’s work or payment on a construction project? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the project name, court 
or arbitration case name and number, and a brief description of the status of 
the claim. 

INSURANCE 

17. Does Contractor have liability insurance with a policy limit of at least 
$2,000,000 per occurrence and $4,000,000 aggregate? 

  Yes   No   

If “No,” provide on a separate signed sheet what limits are available to the 
Contractor. 

18. Does Contractor have current workers’ compensation insurance as required 
by the California Labor Code or is Contractor legally self-insured pursuant to 
California Labor Code section 3700 et seq.? 

  Yes   No   

19. In the last 5 years, has any insurance carrier, for any form of insurance, 
refused to renew an insurance policy for your firm? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the name of the 
insurance carrier, form of insurance and year of the refusal. 

CRIMINAL MATTERS AND RELATED CIVIL SUITS 

20. Has your firm or any of its owners, partners or officers ever been found liable 
in a civil suit, or found guilty in a criminal action, for making any false claim 
or material misrepresentation to any public agency or entity? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, identifying who was involved, 
name of the public agency, date of the investigation and grounds for the 
filing. 



 

 

21. Has your firm or any of its owners, partners or officers ever been convicted of 
a crime involving any federal, state, or local law related to construction or a 
crime involving fraud, theft, or any other act of dishonesty? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, identifying who was involved, 
name of the public agency, date of conviction and grounds for the conviction. 

SAFETY 
 

22. Within the past 5 years, has the California or federal OSHA cited and assessed 
penalties against your firm, or any associated firm, for “serious,” “willful” or 
“repeat” violations of its safety or health regulations? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, identifying the citation(s), nature 
of the violation(s), project, and amount of penalty paid, if any.   

23. Within the past 5 years, has the EPA or any Air Quality Management District 
or any Regional Water Quality Control Board cited and assessed penalties 
against your firm or the owner of the project on which your firm was the 
Contractor? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, describing the citation(s). 

24. State the Contractor’s Workers’ Compensation Experience Modification Rate 
for the past 3 premium years: 

 
Year Modification Rate 

  
  
  

 
If your EMR is 1.00 or higher, you may attach a letter of explanation. 

25. Within the past 5 years, has there ever been a period when your firm and/or 
any associated firm had employees but was without workers’ compensation 
insurance or state-approved self-insurance?   

  Yes   No   

If yes, explain on separate signed sheet, including the date(s) and reason(s) 
for the absence of workers' compensation insurance. 
 



 

 

PREVAILING WAGE AND APPRENTICESHIP COMPLIANCE 

26. In the past 5 years, has there been more than one occasion in which your 
firm was required to pay either back wages or penalties for failure to comply 
with California prevailing wage laws or federal Davis-Bacon prevailing wage 
requirements? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, describing the nature of the 
violation(s), project, owner, and amount paid, if any. 

27. At any time during the past 5 years, has your firm been found to have 
violated any provision of California apprenticeship laws or regulations, or laws 
pertaining to use of apprentices on public works projects? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including date(s) of such findings 
and attaching the DAS’ final decision(s). 

BONDING 

28. Have you attached a notarized statement from an admitted surety insurer 
(approved by the California Department of Insurance and authorized to issue 
bonds in the State of California), which states your current bonding capacity 
(both single job limit and aggregate limit)?  NOTE:  Contractor must have 
independent capacity to provide a 10% bid bond, 100% payment bond, and 
100% performance bond, each issued by an admitted surety insurer, without 
bonding by subcontractors. 

  Yes   No   

29. Provide the name, address and telephone number of the surety agent:   
           
           
           
       

30. List all sureties that have written bonds for your firm currently and during the 
last 5 years:   

 
Name  Address  Dates of bonds 
   
   
   
   
   



 

 

31. In the last 5 years, has any surety paid on your firm’s behalf as a result of a 
default to satisfy any claims made against a payment or performance bond 
issued on your firm’s behalf? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the amount of each 
claim, name and telephone number of claimant, date of and grounds for the 
claim, and present status. 

32. If your firm was required to pay a premium of more than 1% for a 
performance and payment bond on any project on which your firm worked in 
the last 3 years, state the percentage that your firm was required to pay:   
  .   

You may explain on a separate signed sheet, why you were required to pay a 
premium of more than 1%.   

33. In the last 5 years, has your firm ever been denied bond coverage by a surety 
company, or has there ever been a period of time when your firm had no 
surety bond in place when one was required? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the name of the surety 
company and the period during which your firm had no bond in place. 

  
D. PROJECT REFERENCES 
 
On the form attached as Exhibit A, list all California K-12 projects (both under construction 
and completed) during the past 5 years, using the lease-leaseback project delivery method 
and/or with a total contract price of $1 million or more, in which the Contractor under all 
firm names identified in Section B has participated.  Use and attach additional signed sheets 
when needed to explain or clarify any response or to include more responses with all 
requested information.  

 
E. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Contractor must submit a reviewed or audited financial statement with accompanying notes 
and supplemental information for the past 2 full fiscal years.  A letter verifying availability of 
a line of credit may also be attached; however, it will be considered supplemental 
information only, and is not a substitute for the required financial statement. 
 



 

 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
is true and correct: 
 
Date:              
 
Proper Name of Contractor:           
 
             
 
Signature by an officer of the Contractor:          
 
Print Name:            
 
Title:              



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

1. Project Name/Identification: 
 

a. Project Name:         
         

 
b. Project address/location:        

         
 

c. Owner (name of district reference and tel. no.):     
          
        

 
d. Architect (name and tel. no.):       

         
 
e. Construction Manager (name and tel. no.):     

         
 

f. Scope of Work:         
          
        

 
g. Was/Is this a lease-leaseback project?       

 
h. Original completion date:        
 
i. Actual date of completion:        

 
j. Time extensions granted:         
 
k. Initial contract value:        
 
l. Final contract value:         
 

 
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
is true and correct. 

 
 

Date: _____________  ____________________________ 
    Name 

  



 

 

Exhibit “B” 
 

Prequalification Rating System 
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

PROSPECTIVE PRIME CONTRACTOR  
PREQUALIFICATION EVALUATION PROCEDURE 

 
October 10, 2017 

 
Name of Contractor:        

 
1. Confirm Prequalification Statement Submitted is Responsive – if the answer 

to any of the questions is “no,” then the Prequalification Package is nonresponsive.   

A. Completeness 
Did the Contractor provide all requested information in its submitted 
Prequalification Statement? 
 
Yes  No 
 

B. Signed Under Penalty of Perjury 
Is the Prequalification Questionnaire signed under penalty of perjury by an 
individual who has the authority to bind the Contractor on whose behalf he or she 
is signing? 

 
  Yes  No 

 
2. Incomplete, Misleading or Inaccurate Information – if the answer to any of the 

questions is “yes,” then reject the Contractor. 

A. Is the information provided by the Contractor misleading or inaccurate in any 
material manner? 

Yes  No 

B. Is the information contained in the Prequalification Package out of date, and 
not updated under penalty of perjury, so that it is no longer accurate?   

 Yes  No 

3. Confirm Essential Criteria  
 

a. Is the contractor’s headquarters within 60 miles of Santa Rosa? 
  Yes    No 
 
(If no, then Contractor is not qualified) 

 

b. Has your firm performed work on a public works project in excess of $1M that 
required DSA approval? 



 

 

  Yes    No 
 

(If no, then Contractor is not qualified) 
 

c. K-12 School Projects (See Section C & D. of Questionnaire) 
 

Has the Contractor contracted for construction involving a minimum of three (3) 
California K-12 projects with the past five (5) years, each using the lease-
leaseback project delivery method and/or with a total contract price of $1 million 
or more? 
 
Yes  No 
 
(If no, then Contractor is not qualified) 

d. License (See Section C.9. of Questionnaire) 
 

Has the Contractor held all Contractor’s license(s) necessary to perform its work 
for at least five (5) years, without suspension or revocation?   
 
Yes  No 
 
(If no, then Contractor is not qualified) 

 
e. Registration (See Section C.8. of Questionnaire) 
 

Is the Contractor currently registered as a Public Works Contractor with the 
Department of Industrial Relations?   
 
Yes  No 
 
(If no, then Contractor is not qualified) 

f. Disqualification (See Section C.12. and C.13. of Questionnaire) 
 

Has the Contractor ever been disqualified, debarred, forbidden, or found non-
responsible or otherwise prohibited, from performing work and/or bidding on 
work for any school district or other public agency within the State of California 
in the past five (5) years? 
 
Yes  No 
 
(If yes, then Contractor is not qualified) 

 
g. Default (See Section C.29. of Questionnaire) 
 



 

 

Has a surety firm completed a contract on Contractor’s behalf, or paid for 
completion because Contractor was in default and/or terminated by school district 
or other public agency within the State of California within the past five (5) 
years?   
 
Yes  No 
 
(If yes, then Contractor is not qualified) 

h. Bankruptcy (See Section C.7. of Questionnaire) 
 

Has Contractor declared bankruptcy or been placed in receivership within the past 
five (5) years?  
 
Yes  No 
 
(If yes, then Contractor is not qualified) 

i. Insurance (See Section C.15. of Questionnaire) 

Does Contractor have liability insurance with a policy limit of at least $2,000,000 
per occurrence and $4,000,000 aggregate? 
 
Yes  No 
 
(If no, see from attachment to Questionnaire if they are capable of attaining the 
above limits.  If not, then Contractor is not qualified) 

 
j. Workers’ Compensation (See Section C.16. of Questionnaire) 

Does Contractor have current workers’ compensation insurance as required by the 
California Labor Code or is Contractor legally self-insured pursuant to California 
Labor Code section 3700 et seq.? 
 
Yes  No 
 
(If no, then Contractor is not qualified) 

 



 

 

k. Bonding Capacity (See Sections C.26. through C.31. of Questionnaire) 

Does Contractor demonstrate that it can provide a 10% bid bond, 100% payment 
bond, and 100% performance bond, each issued by a surety admitted and 
authorized to transact business as a surety in California? 
 
Yes  No 
 
(If no, then Contractor is not qualified) 

l. Criminal Matters and Related Civil Suits (See Section C.18. and C.19. of 
Questionnaire) 

 
Has the Contractor, or any of its owners or officers, been found liable in a civil 
suit or guilty in a criminal action for making a false claim or material 
misrepresentation to a public agency, or been convicted of a crime involving the 
bidding, award or performance of a contract on a government construction project 
or any crime involving fraud, theft, or any other act of dishonesty?   
 
Yes  No 
 
(If yes, then Contractor is not qualified) 

4. Contact References 
 

The District must contact each of Contractor’s references from a minimum of 3 of its 
most recent K-12 school district projects. 

5. Complete Evaluation Worksheet 
 

Insert total score from evaluation worksheet       
Contractor must have 60 out of 115 points or higher to qualify Total Points 

 
6. Appeal Process 

If the Contractor decides to appeal the District’s qualification decision, it shall follow 
this procedure: 

a. Within three (3) working days of notification from the District, Contractor 
shall submit a written request to the District asking for an explanation of any 
aspect of the District’s determination.  

b. Within three (3) working days from receipt of the District’s written response 
to the Contractor’s request, Contractor may submit, in writing, a request for 
reconsideration by the District’s staff.  Contractor may submit with the 
request any information that it believes supports a finding that District’s 
determination should be changed.  

If the Contractor chooses not to avail itself of this process, the proposed 
prequalification rating may be adopted by the District without further proceedings. 

  



 

 

 
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

PROSPECTIVE PRIME CONTRACTOR 
PREQUALIFICATION EVALUATION REFERENCE FORM 

October 10, 2017 
(To be utilized by District to evaluate references) 

 
The District should fill out the information in Section I and then telephone the contact 
person.  The District should then ask the questions in Section II, ensuring that it obtains the 
information as to whether the Contractor’s performance in that area was unsatisfactory, 
below average, average or above average.  The District should then complete section III 
with that information and enter the average of the Total Numerical Rating of all the 
Evaluation Reference Forms for that Contractor at the corresponding place on the Evaluation 
Worksheet. 
 
Section I - General Project Information 
 
Name of Contractor: 
 
 
 
 
 

Total Contract Costs: 
 
 
Contract Start/End Dates: 
 
 

Project Title: 
 
 

Actual Completion Date: 
 
 

Scope of Work: 
 
 
Name of Public Agency/School District: 
 
 

Telephone Number of Contact Person: 
 

Name of Contact Person: 
 

Date and Time of Interview of Contact 
Person: 
 
 

Architect Firm: 
 
 

Principal Architect in Charge of Project: 
 
 



 

 

Section II – Telephone Interview Questions 
 
1. Planning and Coordination of Work 

Did the Contractor pursue and develop a thorough understanding of the scope of 
work?  Did the Contractor proactively anticipate and coordinate agencies and 
jurisdictions, and utilities shutdown schedules and mechanics? Was the Contractor 
able to plan and execute complex critical path tasks for successful completion?  
Please rate the Contractor with respect to planning and coordination of 
work as either unsatisfactory, below average, average, or above average. 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

2. Quality of Work 
 

Were there quality-related problems on the project?  Were these problems 
attributable to the Contractor?  Was the Contractor cooperative in trying to resolve 
problems?  If not, provide specific examples.  Please rate the Contractor with 
respect to quality of work as either unsatisfactory, below average, average, 
or above average. 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

 
3. Performance and Accountability 

 
a. Scheduling - Rate the Contractor’s performance with regard to adhering to 

project schedules.  Did the Contractor meet the project schedule?  If not, was 
the delay attributable to the Contractor?  Please rate the Contractor with 
respect to scheduling as either unsatisfactory, below average, 
average, or above average. 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________ 

 



 

 

b. Contractor (Project) Management - Rate the Contractor’s ability to manage 
and coordinate its own subcontractors (if no subcontractors, rate the 
Contractor’s overall project management).  Was the Contractor able to 
effectively resolve problems?  If not, provide specific examples.  Please rate 
the Contractor with respect to project management as either 
unsatisfactory, below average, average, or above average. 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________ 

 

c. Change Orders - Rate the Contractor’s performance with regard to change 
orders and extras.  Did the Contractor unreasonably claim change orders or 
extras?  Were the Contractor’s prices on change orders and extras 
reasonable?  If not, provide specific examples.  Please rate the Contractor 
with respect to change orders as either unsatisfactory, below 
average, average, or above average. 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

 
d. Working Relationships - Rate the Contractor’s working relationships with other 

parties (i.e. owner, designer, prime contractors, other subcontractors, etc.).  
Did the Contractor relate to other parties in a professional manner?  If not, 
provide specific examples.  Please rate the Contractor with respect to 
working relationships as either unsatisfactory, below average, 
average, or above average. 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

 



 

 

e. Paperwork Processing - Rate the Contractor’s performance in completing and 
submitting required project paperwork (i.e. submittals, drawings, requisitions, 
payrolls, etc.).  Did the Contractor submit the required paperwork promptly 
and in proper form?  If not, provide specific examples.  Please rate the 
Contractor with respect to paperwork processing as either 
unsatisfactory, below average, average, or above average. 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

 

f. Litigation – Did the Contractor threaten litigation or arbitration of any claims?  
Did the Contractor actually file for litigation or arbitration against the District?  
Did the District agree to settle any litigation or arbitration?  If not, who 
prevailed in the trial or arbitration?  Please rate the Contractor with 
respect to litigation as either unsatisfactory, below average, average, 
or above average. 
 

___________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________ 

[RATING SHEET ON NEXT PAGE] 



 

 

Section III - Numerical Rating 
 
If the contact person rates the Contractor unsatisfactory in any area, please attempt to 
provide written comments in Section II to explain the rating(s) assigned. 
 
Contractor’s Name: _______________________________________ 
 

 
 

 
Unsatisfactory 

Below 
Average 

 
Average 

Above 
Average 

 
RATING 

1.  Planning and 
Coordination of Work -5 0 7 15  

2. Quality of Work -5 0 1 5  

3. Performance and 
 Accountability      

a. Scheduling 0 1 2 4  

b. Supervision; 
Subcontractor and 
Project Management 

0 1 3 5  

c. Change Orders 0 1 2 4  

d. Working Relationship 0 0 1 2  

e. Paperwork Processing 0 0 1 2  

f.   Litigation 0 0 2 3  

Maximum Possible: 40  

Total:  

 



 

 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROSPECTIVE PRIME CONTRACTOR 

PREQUALIFICATION EVALUATION WORKSHEET 

October 10, 2017 
Name of Contractor:        

 
1. Essential Criteria          

If any one of the essential criteria is not met, there is no 
need to complete the remainder of the evaluation. 

 
2. References           Points 

Use the attached Evaluation Reference Form for each 
reference contacted for Contractor.  Insert the average of all 
the scores from all references for Contractor. 
 

Average Numeric Rating from Evaluation 
Reference Forms 

= Max 40 
Points 

  Points

 
3. Years in Business Under Current License (See Section C.6. of Questionnaire)  

10 or more years = 15 Points   Points
5 to 9 years = 10 Points  
2 to 4 years = 5 Points  
Less than 2 years = 0 Points  

 
4. Size of Completed Projects (See Section D. of Questionnaire)  

Choose the one with the highest point value that Contractor meets. 
3 Completed Projects larger than $10 
million 

= 10 Points   Points

5 Completed Projects larger than $5 
million 

= 8 Points  

3 Completed Projects larger than $5 
million 

= 6 Points  

5 Completed Projects larger than $1 
million 

= 4 Points  

3 Completed Projects larger than $1 
million 

= 2 Points  

 
5. Liquidated Damages Per Project (See Section C.11. of Questionnaire)  

0 Incidents = 10 Points   Points
1 to 3 Incidents = 5 Points  
4 or more Incidents = 0 Points  

 
6. Non-Compliance with Applicable Laws (See Sections C.20, 21, 23, 24, and 25. of 

Questionnaire) 
0 Projects = 10 Points   Points
1 to 5 Projects = 5 Points  
6 or more Projects = 0 Points  

 
7. Workers’ Compensation Modifier (See Section C.22. of Questionnaire) 

Less than or equal to 0.85 = 10 Points   Points



 

 

More than 0.85 and less than 1.0 = 5    Points  
More than 1.0 = 0 Points  

 
8. Financial Strength – Working Capital – excluding entire line of credit (See 

Section E. of Questionnaire) 
25% or more than $5 million = 10 Points   Points
10% or more than $2 million = 5    Points 
Less than $2 million = 0    Points 

 
9. Financial Strength – Net Worth  (See Section E. of Questionnaire) 

More than $5 million = 10 Points   Points
Equal to $2 million = 5    Points 
Less than $2 million = 0    Points 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Maximum 
Points: 

= 115  

  



 

SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION PROCEDURE Page 1 
DWK DMS 3172685v1 

RESOLUTION NO. 10-17-06 
OF THE  

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
ADOPTING PREQUALIFICATION PROCESS FOR MEP SUBCONTRACTORS  

PURSUANT TO PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 20111.6 
 
 WHEREAS, the Rincon Valley Union School District (“District”) desires to prequalify 
potential electrical, mechanical or plumbing contractors holding C-4, C-7, C-10, C-16, C-20, 
C-34, C-36, C-38, C-42, C-43, and/or C-46 licenses (“MEP subcontractors”) for lease-
leaseback projects and projects using funds received pursuant to the Leroy F. Greene 
School Facilities Act of 1998 or any funds received, including funds reimbursed, from any 
future state school bond for a public project that involves a projected expenditure of one 
million dollars ($1,000,000) or more;  

WHEREAS, school districts are required to prequalify first-tier MEP subcontractors 
for all contracts for the aforementioned district projects using the requirements described in 
Section 20111.6 of the Public Contract Code; 

WHEREAS, Public Contract Code section 20111.6 authorizes school districts to 
require prospective first-tier MEP subcontractors to submit a standardized questionnaire and 
financial statement (collectively “Prequalification Package”) prior to bidding on the 
aforementioned district projects;  

WHEREAS, Public Contract Code section 20111.6 authorizes school districts to 
establish a uniform system of rating bidders based upon the completed Prequalification 
Packages (“Prequalification Process”); 

WHEREAS, District staff have developed a standardized questionnaire for the Project 
in accordance with Public Contract Code section 20111.6 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 
(“Questionnaire”); 

 WHEREAS, District staff have developed a uniform system of rating potential MEP 
subcontractors based upon the completed Questionnaires and financial statements attached 
hereto as Exhibit “B” (“Rating System”);  

 WHEREAS, the Rating System includes a process for potential MEP subcontractors 
to appeal certain decisions with respect to the Prequalification Process (“Appeal Process”); 
and 

 WHEREAS, the District desires to adopt the Prequalification Process, including the 
Questionnaire, Rating System, and Appeal Process for the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the Rincon Valley Union School District 
hereby finds, determines, declares, orders and resolves as follows: 

Section 1. That the above recitals are true and correct.  

Section 2.  That the Questionnaire, the Rating System, and the Appeal Process are 
authorized pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20111.6.  

Section 3. That the District’s Superintendent, or designee, is authorized to 
implement the Prequalification Process, including accepting the final list of MEP 
subcontractors, consistent with Public Contract Code section 20111.6. 



 

SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION PROCEDURE Page 2 
DWK DMS 3172685v1 

APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Rincon Valley Union 
School District on this _____ day of __________, 2017, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTENTIONS:  
  
 
             

Carol Lynn Wood 
President of the Board of Trustees of the  
Rincon Valley Union School District  

 
Attested to: 
 
       
Cynthia Evers 
Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the 
Rincon Valley Union School District 



 

SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION PROCEDURE Page 3 
DWK DMS 3172685v1 

Exhibit “A” 
 

Prequalification Questionnaire 
 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PREQUALIFICATION QUESTIONNAIRE FOR 

PROSPECTIVE MEP SUBCONTRACTORS 
 

October 10, 2017 
 

Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20111.6, each prospective contractor holding C-4, 
C-7, C-10, C-16, C-20, C-34, C-36, C-38, C-42, C-43, and/or C-46 licenses (“MEP 
subcontractors”) shall submit the following information to establish its qualifications to 
perform construction work as a first-tier subcontractor on either District lease-leaseback 
projects or District projects using funds received pursuant to the Leroy F. Greene School 
Facilities Act of 1998 or any funds received, including funds reimbursed, from any future 
state school bond for a public project that involves a projected expenditure of one million 
dollars ($1,000,000) or more. 
 
A. SUBCONTRACTOR’S CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

Firm name:            

           

Address:            

           

Telephone:            

Fax:             

Mobile Telephone:           

E-mail:            

By:              Date:     
       (Name of individual completing statement) 
 

Years in business as a licensed contractor:       
Types of work performed with own forces:       
            
            
         
Years in business under current firm name:       
Years at the above address:         

 

  

 



 

SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION PROCEDURE Page 4 
DWK DMS 3172685v1 

B. CURRENT ORGANIZATION AND STRUCTURE OF THE BUSINESS 
 

1. For Firms that Are Corporations:  

a. Date incorporated:         
b. Under the laws of what state:       
c. Provide all the following information for each person who is either (a) 

an officer of the corporation (president, vice president, secretary, 
treasurer), or (b) the owner of at least 10% of the corporation’s stock.   

 
Name Position Years with Co. % Ownership 
    
    

 
2. For Firms that Are Partnerships:  

a. Date of formation:         
b. Under the laws of what state:       
c. Provide all the following information for each partner who owns ten 

percent (10%) or more of the firm.   
 

Name Position Years with Co. % Ownership 
    
    

 
3. For Firms that are Sole Proprietorships:  

a. Date of commencement of business:      
 

4. For Firms that Intend to Bid as a Joint Venture:  

a. Date of commencement of joint venture:      
b. Provide all of the following information for each firm that is a member 

of the joint venture that expects to bid on one or more projects.  
Attach all additional references and/or information on separate signed 
sheets.  

 
Name of Firm % of Ownership of Joint Venture 
  
  

 
5. Associated Firms 

 
For any of the above business structures, identify every construction firm that any 
person listed above has been associated with (as owner, general partner, limited 
partner or officer) at any time during the past 5 years.   

 
Person’s Name  Name of Construction Firm & 

License No.  
Dates of Person’s 
Participation with Firm 

   
   

 
 Attach all additional references and/or information on separate signed sheets. 
 
C. HISTORY OF THE BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATIONAL PERFORMANCE 



 

SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION PROCEDURE Page 5 
DWK DMS 3172685v1 

 
1. Has there been any change in ownership of the firm at any time during the 

past 3 years?  NOTE: A corporation whose shares are publicly traded is not required 
to answer this question.   

  Yes    No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet. 
 

2. Is the firm a subsidiary, parent, holding company, or affiliate of another 
construction firm?  NOTE:  Include information about other firms if one firm owns 
10% or more of another, or if an owner, partner, or officer of your firm holds a similar 
position in another firm.   

  Yes    No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the name of the related 
company and the percent ownership. 
 

3. Are any corporate officers, partners or owners connected to any other 
construction firms?  NOTE:  Include information about other firms if an owner, 
partner, or officer of your firm holds a similar position in another firm.   

  Yes    No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet. 
 

4. Has any owner, partner, CSLB qualifier or corporate officer of the firm 
operated as a contractor under any other name or license number (not listed 
above) in the last 5 years?     

  Yes    No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the name and license 
number of the other company.   

5. State your firm’s gross revenues for each of the past 3 years:  
 

Year Gross Revenue 
 $ 
 $ 
 $ 

 
6. How many years has your firm been in business in California as a contractor 

under your present business name and license number?     
         

7. Is your firm currently the debtor in a bankruptcy case or was your firm in 
bankruptcy at any time during the last 5 years?   

  Yes    No   

If “yes,” please attach a copy of the bankruptcy petition and a copy of the 
Bankruptcy Court’s discharge or any other document that ended the case, if 
any 



 

SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION PROCEDURE Page 6 
DWK DMS 3172685v1 

8. Is your firm’s headquarters located within 60 miles of Santa Rosa, CA? 

  Yes    No   

 
LICENSES AND REGISTRATION 

9. Please provide the following information:  
 

a. Name of license holder exactly as on file with the Contractors State 
License Board:         
        

 
b. License classification(s):        
 
c. License #:          
 
d. Expiration Date:          

 
e. Public Works Contractor’s Registration # as on file with Department of 

Industrial Relations: ____________________  

10. Has any CSLB license held by your firm or its Responsible Managing Employee 
or Responsible Managing Officer been suspended within the last 5 years? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet. 

11. Has your firm changed names or license number in the past 5 years?   

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the reason for the 
change. 

DISPUTES 

12. At any time in the last 5 years, has your firm been assessed liquidated 
damages under a construction contract with any public or private owner?   

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, identifying projects by owner, 
owner’s address, and date of completion. 

13. At any time in the last 5 years, has your firm, or any owners, officers or 
partners, been debarred, disqualified, removed or otherwise prevented from 
bidding on, or completing, any public works project? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the name of the person 
who was associated with that company, the year of the event, owner, owner’s 
address and basis for the action. 



 

SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION PROCEDURE Page 7 
DWK DMS 3172685v1 

14. At any time in the last 5 years, has a public agency found your company was 
not a responsible bidder? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the year of the event, 
owner, owner’s address and basis for the finding. 

15. In the past 5 years, has any claim against your firm or by your firm against 
an owner been filed in court or arbitration concerning your firm’s work or 
payment on a construction project? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the project name, court 
or arbitration case name and number, and a brief description of the status of 
the claim. 

INSURANCE 

16. Does subcontractor have liability insurance with a policy limit of at least 
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate? 

  Yes   No   

17. Does subcontractor have current workers’ compensation insurance as 
required by the California Labor Code or is subcontractor legally self-insured 
pursuant to California Labor Code section 3700 et seq.? 

  Yes   No   
 

18. In the last 5 years, has any insurance carrier, for any form of insurance, 
refused to renew an insurance policy for your firm? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the name of the 
insurance carrier, form of insurance and year of the refusal. 

CRIMINAL MATTERS AND RELATED CIVIL SUITS 

19. Has your firm or any of its owners, partners or officers ever been found liable 
in a civil suit, or found guilty in a criminal action, for making any false claim 
or material misrepresentation to any public agency or entity? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, identifying who was involved, 
name of the public agency, date of the investigation and grounds for the 
filing. 



 

SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION PROCEDURE Page 8 
DWK DMS 3172685v1 

20. Has your firm or any of its owners, partners or officers ever been convicted of 
a crime involving any federal, state, or local law related to construction or a 
crime involving fraud, theft, or any other act of dishonesty? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, identifying who was involved, 
name of the public agency, date of conviction and grounds for the conviction. 

SAFETY 
 

21. Within the past 5 years, has the California or federal OSHA cited and assessed 
penalties against your firm, or any associated firm, for “serious,” “willful” or 
“repeat” violations of its safety or health regulations? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, identifying the citation(s), nature 
of the violation(s), project, and amount of penalty paid, if any.   

22. Within the past 5 years, has the EPA or any Air Quality Management District 
or any Regional Water Quality Control Board cited and assessed penalties 
against your firm or the owner of the project on which your firm was a 
contractor? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, describing the citation(s). 

23. State the subcontractor’s Workers’ Compensation Experience Modification 
Rate for the past 3 premium years: 

 
Year Modification Rate 

  
  
  

 
If your EMR is 1.00 or higher, you may attach a letter of explanation. 

24. Within the past 5 years, has there ever been a period when your firm and/or 
any associated firm had employees but was without workers’ compensation 
insurance or state-approved self-insurance?   

  Yes   No   

If yes, explain on separate signed sheet, including the date(s) and reason(s) 
for the absence of workers' compensation insurance. 
 



 

SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION PROCEDURE Page 9 
DWK DMS 3172685v1 

PREVAILING WAGE AND APPRENTICESHIP COMPLIANCE 

25. In the past 5 years, has there been more than one occasion in which your 
firm was required to pay either back wages or penalties for failure to comply 
with California prevailing wage laws or federal Davis-Bacon prevailing wage 
requirements? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, describing the nature of the 
violation(s), project, owner, and amount paid, if any. 

 
26. At any time during the past 5 years, has your firm been found to have 

violated any provision of California apprenticeship laws or regulations, or laws 
pertaining to use of apprentices on public works projects? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including date(s) of such findings 
and attaching the DAS’ final decision(s). 

BONDING 

27. In the last 5 years, has any surety paid on your firm’s behalf as a result of a 
default to satisfy any claims made against a payment or performance bond 
issued on your firm’s behalf? 

  Yes   No   

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed sheet, including the amount of each 
claim, name and telephone number of claimant, date of and grounds for the 
claim, and present status. 

  
D. PROJECT REFERENCES 
 
On the form attached as Exhibit A, list all California K-12 projects (both under construction 
and completed) during the past 5 years, with a subcontract price over $50,000, in which 
your firm under all firm names identified in Section B participated.  Please identify if the 
projects used the lease-leaseback project delivery method.  Use and attach additional 
signed sheets when needed to explain or clarify any response or to include more responses 
with all requested information.  

 
E. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Subcontractor must submit a reviewed or audited financial statement with accompanying 
notes and supplemental information for the past 2 full fiscal years.  A letter verifying 
availability of a line of credit may also be attached; however, it will be considered 
supplemental information only, and is not a substitute for the required audited or certified 
financial statement. 
 



 

SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION PROCEDURE Page 10 
DWK DMS 3172685v1 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
is true and correct: 
 
Date:              
 
Proper Name of Subcontractor:          
 
             
 
Signature by an officer of the Subcontractor:       
 
By:           (Print Name) 
  
Title:              



 

SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION PROCEDURE Page 11 
DWK DMS 3172685v1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

1. Project Name/Identification: 
 

a. Project Name:         
         

 
b. Project address/location:        

         
 

c. Owner (name of district reference and tel. no.):     
          
      

 
d. Architect (name and tel. no.):       

         
 
e. Construction Manager (name and tel. no.):     

         
 

f. General Contractor (name and tel. no.):      
         

g. Scope of Work:         
          
        

 
h. Was/Is this a lease-leaseback project?       

 
i. Original completion date:        
 
j. Actual date of completion:        

 
k. Time extensions granted:         
 
l. Initial subcontract value:        
 
m. Final subcontract value:        
 

 
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
is true and correct. 

 
 

Date: _____________  ____________________________ 
    Name 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 



 

SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION PROCEDURE Page 12 
DWK DMS 3172685v1 

Exhibit “B” 
 

Prequalification Rating System 
 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION EVALUATION PROCEDURE 

 
October 10, 2017 

 
Name of Subcontractor:        

 
1. Confirm Prequalification Statement Submitted is Responsive – if the answer 

to any of the questions is “no,” then the Prequalification Package is nonresponsive.   

A. Completeness 
Did the Subcontractor provide all requested information in its submitted 
Prequalification Statement? 
 
Yes  No 
 

B. Signed Under Penalty of Perjury 
Is the Prequalification Questionnaire signed under penalty of perjury by an 
individual who has the authority to bind the Subcontractor on whose behalf he 
or she is signing? 

 
  Yes  No 

 
2. Incomplete, Misleading or Inaccurate Information – if the answer to any of the 

questions is “yes,” then reject the Subcontractor. 

A. Is the information provided by the Subcontractor misleading or inaccurate in any 
material manner? 

Yes  No 

B. Is the information contained in the Prequalification Package out of date, and not 
updated under penalty of perjury, so that it is no longer accurate?  

 Yes  No 



 

SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION PROCEDURE Page 13 
DWK DMS 3172685v1 

3. Confirm Essential Criteria  

 
a. K-12 School Projects (See Section C & D. of Questionnaire) 

 
Has the Subcontractor contracted for construction involving a minimum of 
three (3) California K-12 projects during the past five (5) years, each with a 
subcontract value over $50,000? 
 
Yes  No 
 
(If no, then Subcontractor is not qualified) 

b. License (See Section C.9. of Questionnaire) 

 
Has the Subcontractor held all current, active contractor’s license(s) 
necessary to perform its work for at least five (5) years, without suspension 
or revocation?   
 
Yes  No 
 
(If no, then Subcontractor is not qualified) 

 
c. Registration (See Section C.8. of Questionnaire) 

 
Is the Subcontractor currently registered as a Public Works Contractor with 
the Department of Industrial Relations?   
 
Yes  No 
 
(If no, then Subcontractor is not qualified) 

d. Disqualification (See Sections C.12. and C.13. of Questionnaire) 

 
Has the Subcontractor ever been disqualified, debarred, forbidden, or found 
non-responsible or otherwise prohibited, from performing work and/or bidding 
on work for any school district or other public agency within the State of 
California in the past five (5) years?   
 
Yes  No 
 
(If yes, then Subcontractor is not qualified) 

e. Bankruptcy (See Section C.7. of Questionnaire) 

 
Has Subcontractor declared bankruptcy or been placed in receivership within 
the past five (5) years?  
 



 

SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION PROCEDURE Page 14 
DWK DMS 3172685v1 

Yes  No 
 
(If yes, then Subcontractor is not qualified) 

f. Insurance (See Section C.15. of Questionnaire) 

Does Subcontractor have liability insurance with a policy limit of at least 
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate? 
 
Yes  No 
 
(If no, then Subcontractor is not qualified) 

 
g. Workers’ Compensation (See Section C.16. of Questionnaire) 

Does Subcontractor have current workers’ compensation insurance as 
required by the California Labor Code or is Subcontractor legally self-insured 
pursuant to California Labor Code section 3700 et seq.? 
 
Yes  No 
 
(If no, then Subcontractor is not qualified) 

 

h. Criminal Matters and Related Civil Suits (See Section C.18. and C.19. of 
Questionnaire) 

 
Has the Subcontractor, or any of its owners or officers, been found liable in a 
civil suit or guilty in a criminal action of making a false claim or material 
misrepresentation to a public agency, or been convicted of a crime involving 
the bidding, award or performance of a contract on a government 
construction project or any crime involving fraud, theft, or any other act of 
dishonesty?   
 
Yes  No 
 
(If yes, then Subcontractor is not qualified) 
 

i. Is the firm’s headquarters located 60 miles or closer to Santa Rosa? 

 
Yes  No 
 
(If no, the subcontractor is not qualified) 

 



 

SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION PROCEDURE Page 15 
DWK DMS 3172685v1 

4. Contact References 

 
The District must contact each of Subcontractor’s references from a minimum of 
three (3) of its most recent K-12 school district projects. 

5. Complete Evaluation Worksheet 

 
Insert total score from evaluation worksheet       
Subcontractor must have 52 out of 110 points or higher to qualify Total Points 

 
6. Appeal Process 

If the Subcontractor decides to appeal the District’s qualification decision, it shall 
follow this procedure: 

a. Within three (3) working days of notification from the District, Subcontractor 
shall submit a written request to the District asking for an explanation of any 
aspect of the District’s determination.  

b. Within three (3) working days from receipt of the District’s written response 
to the Subcontractor’s request, Subcontractor may submit, in writing, a 
request for reconsideration by the District’s staff.  Subcontractor may submit 
with the request any information that it believes supports a finding that 
District’s determination should be changed.  

If the Subcontractor chooses not to avail itself of this process, the proposed 
prequalification rating may be adopted by the District without further proceedings. 
 



 

 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION EVALUATION REFERENCE FORM 

October 10, 2017 

 (To be utilized by District to evaluate references) 
 
The District should fill out the information in Section I and then telephone the 
contact person.  The District should then ask the questions in Section II, ensuring 
that it obtains the information as to whether the Subcontractor’s performance in that 
area was unsatisfactory, below average, average or above average.  The District 
should then complete section III with that information and enter the average of the 
Total Numerical Rating of all the Evaluation Reference Forms for that Subcontractor 
at the corresponding place on the Evaluation Worksheet. 
 
Section I - General Project Information 
 
Name of Subcontractor: 
 
 
 
 
 

Total Contract Costs: 
 
 
Contract Start/End Dates: 
 
 

Project Title: 
 
 

Actual Completion Date: 
 
 

Scope of Work: 
 
 
Name of Public Agency/School District: 
 

Telephone Number of Contact Person: 
 
 

Name of Contact Person: 
 

Date and Time of Interview of Contact 
Person: 
 
 

Architect Firm: 
 
 

Principal Architect in Charge of Project: 
 
 

General/Prime Contractor: 
 
 

Name of Contract Person for General/Prime 
Contractor: 
 
 

Telephone Number of Contact Person for 
General/Prime Contractor: 
 
 

Date and Time of Interview of Contact 
Person for General/Prime Contractor: 
 
 



 

 

Section II – Telephone Interview Questions 
 
1. Planning and Coordination of Work 

Did the Subcontractor pursue and develop a thorough understanding of the 
scope of work?  Was the Subcontractor able to plan and execute complex 
critical path tasks for successful completion?  Please rate the 
Subcontractor with respect to planning and coordination of work as 
either unsatisfactory, below average, average, or above average. 
 

___________________________________________________________________
______ 
 
___________________________________________________________________
______ 
 
___________________________________________________________________
______ 
 
___________________________________________________________________
______ 

2. Quality of Work 

 
Were there quality-related problems on the project?  Were these problems 
attributable to the Subcontractor?  Was the Subcontractor cooperative in 
trying to resolve problems?  If not, provide specific examples.  Please rate 
the Subcontractor with respect to quality of work as either 
unsatisfactory, below average, average, or above average. 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

 
3. Performance and Accountability 

 
a. Scheduling - Rate the Subcontractor’s performance with regard to 

adhering to project schedules.  Did the Subcontractor meet the project 



 

 

schedule?  If not, was the delay attributable to the Subcontractor?  
Please rate the Subcontractor with respect to scheduling as 
either unsatisfactory, below average, average, or above 
average. 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________

__________________ 

 
b. Subcontractor (Project) Management - Rate the Subcontractor’s ability 

to manage and coordinate its own subcontractors (if no 
subcontractors, rate the Subcontractor’s overall project management).  
Was the Subcontractor able to effectively resolve problems?  If not, 
provide specific examples.  Please rate the Subcontractor with 
respect to project management as either unsatisfactory, below 
average, average, or above average. 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

 



 

 

c. Change Orders - Rate the Subcontractor’s performance with regard to 
change orders and extras.  Did the Subcontractor unreasonably claim 
change orders or extras?  Were the Subcontractor’s prices on change 
orders and extras reasonable?  If not, provide specific examples.  
Please rate the Subcontractor with respect to change orders as 
either unsatisfactory, below average, average, or above 
average. 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________
______ 

d. Working Relationships - Rate the Subcontractor’s working relationships 
with other parties (i.e., owner, designer, prime contractors, other 
subcontractors, etc.).  Did the Subcontractor relate to other parties in 
a professional manner?  If not, provide specific examples.  Please 
rate the Subcontractor with respect to working relationships as 
either unsatisfactory, below average, average, or above 
average. 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

 



 

 

e. Paperwork Processing - Rate the Subcontractor’s performance in 
completing and submitting required project paperwork (i.e., 
submittals, drawings, requisitions, payrolls, etc.).  Did the 
Subcontractor submit the required paperwork promptly and in proper 
form?  If not, provide specific examples.  Please rate the 
Subcontractor with respect to paperwork processing as either 
unsatisfactory, below average, average, or above average. 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

___________________________________________________________________

______ 

 

f. Litigation – Did the Subcontractor threaten litigation or arbitration of 
any claims?  Did the Subcontractor actually file for litigation or 
arbitration against the District?  Did the District agree to settle any 
litigation or arbitration?  If not, who prevailed in the trial or 
arbitration?  Please rate the Subcontractor with respect to 
litigation as either unsatisfactory, below average, average, or 
above average. 

 
___________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________

________________________ 

[RATING SHEET ON NEXT PAGE] 



 

 

Section III - Numerical Rating 
 
If the contact person rates the Subcontractor unsatisfactory in any area, please 
attempt to provide written comments in Section II to explain the rating(s) assigned. 
 
Subcontractor’s Name: _______________________________________ 
 

 
 

 
Unsatisfactory

Below 
Average 

 
Average 

Above 
Average 

 
RATING 

1.  Planning and 
Coordination of Work -5 0 7 15  

2. Quality of Work -5 0 1 5  

3. Performance and 
 Accountability      

a. Scheduling 0 1 2 4  

b. Supervision; 
Subcontractor and 
Project Management 

0 1 3 5  

c. Change Orders 0 1 2 4  

d. Working Relationship 0 0 1 2  

e. Paperwork Processing 0 0 1 2  

f.   Litigation 0 0 3 3  

Maximum Possible: 40  

TOTAL:  

 
 



 

 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SUBCONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION EVALUATION WORKSHEET 

October 10, 2017 

Name of Subcontractor:        
 

1. Essential Criteria          

If any one of the essential criteria is not met, there is 
no need to complete the remainder of the evaluation. 

 
2. References           

Points 

Use the attached Evaluation Reference Form for each 
reference contacted for Subcontractor.  Insert the 
average of all the scores from all references for 
Subcontractor. 
 

Average Numeric Rating from Evaluation 
Reference Forms 

= Max 40 
Points 

  Points

 
3. Years in Business Under Current License (See Section C.6. of 

Questionnaire)  

More than 10 years = 10 Points   Points
5 to 10 years = 5 Points  
Less than 5 years = 0 Points  

 
4. Size of Completed Project Subcontracts (See Section D of Questionnaire)  

Choose the one with the highest point value that Subcontractor meets. 
3 Completed subcontracts larger than $1 
million 

= 10 Points  

5 Completed subcontracts larger than 
$500,000 

= 8 Points  

3 Completed subcontracts larger than 
$500,000 

= 6 Points  

3 Completed subcontracts larger than 
$250,000 

= 4 Points  

3 Completed subcontracts larger than 
$50,000  

= 2 Points  

 
5. Liquidated Damages Per Project (See Section C.11. of Questionnaire)  

0 Incidents = 10 Points   Points
1 to 3 Incidents = 5 Points  
4 or more Incidents = 0 Points  

 



 

 

6. Non-Compliance with Applicable Laws (See Sections C.20, 21, 23, 24 and 
25. of Questionnaire) 

0 Projects = 10 Points   Points
1 to 5 Projects = 5 Points  
6 or more Projects = 0 Points  

 
7. Workers’ Compensation Modifier (See Section C.22. of Questionnaire) 

Less than or equal to 0.85 = 10 Points   Points
More than .85 and less than 1.0 = 5    Points  
More than 1.0 = 0 Points  

 
8. Financial Strength – Working Capital – excluding entire line of credit (See 

Section E of Questionnaire) 

25% or more than $1 million = 10 Points   Points
10% or more than $500,000 = 5    Points 
Less than 10% or $500,000 = 0    Points 

 
9. Financial Strength – Net Worth  (See Section E of Questionnaire) 

More than $2 million = 10 Points   Points
Equal to $1 million = 5    Points 
Less than $1 million = 0    Points 

 
 
 

 

 

Maximum 
Points: 

= 110  

  TOTAL POINTS 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 12.3 

Subject:  Certificated Job Description- Home Study Coordinator 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 

Background: The District has a vibrant and growing Home Study program.  A teacher, who also 
provides instruction to Home Study students, has coordinated the program.  This 
year, with the retirement of the GATE coordinator, the Home Study Coordinator 
has taken on the additional role of coordinating the GATE program.  This has 
removed her from her instructional role in the Home Study Program.   

Highlights: As we make this transition, it is clear the Home Study program continues to grow 
and attract students throughout the greater Santa Rosa area.  The Home Study 
program will benefit from having administrative oversight that also evaluates the 
teachers in the program.  Therefore, the job description for the Home Study 
Coordinator has been adjusted to incorporate an administrative role.  

Challenges: N/A 

Analysis: The Home Study Coordinator is currently staffed at 0.20 FTE.  This position may 
increase as enrollment in the Home Study program increases. 

Next Steps: N/A    

   
 
Attachments:  Job Description: Home Study Coordinator 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: Aprove 
 



 

 

Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District	
Job	Description	

	
Job	Title:	 Home	Study	Coordinator	
Department:	 Administration	
Reports	to:	 Assistant	Superintendent,	Curriculum	&	Instruction	
	
Summary:	
The	Home	Study	Coordinator	will	provide	assistance	and	leadership	towards	creating	the	
conditions	and	climate	that	will	best	enable	members	of	the	program	staff	to	develop	an	
effective	program	which	provides	for	optimum	development	of	each	student.		He/she	will	
be	directly	responsible	to	the	Assistant	Superintendent	of	Curriculum	&	Instruction.	
	

Essential	Duties	and	Responsibilities:	
1. Assist	in	the	administration	of	curriculum	goals	and	objectives	of	the	district	
2. Assist	in	providing	leadership	for	the	development,	implementation	and	evaluation	

of	instructional	programs	
3. Assist	in	conducting	on‐going	needs	assessment	and	providing	leadership	in	

determining	long	and	short‐term	goals	and	objectives	
4. Assist	in	providing	for	staff	development	of	assigned	personnel	
5. Assists	the	Assistant	Superintendent	of	Curriculum	&	Instruction	in	supervising	and	

evaluating	the	performance	of	all	assigned	personnel	in	accordance	with	the	
District’s	policy	for	staff	evaluation	and	assessment;	assists	in	recommendation	of	
appropriate	action	in	cases	of	substandard	performance	and	identifies	and	
encourages	individual	teachers	with	leadership	potential	

6. Plan	and	organize,	with	the	assistance	of	appropriate	staff,	student	activities,	
assemblies,	and	orientation	of	new	staff	

7. Assist	in	maintaining	a	suitable	learning	environment	within	the	program	
8. Assist	in	maintaining	student	discipline	
9. Support	staff	efforts	directed	toward	meeting	established	standards	of	expected	

pupil	performance	and	selection	and	implementation	of	appropriate	assessment	
techniques	

10. Assist	in	coordinating	general	development	and	maintenance	of	the	school	site	
11. Support	development	and	implementation	of	the	home‐based	curriculum	
12. Assist	in	coordinating	requests	for	assistance	for	student	needs,	and	conducting	

student	study	team	meetings,	IEP	meetings,	and	section	504	meetings	
	

	

Other	Duties	and	Responsibilities:	
1. Administer	the	Home	Study	and	Home	Hospital	programs	
2. Represent	the	program	at	community	functions	as	directed	
3. Assist	in	being	responsible	for	the	administration	of	district	policy	and	state	and	

federal	laws	
4. Conduct	faculty	meetings	as	directed	
5. Responsible	for	his/her	own	professional	growth	by	attending	workshops,	

seminars,	classes,	and	maintaining	membership	in	organizations	that	foster	
professional	growth	



 

 

6. Perform	in	such	a	manner	that	the	goals	of	the	district	will	be	optimally	achieved	
and	perform	other	duties	as	assigned	

7. Assist	in	supervision	of	extra‐	curricular	activities	
8. Other	duties	as	assigned	

	
Required	Qualifications;	

1. California	Teaching	Credential	
2. California	Administrative	Credential	
3. Knowledge	and	training	of:	

a. Measurement	and	assessment,	curriculum	development,	goal	setting,	models	
of	teaching,	personnel	and	program	evaluations	

b. Experience	in	teaching,	group	work,	curriculum	implementation,	interpreting	
test	results,	program	evaluation,	and	staff	training.	

c. Working	knowledge	of	charter	schools.	
	
	

Desired	Qualifications:	
1. Master’s	degree	

	
Salary	and	Work	Year:	
The	Home	Study	Coordinator	will	be	placed	on	the	Home	Study	Coordinator	salary	
schedule.	This	position	is	205	days	(pro‐rated	based	on	program	enrollment).	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
Date	approved:			



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 12.4 

Subject:  Certificated Salary Schedule - Home Study Coordinator 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 

Background: As noted in Action Item 12.3, the Home Study Coordinator position has been 
recommended to be adjusted to an administrative role.  Therefore, a salary 
adjustment reflecting the additional responsibilities is appropriate.   

Highlights: The proposed salary schedule for the position of Home Study Coordinator has 
been aligned to that of the position of RVCS Site Director.  Since the position is 
staffed at 0.20 FTE, the actual salary shall be prorated.  

Challenges: N/A 

Analysis: N/A 

Next Steps: N/A    

   
 
Attachments:  2017-18 Salary Schedule: Home Study Coordinator 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Minimal 
  
Recommendation: Approve 
 



 

 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

2017-2018 SALARY SCHEDULE 
 

HOME STUDY COORDINATOR 
 

 

     1 $   85,832 
     2 $   87,119 
     3 $   88,425 
     4 $   89,752 
     5 $   91,098 
     6 $   92,465 
     7 $   93,854 
     8 $   95,262 
      9 $   96,688 
      10 $   98,139 
 
 
 
       
Work year for Home Study Coordinator shall be 205 days (pro-rated based on enrollment).  Two 
weeks prior to teachers' calendar and five days after the last day of school.  The remainder to be 
mutually agreed to with Assistant Superintendent, Curriculum & Instruction. 
 

Masters Degree $1,000. additional annually.                  
Doctorate Degree $1,000 additional annually. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Health Cap effective 5/12/2015 
Board Approved: 5/12/2015 

2016/17 – 2% on, 2% off (3/14/17) 
2017/18 – 1% increase 


	Board Agenda 10-19-17
	Closed 3.1 Collective Bargaining
	Closed 3.2 Personnel Issues
	Closed 3.3 Pending Litigation
	DA Letter_9-20-17
	Board Minutes 9-12-17
	Wm Quarterly  District
	Alliant International
	Contract_360_RVUSD
	Contract_360_RVUSD_RN
	Purchase Orders
	Warrants
	Info. Item 11.1 School Closure and Fire Update
	Info. Item 11.2 Transportation Report
	RVUSD  TRANSPORTATION VEHICLES AND ROUTES
	Info. Item 11.3 RVEF
	RVEF Strat Plan 2017-18 Dashboard 7.17.17
	Info. Item 11.4 Curriculum & Instruction
	Gr 7 RVCS-M 2017-18
	Gr 7 RVCS-S 2017-18
	Gr 8 RVCS-M 2017-18
	Gr 8 RVCS-S 2017-18
	Info. Item 11.5a Student Services Report
	Info. Item 11.5b Parent University
	Info. Item 11.6 Bond Rating Agency
	S&PGlobal_Rating
	Research:
	Rationale
	Economy 
	Finances 
	Management 
	Debt 
	Pension and other postemployment benefit liabilities 

	Outlook
	Upside scenario
	Downside scenario

	Related Research


	Moody's_Rating
	Info. Item 11.7 Highly Qualified Teachers
	Info. Item 11.8 Strategic Plan Update Operations Dept
	Business Office Strategic Plan
	CustodialStartegic Plan Objectives
	Food Service Plan Objectives
	Maintenance Strategic Plan
	Technology Department Strategic Plan
	Transportation Department Strategic Plan
	Info. Item 11.9 Single Plan for Student Achievement
	Austin Creek Progress on Goals 2016-17
	Progress on Goals 2016-17 Binkley
	Madrone Progress on Goals 2016-17
	SC-Mat_Progress on Goals 2016-17 Goals
	Sequoia_Progress on Goals 2016-17 
	2017VillageProgressGoals (2)
	Progress on Goals from 16-17 Whited
	Progress on Goals 2016-17 RVCS
	Info. Item 11.10 RVCS Renewal
	RVCS Renewal_10-10-17
	Info. Item 11.11 RVUTA Sunshine with RVUSD
	RVUTA Sunshine 2017
	Info. Item 11.12 RVUSD Sunshine with RVUTA
	Action Item 12.1 Declaring an Emergency Res. 10-17-07
	Emergency Resolution for Repair Work (for 2017 LU) -- CUPCAA entity
	Action Item 12.2 Prequalification Resolution
	Prequal Resolution for Prime Contractors (9.27.17)_3172560_1(DMS)
	Prequal Resolution for MEP Subs (9.27.17)_3172685_1(DMS)
	Action Item 12.3 Job Descripton Home Study Coordinator
	homestudycoordinator
	Action Item 12.4  Certificated Salary Schedule - Home Study Coordinator
	17-18 Home Study Coordinator
	Personnel

